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The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2019 has been
restated to reflect the effect of adoption of merger accounting for
common control acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2020.
The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2018 has not

been adjusted.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of New Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the
“Company”), | would like to present to you the annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (“New Century” or the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022 (the “Year").

The Year was yet another disruptive year globally and
especially for Hong Kong, where the economy shrank by 4%
in the first quarter of 2022, following an increase of 4.7% in
the fourth quarter of 2021. As the fifth wave of local epidemic
and the restrictive measures weighed heavily on nearly all
economic activities alongside the drop in economic sentiment,
the city is expected to expand in a range of 1% to 2% in
2022, down from the previous prediction of 2% to 3.5%.
Nevertheless, Hong Kong once again demonstrated its
resilience, with its S&P Global Hong Kong Purchasing
Managers’ Index jumped to 54.9 in May 2022, the sharpest
rate of growth since March 2011, showing the sign of a

promising rebound for the city.

ADAPTING TO THE NEW NORMAL

Despite the turbulence of the pandemic, the Group managed
to navigate through the hurdles by tapping into our robust
fundamentals and sturdy balance sheet. Against this backdrop,
loss attributable to the owners of the Company was improved
by 97.4% from HK$56,712,000 last year to HK$1,501,000
this Year.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has created economic uncertainty
that posed as a challenge to our money lending business. To
minimise our credit risk and operating costs, we carried out a
set of predefined measures and focused primarily on
mortgage financing. The money lending segment recorded a
profit of HK$49,005,000 for the Year.
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During the Year, the travel restrictions still crippled our
business on cruise ship charter services. In order to reallocate
our resources on the core competencies in money lending
business, we disposed of the cruise ship “Leisure World" on
25 May 2021 and only maintain the cruise ship “Aegean
Paradise” in operation. After a suspension period of over 20
months, our cruise ship charter services business has
welcomed its good news and the cruise ship “Aegean
Paradise” has resumed sailing at the end of January 2022.
The cruise ship charter services segment recorded a significant
decrease in loss by 49.7% from HK$112,325,000 last year to
HK$56,449,000 this Year.

As for our property investment segment, it continued to show
steady performance and generate recurring income albeit with
an impact from the ongoing global pandemic. During the Year,
the Hong Kong commercial leasing market remained soft and
the Group still granted temporary rental reduction to its
tenants. Together with a reduction in rental rate of shop units
at Dundas Square, Mongkok upon its renewal of tenancy, a
moderate decline in rental income in Hong Kong was
recorded. Nevertheless, the decline in rental income in Hong
Kong was offset by the increase in rental rate of our certain
Singapore conservation shophouses. Thanks to the fair value
gains of investment properties, the Group recorded a
turnaround for the segment with a profit of HK$28,284,000

for the Year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFHRES
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EFHES

GOING FORWARD

While we are confident about our existing investment portfolio
to remain stable, our outlook is invariably tied to the global
economy and the markets where we operate as uncertainties
continue to arise from the Sino-US tension, Russia-Ukraine war
and the slowdown in economic activities caused by the

pandemic.

We will keep a close eye on the industry trends and move
quickly to allocate our resources on the businesses that will
better position ourselves to capture growth opportunities when
the business sentiment improves. While we hope the worst is
finally behind us, we will remain resilient and continue to seek
potential investment opportunities to further diversify our
portfolio by leveraging on our strong track record and
capabilities, setting the stage to deliver sustainable growth for

our shareholders.

Last but not least, | would like to thank my dedicated and
talented colleagues for their efforts and hard work to build and
sustain our businesses in such challenging times. | would also
like to thank our shareholders, investors, business partners

and clients for their continued confidence and support.

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue amounted to HK$80,741,000 for the
Year, representing a decrease of 19.5% as compared to
HK$100,360,000 last year. The decrease in the Group's
revenue was mainly attributable to (i) decrease in interest
income from money lending business by 17.8% from
HK$74,303,000 last year to HK$61,060,000 for the Year and
(ii) decrease in revenue from securities trading business by
65.2% from HK$9,789,000 last year to HK$3,406,000 for the

Year.

Cost of Services Provided

Cost of services provided represented the depreciation of
cruise ships amounting to HK$7,780,000 (2021:
HK$15,668,000). The cruise ship “Aegean Paradise” incurred
depreciation of HK$7,780,000 (2021: HK$10,631,000) while
no depreciation (2021: HK$5,037,000) was recorded for the
cruise ship “Leisure World” which was disposed of during the

Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREt ST

Other Income

Other income of HK$796,000 was recorded for the VYear,
representing a decrease of 80.7% as compared to
HK$4,131,000 last year. The decrease was mainly due to that
(i) the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the "Government of the HKSAR") did not provide
wage subsidies during the Year (2021: HK$2,191,000); (ii)
bank interest income decreased from HK$1,033,000 last year
to HK$699,000 for the Year; and (iii) there was no overdue
interest income for rental receivable during the Year (2021:
HK$440,000).

Administrative and Operating Expenses

The administrative and operating expenses mainly comprised
of (i) special subsidies to the charterer of cruise ships; (ii)
employee benefit expense (including directors’ remuneration);
(i) depreciation of property, plant and equipment (excluding
cruise ships); (iv) advertising and promotion expenses; (V)

auditor's remuneration; and (vi) other administrative expenses.

Administrative and operating expenses of HK$78,333,000
were incurred by the Group for the Year, which increased by
3.4% compared to HK$75,793,000 last year. The increase in
administrative and operating expenses by HK$2,540,000 was
mainly due to the net effect of the following factors: (i)
increase in special subsidies to the charterer of cruise ships by
16.9% from HK$31,153,000 last year to HK$36,426,000 for
the Year; (i) decrease in employee benefit expense (including
directors’ remuneration) by 7.7% from HK$21,068,000 last
year to HK$19,456,000 for the Year; and (iii) decrease in the
advertising and promotion expenses by 26.2% from
HK$5,693,000 last year to HK$4,203,000 for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Deficit on Revaluation of Cruise Ships

The Group recorded revaluation deficit on cruise ships of
HK$12,001,000 for the Year (2021: HK$66,713,000) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, resulting from the
revaluation deficit of HK$12,001,000 (202 1: HK$62,066,000)
on cruise ship “Aegean Paradise” and no revaluation deficit
(2021: HK$4,647,000) on cruise ship “Leisure World” which

was disposed of during the Year.

Fair Value Gains/(Losses) on Investment Properties,
Net

Fair value gains of investment properties amounted to
HK$15,502,000 for the Year (2021: fair value losses of
HK$19,486,000), which was derived from the fair value gains
of HK$500,000 (2021: fair value losses of HK$22,900,000)
on the investment properties in Hong Kong and the fair value
gains of HK$15,002,000 (2021: HK$3,414,000) on the

investment properties in Singapore.

Gain on Disposal of a Non-Current Asset Held for Sale
The cruise ship “Leisure World” was disposed on 25 May
2021. A gain on disposal of HK$714,000 was recorded and
the Group's share of relevant aggregate revaluation surplus
realised of HK$4,730,000 included in the asset revaluation

reserve was transferred to retained profits during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREt ST

Reversal of Impairment Losses on Loan and Interest
Receivables, Net

Net reversal of impairment losses of HK$498,000 for the Year
(2021: HK$1,050,000) on loan and interest receivables was
attributable to decrease in provision for impairment losses on

unsecured personal loan and interest receivables.

Reversal of/(Provision for) an Impairment Loss on a
Repossessed Asset

The Group recorded a reversal of overprovision of HK$11,000
(2021: Provision of HK$300,000) for an impairment loss on a

repossessed asset which was disposed during the Year.

Loss for the Year

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$1,501,000 (2021: HK$56,712,000). The
decline in loss was principally due to (i) significant decrease
in deficit on revaluation of cruise ships recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from HK$66,713,000
last year to HK$12,001,000 for the Year and (ii) fair value
gains of HK$15,502,000 for the Year (2021: fair value losses
of HK$19,486,000) on investment properties, which was
netted off with (i) decrease in profit from money lending
business to HK$49,005,000 (2021: HK$61,801,000) and (ii)
decrease in profit from securities trading business to
HK$3,385,000 (2021: HK$9,776,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Money Lending

During the Year, there were still over 2,400 licensed money
lenders in Hong Kong, representing a keen competition in
which the players offered loans at falling interest rates. In
addition, due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, consumer
have curtailed their spending and slowed their borrowing. To
reduce its credit risk amid uncertainty, the Group focused
primarily on mortgage financing, resulting in a decrease in its
loan portfolio during mid-year but has shown improvement
towards the end of the Year. As at 31 March 2022, the Group
recorded total gross loan and interest receivables of
HK$739,077,000 (2021: HK$661,861,000). The gross
mortgage loan and interest receivables was HK$725,087,000
(2021: HK$639,992,000) and gross unsecured personal loan
and interest receivables was HK$13,990,000 (2021:
HK$21,869,000), representing 98.1% (2021: 96.7%) and
1.9% (2021: 3.3%) of the Group's total loan portfolio

respectively.

Despite the Group's gross loan and interest receivables
increased by 11.7% from HK$661,861,000 as at 31 March
2021 to HK$739,077,000 as at 31 March 2022, the Group
recorded a 17.8% decrease in interest income to
HK$61,060,000 for the Year, as compared to HK$74,303,000
last year. The interest income from mortgage loans decreased
by 17.1% from HK$69,474,000 last year to HK$57,618,000
for the Year, whereas interest income from unsecured
personal loans decreased by 28.7% from HK$4,829,000 last
year to HK$3,442,000 for the Year. Decrease in interest
income from both the mortgage loans and unsecured personal
loans were due to decrease in the average balance of
mortgage loan receivables and unsecured personal loan

receivables, respectively.
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R MBWABBRR D 25l AR ERE
BERREREERLAERZ FHERE
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BB EST R 5T

Together with the effects of (i) no wage subsidy provided
from the Government of the HKSAR during the Year (2021:
HK$1,057,000); (ii) decrease in advertising and promotion
expenses from HK$5,587,000 last year to HK$4,117,000 for
the Year; and (iii) decrease in net reversal of impairment
losses on loan and interest receivables from HK$1,050,000
last year to HK$498,000 for the Year, the segment profit
decreased by 20.7% to HK$49,005,000 for the Year (2021:
HK$61,801,000).

Cruise Ship Charter Services

Following a more-than-a-year-long operational halt since mid-
March 2020, the Group's cruise ship charter services segment
finally saw a gradual restart with the permit from the
Malaysian Government. The cruise ship "Aegean Paradise”
resumed operation in Penang on 22 January 2022. However,
in accordance with the charter agreement of “Aegean
Paradise”, the charterer was not required to pay daily charter
fee to the Group if the number of persons onboard was under
60% of the maximum carrying capacity, i.e., 960 persons. The
segment still brought no charter service income to the Group

during the Year.

During the Year, the Group decided to accelerate the exit of
“Leisure World” on 22 April 2021 at a consideration of
approximately US$3,592,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,909,000) to optimise its resources allocation. The
disposal of “Leisure World” was completed on 25 May 2021.
Following the disposal, no revaluation deficit of “Leisure
World” (2021: HK$4,647,000) was recorded in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss for the Year.

CHELEEEEFEBERAA

MEMRAFE  BEAFEBRF T ERHET
BB (ZZ=—%F :1,057,0008 L) ; (i)
& & Kt BB X B = F ¥ 25,587,000/ T
BAEBERFEE 24,117,000 7T : K (ii) fE Uk
EREFERREEEREFEREAFE Y
1,050,000/ 708 2 & AN [€ 2 498,000/ 7T
EXE D EFRHP207TNERFE 2
49,005,000/ 7t (= Z = — 4 : 61,801,000
BIT) °

B o 1 & AR A%

B-_Z_TF=-AFAEEFEEEBRRA—F
% AEBZHGBESRE S FESRADR
BT 2 B/ TR E S BRI - B [ Aegean
Paradise ER—_ZE-_—_F—A-+_HER

YIRE & IE - AT - B3R [Aegean Paradise ]
Z%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%aﬁ CWE EMABEREREEE
260% (B1960A) - AR AE AN EH

MRETAKE RAFE  Zo R INRR
ERAEEERKAMBEERBEA -

REICHBRAR RAFE  RNEEARTE
RZZBZ—FMNA =+ HINREELeisure
World| - BRI B 493,592,000% 7T (HHER
#927,909,0007% JT) ° [ Leisure World | H &
EHER T~ FRA-THBEREK - #
HEFEE RAFETEELREERERA
[ Leisure World | $x 8 &M B4 (=F

F 1 4,647,000/ 7T) °
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Special subsidies incurred for the Year amounted to
HK$36,426,000 (2021: HK$31,153,000), which represented
HK$34,839,000 (2021: HK$20,769,000) for “Aegean
Paradise” and HK$1,587,000 (2021: HK$10,384,000) for

“Leisure World".

Last year, “Aegean Paradise” went into dry dock and capital
expenditure of HK$11,770,000 was incurred. Revaluation
deficit of HK$62,066,000 was recognised for “Aegean
Paradise” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss last
year. For the Year, there was no dry dock arrangement and
revaluation deficit of HK$12,001,000 was recorded for
“Aegean Paradise” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

In view of the above-mentioned factors, the cruise ship charter
services segment recorded a significant decrease in loss by
49.7% from HK$112,325,000 last year to HK$56,449,000 for
the Year.

EEET R

RN 8 B 4 2 %5 5l # B) /336,426,000 7T
(ZE=Z—%:31,153,0008 t) ' B
[ Aegean Paradise ] £34,839,000/%% 70 (=&
——% :20,769,000% 7T ) K [ Leisure World |
731,587,000 7t (ZF = —4 : 10,384,000
BIT) o

E&E ' [Aegean Paradise | # AFZAHIE © I
EHXEAREZTH11,770,0008 T - KFE - £
iR e B & Ak [Aegean Paradise | HE R E fiy
&5 462,066,000/ 7T - KA F E I EFZ M IS
2P iR aEm KR NBE[Aegean Paradise
1SS E4L12,001,000% 7T

AN EiiAE BHRAERESIFNEER
EFE 2112,325,00078 T A 188 2 49.7%
2 ARFE 756,449,000/ TT, °
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Property Investment

The fifth wave of COVID-19 stalled the recovery of leasing
activities and dragged the rental levels down in the Hong Kong
commercial property market, causing a slight decrease in the
Group's rental revenue from its Hong Kong properties during
the Year. Fortunately, the Group's segment revenue and
results remained stable for the Year, thanks to the improved
performance in terms of appreciation in fair value as well as
an increase in rental rate of investment properties in

Singapore.

During the Year, the Group's segment revenue from property
investment stood at HK$16,275,000 (202 1: HK$16,268,000),
which comprised of HK$14,418,000 (2021: HK$14,561,000)
from investment properties in Hong Kong and HK$1,857,000
(2021: HK$1,707,000) from investment properties in
Singapore. Slight decrease in revenue from Hong Kong
investment properties was mainly due to decrease in rental
rate to a tenant of shop units at Dundas Square, Mongkok
upon its renewal of tenancy agreement despite shorter period
of temporary rental reductions were granted to tenants during
the Year as compared to last year. Increase in revenue from
Singapore investment properties was mainly due to increase
in rental rate of new tenancy of certain conservation

shophouses.

At the end of each of the reporting date, investment
properties were revalued at fair value. Fair value gains of
HK$15,502,000 (2021: fair value losses of HK$19,486,000)
on investment properties were recorded for the Year. The
investment properties in Hong Kong recorded fair value gains
of HK$500,000 for the Year (2021: fair value losses of
HK$22,900,000) while fair value gains of HK$15,002,000
(2021: HK$3,414,000) were recorded for the investment

properties in Singapore for the Year.

MERE

209N mERFERLKER THEETS 2
B YHEFEHEVWETHSZ2EEK
¥ EBRAEERAFEAERBEMEES
ZHEWABRMTRE - =M NEERAKF
B2ZDBRARREHRITRE - AR
BIREMEZ A FEEAEUNRES LT
EHEMRE -

RAFE  AEBEREMEREZHBUKRA
HFFN16,275,0008 L (ZF = —F ¢
16,268,000/ 7C) - AR BERBBBIRE
YI¥E 214,418,000 (ZF = —F :
14,561,000/ 7T) bA K 2R B #7103 % & 1) 3%
21,857,000 7t (=& = — 4 : 1,707,000
BIT) o REBBREME ZWARHR D -
DHEZARNUREAZITTES ZEHEN
EEIHERERGETHEHP ZHESBER
L BERAFELTHRHPZERESER
HRAFERE - REFNMEREMEZK
ABFEN DEZHRETZRENIER
ZAHAAEE BT MFTE -

RERESHR  REMER AT EEET
B RAFE  REMEFFSATEEK
#15,502,0008 L (ZE=Z—5F : A FEME
Ei1819,486,0008 L) - RAFE - KRB B
Z W E Y FE 15 A B E Y E:500,000% 7T
—ZT - —F: RF{EEEE22900,000/%
T TR ET N 2 B W E R A F E A%
B AFEEWKER5002,0008 T (=T =—
& 13,414,000 L) °
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As a result of the aforesaid, the segment result turned from a
loss of HK$5,896,000 last year to a profit of HK$28,284,000

for the Year.

For the Year, the Group's investment properties achieved an
average occupancy rate of 98.8% (2021: 99.7%) with an
average annual rental yield of 3.0% (2021: 3.0%).

Securities Trading

The Group's portfolio of securities consisted of the blue chips

in the Hong Kong stock market.

Securities trading segment recorded a gain of HK$3,385,000
for the Year (2021: HK$9,776,000), which mainly represented
net realised and unrealised losses of HK$1,671,000 (2021:
net realised and unrealised gains of HK$8,079,000) on equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss and dividend
income of HK$5,077,000 (2021: HK$1,319,000) from equity

investments at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss amounted to HK$80,075,000
(2021: HK$96,537,000). There was no individual equity
investment held by the Group with market value more than
5% of the net assets value of the Group. The details of the
Group's equity investments as at 31 March 2022 were as

below:

BB SR 5T

ERElRERE »HEEBREFEZEE
5,896,000 Tt # AKX FE Z & 7
28,284,000/ TT ©

RAFE AEEREWEZFHHBRE
£988% (T -—F :99.7%) MFHE

FHEWFZXNAIOD(ZFE - —F:
3.0%) °

EEEHE

AEB 2 BHBEAREEEREMB 2 ES
A% o

RAFE - FHEED HEEFIE3,385,000
B (ZZT=Z—4%:9,776,000 L) r H=E
ZERERATEBEFABZORERENEE
WRARFIREEFHELE71,0008 T (ZF
——F: BEH RORE IR KA 58,079,000
BIL)ARRATFEESABZNRERE
2 & B A5,077,0008 L (Z T = —F ¢
1,319,000/ 7T) °

RZZTZZF=A=+—H0 AEBZEA
TEEFAEGONRERELER
80,075,000 7T (=& = — % : 96,537,000
BL) AEEVEFAEMBEEMGELRS
EEEFEBBASOERNBRERE A&
BR-_ZT-_—_F=-A=t+—BZBREREZ
AIEHINT
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EEET RS

Name of stock listed on the
stock exchange of Hong Kong
(Stock Code)

REEBXF LT 2RH 28
(R 5E)

CK Hutchison Holdings Limited
RINCEXBRAA
(0001)

Power Assets Holdings Limited
BEREXBRAA
(0006)

China Construction Bank Corporation
PEERRITROERDA
(0939)

China Mobile Limited
HEBZEHER AT
(0941)

CK Infrastructure Holdings Limited
RIZREEARAF
(1038)

CK Asset Holdings Limited
RIEXSEERRA
(1113)

Ping An Insurance (Group) Company
of China, Ltd.

hETZRR (EE)RHERAF

(2318)

Bank of China Limited
FERITRDBRA R
(3988)

Total for equity investments at fair value through profit or loss

BRFEEFARSNHBREREAR

Number of
shares held

BER®G
pd 4=

90,000

60,000

3,800,000

340,000

100,000

70,000

170,000

4,000,000

Percentage of
shareholding
held

BERG
ZADH

0.0023

0.0028

0.0016

0.0017

0.0040

0.0019

0.0023

0.0048

Percentage to

Investment Market  net assets value
cost value of the Group
EEREE
BE EEFE
A miE ZHED
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FiER
4,840 5,180 0.27
2,659 3,060 0.16
21,114 22,382 1.17
16,962 18,394 0.95
4725 5,240 0.27
3,371 3,759 0.20
8,669 9,460 0.49
11,311 12,600 0.66
73,651 80,075 4.17
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2022, the Company had outstanding
guarantees of HK$130,000,000 (2021: HK$190,000,000)
given to banks to secure general credit facility for certain
subsidiaries. No credit facility was utilised by subsidiaries from
such guarantees at the end of the reporting period (2021:
Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 March 2022, the Group's self-occupied office units

and a car park at Shun Tak Centre with an aggregate net book
value of HK$118,075,000 (2021: HK$122,773,000),
investment properties at Kwai Chung Plaza with fair value of
HK$183,000,000 (2021: HK$183,000,000), securities with
market value of HK$80,075,000 (2021: HK$96,537,000) and
rental receivables with carrying amount of HK$121,000
(2021: HK$3,462,000) were pledged to banks and securities
dealers for loan facilities worth HK$171,610,000 (2021:
HK$231,846,000) granted to the Group. As at 31 March
2022, the Group did not use any loan facility (2021: Nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group maintained a sound financial condition. As at 31
March 2022, the Group had net current assets of
HK$921,104,000 (2021: HK$1,102,889,000) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company worth
HK$1,579,704,000 (2021: HK$1,582,541,000).

As at 31 March 2022, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group were HK$401,548,000 (2021: HK$454,297,000),
which were held predominately in Hong Kong dollar,

Singapore dollar and United States dollar.

EEET R

RREE
RZEZZF=A=+—H XRAIH TR
T2 R{EEFEREEA130,000,000% T (=ZF
——4% : 190,000,000 7T) ' fERE THE
RAIER —REEMEZER - RNREH
K ZENBARTEHREMZEERE
MERE(ZT_—F : &) -

EEKH

RZEBEZZF=ZA=+—H  xXE£BEEF
B4 118,075,000 L (Z T = —F :
122,773,000 7T) 2R fE5@+F 02 B B
MAEBEURAEML: R TFEE
183,000,000 T (=& = — % :
183,000,000 7T) 2RI M E R E 5 2 18 &
Y% - M5B (E80,0750008 L (ZE=—
% : 96,537,000/ 70) 2 B HARKRE S5
121,000/ 7T (ZF — — 4 : 3,462,000/ 7T)
ZEKHEE BERTROEERRSE
NERE FALEEI71,610,0008 T (ZF
——% 231,846,000 7T) ZBEERK o 1
ZEZZF=A=+—H AKBEYLEFHH
TRZBMEER(ZTE-_—F &) -

RBEERMBER
AEE®RFRIFZHMBRR - RZT =
ZA=Z+—RB AEBEZRDEEFER
921,104,000 Tt (=& = — & :
1,102,889,000% 7T ) A R Al HE A A FE1L #2
% /%1,579,704,0008 T (=T = — 4 :
1,582,541,0008 ) °

R-_E-_—_F=HA=+—H A"EENESL
NI 4 S B A401,548,0008 L (Z T =—
F : 454,297,000 7C) + EELAAETT - 0
WITRETHA -
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A loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the
Group's subsidiary as at 31 March 2022 was approximately
HK$71,823,000 (2021: HK$71,823,000). The loan was
denominated in United States dollar, which was unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had an amount due to an
intermediate holding company of HK$40,000,000 (2021:
HK$40,000,000) which was unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

At the end of the reporting date, the Group's gearing ratio,
calculated as total indebtedness divided by equity attributable
to owners of the Company, was 7.1% (2021: 7.1%). Total
indebtedness represents a loan advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, amount due

to an intermediate holding company and lease liabilities.

Stringent cost control measures have already been in place to
monitor the day-to-day operational and administrative
expenses. The management will continue to closely review the
Group's financial resources in a cautious manner and explore
opportunities in potential financial institutions financing and
equity funding. Taking into consideration the Group’s current
financial resources, the directors believe that the Group will
have adequate fund for its continual operation and

development.

REBHRBARZIHEERBRRRBN 2EFRR
ZEZF=HA=+—H#71,823,000/% T
—Z - —14F :71,823,000870) c 2B U
ETREEEN WAEER RERERE
TREE -

RZEBEZZF=A=+—H AEBEEF
H R A B 30 1840,000,0008 T (= F
= — 4 1 40,000,000 7T) - B & &k THE
Hif - REREARERERSR -

RBEBMR AEBZERNBEL X (RE
BEERANRRAHEBEARGERTE) R
TA%(ZTE=—F :7.1%) - BEBKELRE
BB AR IEERRRERBN ZER - B
FREERABDREUAREESE -

AEEDRIERE 2 RAZEBITER - AER
BRERERTHAX BEEEHSHENE
BEAABNERARE I HER U FK
BHETREBREREREMREES T E 2K
Q2 REBAKBENZUMBER EFM
E - AEEKEARAESHERELER
BRZM -
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Equity Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in securities, which are listed on the stock
exchange of Hong Kong and are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. The management
will closely monitor the price movements and the changes in
market conditions that may affect the value of the securities
and will consider taking appropriate actions to minimise the

risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group's revenue and costs were denominated in
Hong Kong dollar and Singapore dollar. The Group's cash and
cash equivalents were held predominately in Hong Kong
dollar, Singapore dollar and United States dollar. A loan
advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the Group's
subsidiary was denominated in United States dollar. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should that need arise.

BB SR 5T

FTERRBRFAHBAREE
B 8 {5 4% B Bg
Zii’iIE%JJI,\M%%&é{FﬁFEE’JHX%{EV
CBRAREEREBHMET - WK
t‘:HH?H MEMMERTE - EEEHEY
ERVHEETETFEENBREDRTS
RAEE M WK eERRKREETE AU
RERERR -

P EE [ B
7N 5 B K A0 WA R B AR 35 DA 7T R R N3
TREREM - AEEZRERBFSEFEY
FEUBT FMETRETREEEN -
REBMB AR 2 FERRREBNRN 2 G
%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁu A& E B AL AR SNE E
B R BEEEERYERIIERR
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Credit Risk

The Group mainly focuses on conducting loan and lease
transactions with high quality customers and obtaining
sufficient collaterals as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults. In most cases, the Group grants
loan with a loan-to-value ratio of no more than 70%. The
Group continues to monitor the property market and the
collateral value of the underlying mortgage loan portfolio so
that appropriate risk response can be taken. The Group will
consider taking legal actions, when necessary, as a means to
recover the debts in default. In addition, the Group reviews
the recovery of each individual debt, including but not limited
to rental receivables, mortgage loan and interest receivables
and unsecured personal loan and interest receivables at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are provided for irrecoverable amounts. In
the opinion of the directors, the credit risk is significantly

reduced.

FHLEEEEERLA

FERR
AEETFREINHBETPETERLE
EXZ UBMBRAZERam  ARIEREEZE
MMEBRRZMFERNER - EAZ BT
AT REBH L ERE - EXEMBEL R
(RIBRE) TEHEIB70% - AEESAEER
EMETSUARERREEREAA 2ER R
BE KEMENAENRRELEE -EF
FER AKESZTERIEZTH  FR
WEEWERZTTE < I REBESRR
EHREAZENERZATEEER - B85
(BETRRN) BEHE BEZRBERIF
B AR EWEERILAERLAE - AHE
R AR E SRR MEEBE -&EF
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a total of 31 staff
(2021: 32 staff), including six executive directors but
excluding three independent non-executive directors. The
employee benefit expense (including directors’ emoluments)
was HK$19,456,000 for the Year (2021: HK$21,067,000). As
the Group was still affected by outbreak of COVID-19, all
executive directors and certain senior staff of the Company
voluntarily agreed to waive their basic monthly salary by 25%
and 15% temporarily and respectively with effect from 1
November 2020 until further notice. Remuneration packages
for employees and directors are periodically reviewed
according to market conditions as well as individual's and the
Group's performance. Benefits plans maintained by the Group
include salary increment, mandatory provident fund scheme,
medical insurance, share option scheme and discretionary
bonuses. As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 132,800,000
(2021: 132,800,000) outstanding share options granted to

eligible directors and employees of the Group.

DISPOSAL OF CRUISE SHIP — LEISURE WORLD
On 22 April 2021, the Group, through an indirect non-wholly

owned subsidiary, entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to sell the cruise ship “Leisure World"
for demolition purpose only, at a consideration of
approximately US$3,592,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,909,000). The disposal was completed on 25 May
2021, resulting in a gain on disposal of HK$714,000. The
Group's share of relevant aggregate revaluation surplus
realised of HK$4,730,000 included in the asset revaluation
reserve was transferred to retained profits. The disposal
constituted a discloseable transaction and subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. For details of the disposal, please refer to

the Company's announcement dated 22 April 2021.

TR E RS
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RZBE-_—F=ZA=+—H A&B2EE
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled on
Wednesday, 21 September 2022 (the “Annual General
Meeting”). For determining the entitlement to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Friday, 16 September 2022 to
Wednesday, 21 September 2022, both days inclusive, during
which period, no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
all transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (if the
transfer will be lodged before 15 August 2022) or 17/F., Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong (if the
transfer will be lodged on or after 15 August 2022), for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 15
September 2022.

FHLEEEEERLA
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The board of directors of the Company (the "Board”) is
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices at all times. The Board believes that
good corporate governance helps the Company to safeguard
the interests of its shareholders and to enhance the

performance of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 31 March
2022, save and except for code provision F.2.2 which
stipulates that the chairman of the board should attend the

annual general meeting.

Mr. Ng Wee Keat, being the chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 28 September 2021 due to the travel restrictions
under COVID-19 pandemic. In his absence, Mr. Yu Wai Man,
the executive director of the Company attended and took the
chair of the said annual general meeting and ensured the

proceedings of the meeting were conducted in order.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of
the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, all of them confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance. The Board has delegated to the
senior management of the Company the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group. These responsibilities include implementing
decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating day-to-day
operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the
Board, formulating and monitoring the operation and budgets,

and supervising and monitoring the control systems.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Composition (continued)

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board has at all times met the requirements of rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors
representing one-third of the Board and at least one of the
independent non-executive directors have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a written confirmation of their
independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that each of them is independent in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

Biographical details of the directors (including the relationships
among members of the Board) are set out under the section
headed "Directors’ Biographies” on pages 76 to 81 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed on pages 76 to 81 of this
annual report, the Board members do not have any family,

financial or business relationship with each other.

In compliance with code provision C.1.8 of the CG Code, the
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of potential legal actions against its directors. The insurance

coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Attendance of Board Meetings and General Meeting

During the Year, the Company held 7 board meetings and one

general meeting.
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Attendance of Board Meetings and General Meeting
(continued)

The attendance record of each director at the meetings of the
Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Audit Committee and the annual general

meeting during the Year is set out as below:

Directors Board
EZ S
Executive Directors BTEE

Mr. Ng Wee Keat BEREGLE 717
Ms. Sio lon Kuan BBz 7/7
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda EBERLT 117
Ms. Lilian Ng BNERL 717
Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRisEz T 7/7
Mr. Yu Wai Man FENFKE /7

Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok KB 7/7
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth BRI E /7
Mr. Ho Yau Ming MRALE 6/7

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in order to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed

and relevant.

During the Year, all directors have participated various external
seminars relevant to the directors’ duties and responsibilities
or the accounting issues. The Company has received from
each of the directors their individual training record for the

Year.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles

of chairman and chief executive should be separate. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.
The Company did not officially have a position of chief
executive officer since 2 March 2012. During the Year, Mr. Ng
Wee Keat, the chairman of the Board, provided leadership to
the Board to ensure that the Board worked effectively and all
important issues were discussed and dealt with in a timely
manner. The Board will continue to review the effectiveness
of the Group's structure as business continues to grow and
develop in order to assess whether any changes, including the

appointment of a chief executive officer, are necessary.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years as referred to the bye-law 87
of the Company where provides that at each annual general
meeting one-third of the directors of the Company for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has
established three board committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Audit Committee (collectively the “Committees”) with clearly-
defined written terms of references. The Board delegated the
authority to the Committees and provided the Committees
with sufficient resources to perform their duties. Upon
reasonable request, they are able to seek independent

professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

Remuneration Committee

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the

Remuneration Committee Members are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ng Wee Keat
Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok (Chairman)
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

The Company has adopted the model whereby the
Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive

directors and senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for

developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals

and objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive directors;

4. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group;

5. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair

and not excessive;

6. to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and

appropriate; and

7. to ensure that no director or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Annual Report 2022 F

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEEGRE

EEEBTMWEES (&)
FMEEE (E)
TMEEe T ERERBENT

1. BARFEERSREEAENZES
MBS R 2848 - RBLERS ER M A E A
EHREFHIHHBER  mE=gRd
et

2. AEEFEMIICENSHEBERMRR
RitEEREENHMES

3. BEMITEENFMRE=SRLES

4. ERRBAAZAGFH - B L0
R T B 75 A T 5 B 7 1 BB 7 4 4 P 05
s

5. A RHERATEERSREEAR
MERKIRIBBEXREMAH
BE - UERZERERS OER -2

SR BE (:.\Z\’HI KB BETARF

B TEUA

+

6. MERMEREFRTRREMERELE
REREFMPRNBERS - AR
HZELTHFEAGNGR - BX b?ﬁié
WGER—B ARBENAREE
K

7. BRENESFHETABEAT TSR
BEERSOHMH -

31



32

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B EF B ER 2 A

Annual Report 2022 3§

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEEGRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the Year:

1. to review the remuneration package of the directors; and

2. to recommend to the Board on the year-end bonus of

executive directors.

The remuneration of members of the senior management for

the Year is set out below:

In the band of

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

Nomination Committee

Number of individuals

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the

Nomination Committee Members are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

ESEBRTHNZRES (H)
FHESS ()
AT A MERGRAFEAMETIEZH

&5 -
z=

1. MAEFZHAMEGE: K

2. RREFCRARNTESTBEREREL -

RAFE  SMEBRBKREZHMEINDT

£ = AR

= % 1,000,000 7T 2
1,000,001/ 7T £ 1,500,000/% 7T 1
1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,00078 7T 3

RBEZEE
RAFERBEAFTREAB AL -
EREWMT

HITEF
BEGEE(EZE)
RIESLEE

BILIHHNTEF
REESEE
FARR G2 e
(OREEF S



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available

on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee

are:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the

Company's corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for

directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-

executive directors; and

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive.

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Nomination Committee during the Year:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

2. to assess the independence of independent non-

executive directors; and

3. to recommend to the Board on the reappointment of the

retiring directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Diversity

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in September
2013, which set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that

the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Board consists of a diverse mix of the members with
different appropriate skills, knowledge, experience and gender

to promote and achieve better performance of the Company.

The gender ratio of the directors of the Company for the Year

is set out as follows:

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

directors directors

Male 5 56
Female 4 44

The Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the
Board. After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and
experience to the Company's business, the Nomination
Committee considered that the existing Board was
appropriately structured and no change was required. The
Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

In addition, the total workforce (including senior management)
by gender of the Group for the Year is set out as follows:

Percentage of

Number of the Group’s
employees employees
Male 13 42
Female 18 58

The Company has adopted a nomination policy in January
20109.

Objective

The objective of the nomination policy is to provide a
framework and set standards to assist the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship so as to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following
criteria (as reference) in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for directorships:

1. character and integrity;

2. qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company's business and corporate strategy;

3. willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a Board member and other directorships and
significant commitments;

4. requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules; and

5. board diversity policy and any measure objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Selection criteria (continued)

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be

exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the

discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director of the Company
and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in

relation to their standing for election as a director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if considered

necessary.

Nomination procedure

1. The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a
meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any,
for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to
its meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put
forward candidates who are not nominated by Board

members.

2. For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations for the Board's
consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to
stand for election or re-election at a general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the

Board for its consideration and recommendation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination procedure (continued)

3.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the Board to stand for election at a general
meeting, and to invite nominations from shareholders, a
circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will set
out the lodgment period for shareholders to make the
nominations. The names, brief biographies (including
qualifications and relevant experience), independence,
proposed remuneration and any other information, as
required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included

in the circular to shareholders.

The shareholder of the Company may also propose a
person for election as a director, details of which are set
out in the “Procedures for Proposing a Person for Election
as a Director by Shareholders” which is also available on

the website of the Company.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for

election or re-election at any general meeting.

Review and disclosure of the nomination policy

1.

The Board will from time to time review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the

Nomination Policy.

The Company shall disclose this nomination policy in its
corporate governance report in compliance with the

Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the

Audit Committee Members are as follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok (Chairman)
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

One of the independent non-executive directors possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules. Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of

its resignation or dismissal;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s

independence and objectivity;

3. to develop and implement policy on engaging an external

auditor to supply non-audit services;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

4. to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report, and to
review significant financial reporting judgements

contained in them;

5. to review the Company's financial controls, the risk

management and internal control systems;

6. to review the Group's financial and accounting policies

and practices; and

7. to review the external auditor's management letter and to
ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor's management

letter.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during the Year:

1. to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021 and to recommend

them to the Board for approval;

2. to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the unaudited interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September
2021 and to recommend them to the Board for approval;

and

3. to review the risk management and internal control

systems of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions as required under the CG
Code:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior

management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

directors; and

5. to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the above corporate governance functions
have been performed and executed by the Board and the
Board has reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG
Code.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the Year under review, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company's auditor, Ernst & Young for audit and non-

audit services to the Group, is set out as below:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$

Audit services 1,680,000
Non-audit services

— Interim Review 420,000
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2022.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the

Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
its responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 90 to 100 of this

annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems for the Group. The systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss.

The management of the Company has established internal
audit function. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance of applicable laws, rules

and regulations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

The Board has overseen the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls has been
conducted, and considered that the systems are effective and
adequate. The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications, experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions and considered that they are

adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Suet Vi, is

responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. During the Year, Ms. Ng has taken no less than 15

hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convene a Special General Meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company, shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Send Enquiries to the Board

The Company's corporate website (http://www.ncgrp.com.hk)
provides postal address, email address, fax number and
telephone number by which shareholders of the Company may
at any time address their concerns or enquires to the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

(i) The procedures for proposing a person for election as a

(i)

director of the Company at shareholders’ meetings are

set out in the “Corporate Governance” section of the

Company's corporate website.

The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows:

(2)

(b)

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company may submit a
written requisition to propose resolution(s) through

requisition of a special general meeting.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of
the voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders
of the Company may submit a written requisition to
propose resolution(s) at the next annual general

meeting.

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

state the resolution(s) with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the shareholders’

meeting;

be signed by the requisitionist(s);

specify the full name and address of the
requisitionist(s), as they appear in the Company's

share register of shareholders;

specify the class and number of shares which are
beneficially owned by the requisitionist(s) on the

date of such written requisition or notice; and
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings (continued)

(i) The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows: (continued)

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must (continued)

(e) be deposited at the registered office of the Company
with a copy to the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit
3808, 38th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the board of directors of the

Company or the company secretary of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings and other general meetings to communicate

with them and encourage their participation.

In addition, the Company also communicates to its shareholders
through interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
All such reports, announcements and circulars can also be
accessed via the Company's website (http://www.ncgrp.com.hk)

and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly by
the Board to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with the

prevailing regulatory and other requirements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) in January 2019.

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company,
provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount,
the Board shall take into account, among others, inter alia, the

following factors:

(i) the Group's financial results;

(i) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity
position;

(iii) the Group's expected working capital requirements and

future expansion plans;

(iv) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company and each of the members of the Group; and

(v) any other factors that the Board may consider

appropriate.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the bye-laws of

the Company and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be

proposed or declared in any given period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there was no change
in the Company's constitutional documents, and these
documents are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report provides an update of the environmental, social
and governance ("ESG") of the Group during the period from
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 (the “Reporting Period”) and
is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide under

Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules (the “ESG Report”).

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board Statement

A company's success is not solely measured by its financial
performance, but also by the extent to its contribution to the
lives of its customers, employees and other stakeholders from
a wider world. Therefore, as an important leadership role of
the Company, the Board takes full responsibility for the
Company's ESG strategy and reporting by taking
environmental, social and corporate governance considerations
into business operations and ensuring the awareness within
the organisation of the importance of sustainability to its long-

term success.

Over the past years, the Company has conducted materiality
assessments of ESG issues concerned by its stakeholders, in
which the Board participated in the evaluation, prioritization,
and management of important ESG issues and put in place an
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
supervision system. The Company has also set environmental
targets associated with its businesses and conducts regular

reviews of the progress of environmental targets.

A more comprehensive review of the Company's performance

is provided in the Group's ESG Report in the following section.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

We have taken the following reporting principles into account

in development of the ESG report.

Materiality

The ESG Report is structured based on the materiality of
respectively sustainability issues as assessed and identified
with stakeholder engagement. The Board and the
management regularly review the sustainability issues that are
most significant to our business and operations, and consider
the issues discussed in the ESG Report to be material to the

Group.

Quantitative

The ESG Report provides information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools, and
source of conversion factors used for the reporting emissions
and energy consumption are mainly referred to the ESG

Reporting Guide.

Balance

The ESG Report provides an unbiased picture of the Group's
performance during the Year, to avoid selections, omissions,
or presentation formats that may in appropriately influence the

decision or judgement made by the report reader.

Consistency
The Group uses consistent methodologies to allow for
meaningful comparisons of ESG data and enables the

stakeholders to understand the Group's performances.

REPORTING BOUNDARY

Unless otherwise stated, information disclosed in the ESG
Report cover the Group's businesses including, money lending,
cruise ship charter services, property investment and securities
trading for the year ended 31 March 2022.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands that its responsibility to all
stakeholders and recognises that understanding the needs and
expectations of stakeholders is the key to success of the
Group. Therefore, the Group values the views of different
stakeholders and their opinions on our business and ESG
matters. A summary of the stakeholders, topics concerned and

communication channels are as follows:

KhESR
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Stakeholders Topics Concerned Communication Channels

BFHE BEHRE BRARE

Stock Exchange e Compliance of listing rules, e Meetings, training, workshops,

B 22 B timely and accurate publishing programs, website updates and
of announcements announcements
Br EHARR B R ERE T B ItED G848
HEQE WEMRRE

Government and Regulatory ~ +«  Compliance with laws and

Authorities regulations
BT K B2 B He s BPER KA

e Fulfilment of tax obligation

BT &

+  Government inspections
BT AR 52

¢ Compliance report or
questionnaire
ARMELHES

¢ Statutory filings and notification
R TE 18 Ko s A

e Taxreturns

W&



STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued)

Stakeholders
50E

Investors and Shareholders

REEMBRR

Customers
®P

Business Partners and
Suppliers
BEIUGHEEY A
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Topics Concerned
B X AR

»  Corporate governance
TXRER

e Business strategies and
performance
EBRBERKRE

. Investment returns
% & [0

e Quality services

BE R

e Reasonable price
BIEER

*  Protection of privacy
RERLE

¢ Quality of products or services

EmIREGNER

RR - HEREGRE

K ESRE)

Communication Channels

BERE

e Shareholders’ meetings

RERE

e Annual and interim reports
Fw&PEBRE

*  Announcements and circulars

«  Company website

N Ak

e Emails and phone
B N E A

«  Site visits
B RN

*  Business meetings
R

e Company website

NGIE R

*  Business meetings
EEE

+  Contract and agreements
B k=

e Emails and phone

EBNER
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued)

Stakeholders

B0 E

Employees

(==

Community

a2

Topics Concerned

B X HYERE

*  Remuneration and benefit
B K2 48 A

«  Employee compensation
EEWIE

+  Training and development
ol M B R

e Working hours
TAERFER

e Working environment
TR

e Environmental protection
BRI

¢ Employment
GIES

*  Helping people in need and
poverty relief

HOEREENRKE

FHLEEEEERLA

K ESRE)

Communication Channels

Interviews with employees
HEEaw

Employee performance appraisal
BERBEEZ

Internal meetings

MEb &

Training and seminars

Bl LA E

Employee handbook

B8 F

Email and internal memos

EBR A ERS

Supporting charitable
organisations

NI RERE

Employees’ voluntary participation
in community services

EE B2 ELRRY
Charitable donations

HERE
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

The Group is principally engaged in the business of
money lending, cruise ship charter services, property
investment and securities trading. The operations of the
Group do not involve any production process, hence

there is no obvious exhaust emissions.

The Group's air and greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions
data during the Reporting Period and the year 2021 are

as follows:

Unit
B
Air Emissions
&R BE K
Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) kg
=R o) T
Sulphur Oxides (SO)) kg
el T
Particulate Matter (PM) kg
BB T
GHG Emissions
BERBHER
Scope 1: Direct emissions tCO.e
HEN : BRI M—SRES
Scope 2: Indirect emissions tCO,e
FE2 : RE PR M — S E &
Greenhouse gas intensity tCO,e
(per employee) MRS LIRS 2
RERREE

Al.

RR - HEREGRE

T
23587

RAEEFERENE  HHREERS
MEREBEARBHEEE - AEEH
BB RAMAEERBE - Bt
3 A 7] BR R RE SRBE R o

AEERBEHER_—_ZE - —FENE
RERERB(DRERE] HENAIE

2022 2021
—E_C —ET-—%F
1.17 0.73

0.04 0.04

0.09 0.05

6.17 6.05

70.19 96.07

2.46 3.19
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Notes:

1. Scope 1 refers to the direct emissions from vehicles that

are owned by the Group.

2. Scope 2 refers to the indirect emissions resulting from the
generation of purchased electricity consumed by the

Group.

3. The emission factors used are based on the requirements
in "How to prepare an ESG report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock

Exchange.

We have adopted energy saving initiatives mentioned in

the section “Use of Resources” of the ESG Report.

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

The Group recognises the importance of waste reduction.
Waste management measures have been introduced to
minimise the amount of waste generated and reduce
impact of our operation on the environment. The small
amount of hazardous waste generated from the
Company's office activities, such as toner cartridges, is
collected by qualified organizations for environmentally
friendly disposal. Non-hazardous waste includes waste
papers of approximately 0.71 tonnes (2021: 0.55
tonnes) which are collected by specialised recycling

company on a regular basis for effective recycling.

Due to the Company's business nature, the Group is not
aware of any non-compliance of laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.
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Use of Resources

The Group's energy and resources consumption data

during the Reporting Period and the year 2021 are as

follows:

Direct Energy Consumption
HERRHE
Petrol
7T
Intensity (per vehicle)

ZE (SHAE)

Indirect Energy Consumption

& 5 B ROE #E

Electricity

B
Intensity (per sq.m. of floor area)
RE(BFAHAEEEE)

Resources Consumption
BERHERE
Paper
MR
Intensity (per employee)

BE(SEEE)

Unit
By

Litres
ﬂ_
Litres

ﬂ,

kWh
T ELBF
kWh
TRE

Tonnes
0]
Tonnes
L7

The Group is vigilant to conserve energy, water and

resources as to relieve global concern of resource

depletion. Hence, we have initiated the following

measures to promote responsible use of resources.

5 - dERESRE

A. RIE (&)

A2. ERERA
AEBRREHEE S —FEME
BRREREFESENT

2022 2021
—E_ —ET-—%F
2,614.15 2,561.59
871.38 853.86
152,358.00 165,324.00
138.37 150.15
8.92 8.52

0.29 0.27

BIEEHOER  KMER - A4
KEBERMBHES - Bk - B
EHEITUA T i AR B F E(E
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

Electricity consumption

«  The Group advocates employees to switch off idle

lightings, computers, office equipment and air-

conditioning systems when they are not in use.

«  The Group has adopted energy saving practices in

its office building.

«  The traditional fluorescent tubes have been replaced
by LED tubes in the offices.

Fuel consumption
«  Regular maintenance on the Group's vehicles is
carried out to ensure a high fuel efficiency to reduce

emissions.

Water consumption

«  Water saving notices has been posted in pantry to

promote water conservation and usage awareness.

«  Prompt repair and maintenance when there is

dripping, spraying and leaky faucets.

Water consumption of the Group is entirely generated
from domestic usage in the office building. However, the
head office in Hong Kong has no water consumption
recorded as the water consumption charges are included
in the building management fee so that the water bills
will not be calculated separately. Since the main source
of waste water came from domestic use, the overall level

of water pollution is relatively low.
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A2. Use of Resources (continued)
Paper consumption
«  The use of digital copies is promoted in the office to

save papers and to recycle envelopes that are used

for issuing internal documents and letters.

«  Double-side printing and copying.

«  Electronic means of corporate communications to
shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to
receive corporate communication documents by
using electronic means through the Company's

website so as to reduce the paper consumption.

« Increasing the portion of digital marketing tools and

cutting down the paper advertisement.

Packing material consumption
«  The Group, as a non-consumer goods manufacturer,
does not consume any packaging materials in its

principal business.

A2.
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A3.

A4.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
The Environment and Natural Resources

The business activities of the Group have no direct/
significant impact on environment and natural resources.
The Group nonetheless commits to using natural
resources efficiently while we encourage the reuse and
recycling of materials during our daily operations. In
addition, the Group is committed in applying industry
best practices and complying with legislation, establishing
and reviewing safety, security, and environmental goals
and targets, effectively using energy and materials,
reducing waste and emissions, and communicating our

environmental protection policy to all employees.

Meanwhile, the Group recognises that businesses must
take responsibility for being a role model of industry in
relation to sustainability of the environment, and we
should bear the responsibilities and fulfill the obligations

in protecting them.

Climate Change

The Group is aware that climate changes would have
significant impact on its business operations and its
property may be damaged by extreme weather
conditions, e.g. typhoons, rainstorms and earthquakes,
which may further affect the safety of our employees.
The Group identified, evaluated and managed the
climate-related risks. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has not been seriously affected by extreme
weather conditions as the Group has set up various
emergency plans to prevent the disruption of our
business operations and to safeguard the safety of our
employees such as working arrangement under typhoon
signal no. 8 and black rainstorm warning. In the future,
the Group will continue to closely monitor the effect and
potential risks of climate change, and to improve and
implement the measures taken to reduce such climate-

related risks.

A3.

A4.
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SOCIAL

. Employment

Employees are regarded as valuable assets and core
competitive advantage of the Group. Policies and
regulations principally adopted by the Group in respect of
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare have

been clearly stated in the employee handbook.

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with all
the relevant laws, regulations and requirements including
but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57),
the Employee’s Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282), the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap
485) and the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608) and
did not find any violations of laws and regulations and

requirements in relation to Employment.
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SOCIAL (continued)

B1. Employment (continued)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a total number of

31 full-time employees (2021: 32 full-time employees).

The key performance indicators related to the employee

structure and the employee turnover rate for the

Reporting Period and the year 2021 are as follows:

Employee structure
By gender
Male

Female

By age group
Under 30
Aged 30 to 50
Aged over 50

By category
Senior Management
Middle Management
General Staff

By geographical region
Hong Kong

Singapore

BER®E

R P
B

g

RERARE D
30 AT

308% E508%
5088 A £

BER 8D
SREEE
RAREEE

—RET

Bt EE D
=5
b

HE (&)

. B (&)

R-E-_—_F=ZA=+—8 A&£EEZ
PREEBAHIA(ZTZ—F: 28
BEI2A) RBEHER T —F
EEHEERBEREERKLLEERE
BREROT

2022 2021
—_E_-— —E-—%F
Number of Number of
employees employees

EEAH BEAH
13 14
18 18

1 1
17 17
13 14
6 6
13 14
12 12
24 32
7 0
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B1. Employment (continued) B1. f&f% (&)
2022 2021
—E-C& —E-—F
Number of Number of
resigned/ resigned/
retired Turnover retired Turnover
employees rate  employees rate
BE B
EikER RHKEE
IN | R b= A iiE S
(Note) (Note)
(Bt =E) (B &E)
Employee turnover rate EERKLLE
By gender ey
Male St 1 3% 1 3%
Female g i 0 0% 0 0%
By age group RERARE D
Under 30 30T 0 0% 0 0%
Aged 30 to 50 3038 E508% 0 0% 0 0%
Aged over 50 5055 bA £ 1 3% 1 3%
By geographical region R EE D
Hong Kong B8 1 3% 1 3%
Singapore % 0 0% 0 0%
Note: Turnover rate refers to total number of resigned/retired BaE : kb RIENTRE B A B R IK
employees divided by the average number of employees EEREBRATHEE AH -

during the Reporting Period.
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SOCIAL (continued)

. Employment (continued)

Compensation and dismissal

The Group offers competitive remuneration and benefits
to attract and retain the talents. The remuneration of
each employee will be determined with reference to a
number of factors including educational background,
experience, job duties, professional skills and technical
capabilities, as well as salary level for similar job positions
in the industry. An employee may be dismissed in case
of serious or persistent beaches of discipline or convicted

of a criminal offence.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group treats all the employees equally. Their
employment, remuneration and promotion will not be
affected by their social identities such as ethnicity, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation,
marital status, pregnancy, disability and political beliefs.
The level of compensation of the employees is reviewed
annually in an annual appraisal on their performance
basis, during which process each employee is given equal

opportunity for promotion.

Working hours and rest periods

The Group understands the importance of “work-life
balance” to the employees and adopts five to six days
workweek dependent on level of duty and nature of
operations involved to ensure that the employees have
adequate rest. The Group determines working hours and
rest periods for the employees in line with Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and employment contracts with
the employees. In addition to statutory holidays, the
employees are also entitled to other paid holidays
including annual leave, sick leave, marriage and
compassionate leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and

compensation leave.
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. Employment (continued)

Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination
The Group believes in the power of diversity, as it
believes that a varied workforce is essential to business
continuity. Therefore, the Group is committed to creating
and maintaining an embracing and collaborative
workplace culture. The Group aims to provide equal
opportunities in all aspects of employment and ensure
the workplace is free from discrimination, physical or
verbal harassment against any individual based on race,
religion, colour, gender, physical or mental capability, age,
place of origin, marital status, and sexual orientation. The
Group also strives to ensure that complaints, afflictions
and concerns, including whistle-blowing, are dealt with
promptly and confidentially. The Group has zero
tolerance for sexual harassment or abuse in the

workplace in any form.

Benefits and welfare

«  Benefits plans maintained by the Group include
mandatory provident fund (“MPF") scheme, medical
insurance, group life insurance and discretionary

bonuses.

« Eligible employees are rewarded through the
Group's share option scheme and have the
opportunity to acquire shares of the Company

through this scheme.

«  Providing free fruit at work and encouraging our

employees to make healthy food choices.

«  Festive gifts were given to the employees.

«  Birthday celebrations were held for the employees

from time to time.
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B2.

SOCIAL (continued)

. Employment (continued)

Benefits and welfare (continued)

On top of the statutory requirement, the Group makes
voluntary contributions to the MPF to enhance retirement
protection of the employees. The Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Group received the Good MPF
Employer Awards for 2020/2021 presented by the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing the employees a
safe, healthy and hygienic working environment. The
following sets out the practices adopted by the Group in

relation to workplace:

«  Office employees are assigned with individual
workstations. Offices are properly lit and ventilated,
kept clean and tidy with ample space between
workstations;

+  Office furniture and fittings are well-maintained and

replaced when necessary;

«  Smoking and drinking alcohol in workplace are
strictly prohibited;

«  Cleaning of air-conditioning systems and disinfection

treatment of carpets are carried out regularly;

« Air defender and purifiers are equipped to protect
environment with antibacterial efficacy and to

remove air-suspended dust and odour;
«  First-aid boxes are set up in the offices; and
«  Security measures are in place at the offices to

restrict entry and exit only to staff and permitted
visitors.
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Health and Safety (continued)
In order to combat the outbreak of COVID-19 and

safeguard the staff's health, the Group has made work
from home arrangement with split teams for the
employees to work in office or work from home on shift
with reference to the public policies announced by the
Hong Kong Government from time to time in order to
minimise the risks of our staff in being infected with
COVID-19 when travelling to or from our office. The
Group has also taken the following additional

precautionary measures in the offices:

¢ Our staff are required to wear face masks at all

times in the offices;

«  Hand sanitizers are available at the reception areas;

«  Antigen rapid test kits are provided to all staff when

necessary;

. Public areas of the offices are cleaned and

disinfected every day;

« Al staff and visitors are requested to measure their
body temperature and wear face masks upon

entering the office areas;

«  Delivery workers are designated to deliver at office

entrance;

«  All staff are required to report to the Group whether

he/she has travelled outside of Hong Kong;

« In case of any suspected or confirmed cases among
the staff and/or their close contacts, the Group
would immediately put the related personnel on

compulsory quarantine; and
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B2.

B3.

EiaRE

SOCIAL (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)

«  The Group supports the employees’ roles and
responsibilities to their families and strives to
maintain a family-friendly work place for the
employees. We welcome their kids to come to our
workplace in case of need such as any suspension
of classes for all secondary schools, primary schools,

kindergartens, child care centres and special schools.

During the Reporting Period, there was no work-related
injury or fatality in the Group (2021: 2). Apart from
these, there were 2 injury cases (2021: 2), causing 4

working days lost for the past three years.

Development and Training

The Group acknowledges the importance of training for
the development of the employees as well as the Group.
The Group encourages and supports the employees in
personal and professional training, through seminars,
workshops as well as reimbursement for external training
courses to enhance their competencies in performing
their jobs effectively and efficiently. For the year ended
31 March 2022, 30 employees (202

have received training, representing 97% (2021

1: 20 employees)
: 63%)
of the employees of the Group. A total of 177 training
hours (2021:

relevant employees, of which 60 training hours (2021:

98 training hours) were offered to the

49 training hours) for male and 117 training hours

(2021: 49 training hours) for female.
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B3. Development and Training (continued) B3. &R KIEI (&)

R E R - IR RERE DB ES
ZIEALLAT

The percentage of employees received training by gender

and category for the Reporting Period are as follows:

2022 2021

—E-= T —%F

Percentage of
employees

received training

Percentage of
employees

received training

ZilEEZ XilllEE 2
BO Bt
By gender BRI & 5
Male S 40 40
Female it 60 60
By category RER &S
Senior Management mRERRE 20 30
Middle Management PREIEE 43 55
General Employees —EE 37 15
For the Reporting Period, the average training hours per RBEHR  BREEFHIIEEA

employee was 6 (2021: 3) and the breakdown of the
average training hours per employee based on gender

and category are as follows:

(ZTBZ—F:3) r MR RER

08 % & 8 715 X5 i Bey B3 4 40

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
Average training  Average training
hours hours
35 32 9 B B 19 A B
By gender g e el k)
Male B 5 6
Female pegis 7 4
By category RER &5
Senior Management SAREERE 5 4
Middle Management HREIRE 10 6
General Employees —EE 2 2
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B4.

B5.

SOCIAL (continued)
Labour Standards

The Group complies with all relevant laws and regulations
and the requirements of the governing authorities and
strictly prohibits the employment of child and forced
labour. Through the well-established recruitment policies,
the Group’s human resources department will carefully
check the identity documents of all applicants during the
recruitment process in order to ensure that all the
Group's employees are above the minimum legal working
age and no forced labour is hired. During the Reporting
Period, all the Group's employees are aged over 18 and
no child and forced labour has been employed (2021:
Nil). The Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with child and forced labour-related laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57) and other laws and regulations
relating to employment and labour practices that would

have a significant impact on the Group.

Supply Chain Management

The Group mainly engages third party services providers
to provide services such as information technology
services, advertising services, legal and professional
services, and also daily routine office equipment, office
supplies, stationery and printing materials. There was no

major procurement involved.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Supply Chain Management (continued)

The Group strives to develop and maintain long-term and
stable relationships with our suppliers who are committed
to high quality, environmental, health and safety
standards. In selecting the suppliers, the Group takes into
account their prices, quality, services capabilities,
credibility, environmental and social performance.
Meanwhile, the Group regularly evaluates supplier
performance, strengthens the management of
environmental and social risks, promotes the sustainable
development of the enterprise, in order to build up the

corporate social responsibility.

Dear the Year, there were 55 suppliers (2021: 55
suppliers) of the Group, all of them are located in Hong

Kong.

Product Responsibility

The Group strives to adhere to applicable laws and
regulations with regard to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating products and
services provided in our business, and to maintain
effective communication channels for redress. As the
Group is also conducting money lending business
through holding a money lenders licence in Hong Kong,
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163) of the laws
of Hong Kong constitutes a significant influence to the

Group's money lending business.

During the Year, there was no non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Product Responsibility (continued)

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group values its intangible assets as much as its
tangibles. The Group protects its business against
intellectual property theft by refusing the use of illegal
software or anything without copyright or patents. The
Group supports the use of legal and intangible assets
with trademarks while protecting itself from expose to

cybersecurity threats.

Customer Privacy Protection

We only collect personal data for operational needs and
clearly inform all customers or persons about the
intended use of the data and their rights to review and
revise their information. All collected personal data is
treated as confidential and securely kept and processed

only for the purposes of which it had been collected.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any
significant non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. We did not receive any compliant concerning
breaches of clients’ privacy nor we have identified any

leak or loss of client data.

B. & (&)
B6. EmEE (&)

IR BE H 8 1
AEEHEBETEENEREETER
HEWEE -AKERBERERIDA
BHRERRERELENNER * &
BEEBRIMNAERER - REEX
RERTERENGEREBEE
RREE T PRLEEE -

RIEZE P E
BHEAETREMBREEASE A
RAEEHMARTPHALTRENEIED
BHRE  AERREERMAREHEEHR
HRER o B S EA BB B S
ww WEZEWRTFNMEE EAR
WHRBIEHNE R -

RBEHHE  RPALTIABEMERED
BT RBEREROINER o HAFIALE
RETHENRILE P LB - 75
BERARBRIEREATFLEIE -



B7.

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FHELEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2022 F

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
responsibility and integrity in all aspect of the Group's
affairs. The Group has a zero-tolerance policy towards
behavior in association with bribery, corruption, extortion,
fraud and money laundering in its business operations.
Employees should not offer, solicit or accept anything of
material value to or from his/her colleagues, customers,
suppliers or other business partners of the Company. Our
code of conduct has provided guiding principles for the
employees regarding to the acceptance of gifts,
declaration of interest and other misconduct. Employees
is required to declare any conflict of interest by
completing the required form as instructed by the
Group’s Human Resources Department. Accepting
voluntary gift must be declared and have undergone the
approval process as administered by the Group’s Human
Resources Department. During the Year, the Group
invited representative from the Independent Commission
Against Corruption (ICAC) to provide training on anti-
corruption for all directors and employees of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

The Group encourages the reporting of suspected
business irregularities within the Group and provides
reporting channels specifically for this purpose. When
suspected wrongdoings, such as breach of duty, abuse of
power and receipts of bribes are identified, staff should
report to senior management for investigation and
verification, as well as other relevant regulators or to the

law enforcement authorities when necessary.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption (continued)

To prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist
financing, the Group follows the “Guideline on
Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders” issued by the Companies Registry and has
incorporated policies and procedures in its operations
and credit guidelines and policies, which include
procedures for customer due diligence, enhanced due
diligence, reporting of suspicious transactions, record-
keeping and staff training. Any suspicious case of money
laundering or terrorist financing which comes to the
staff's knowledge would be reported to the money
laundering reporting officer ("MLRO") of the Group.
Taking the relevant information into account, MLRO will
evaluate the suspicious case on a case-by-case basis and
when necessary, will report to the Joint Financial
Intelligence Unit of the Hong Kong Government as soon

as practicable.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations in respect of anti-corruption, and no legal
cases against the Group in respect of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering has been recorded in the

Year under review.

Furthermore, the Group encourages the employees to
report alleged malpractices or misconduct through various
channels. The Group has also adopted a whistleblowing
policy and procedures for all levels under the Group. The
Group's whistleblowing policy encourages all internal staff
to report actual or suspected improper conduct, in
confidence, to the Group's executive directors or the
Group's Audit Committee if the suspected improper

conduct involves the Group's executive directors.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption (continued)

During the Reporting Period, there was no concluded
legal case regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Group or our employees (2021: Nil). The Group
endeavours to protect the whistle-blower from common
concerns such as potential retaliation and is assured that

their identity as a whistle-blower will be kept confidential.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to supporting the public by
means of social participation and donation and putting
the best effort into helping the local communities and
people in need through community services and

engagement, social support and sponsorship programs.

The Group contributes and gives back to the community
by donating to various social organisations and engaging
in community service activities, to fulfil its corporate social
responsibility. We encourage the employees to take part
in charitable activities and volunteer community services.
During the Year, the Group made donations in aggregate
of HK$46,000 (2021: HK$65,000) to certain social
organisations, to support rehabilitation services for the
needy, to purchase the electrical appliances and medical
supplies etc. for the elderly, to sponsor Flag Day and
volunteer community service activities organised by them.
In order to reduce unnecessary social activities during the
epidemic, certain community service activity was

conducted through online workshop by the employees.

In addition, certain companies in the Group have been
awarded for decade the “Caring Company” logo by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of its

contribution to society and serving of the community.
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The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) present their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company comprise investment
holding and securities trading. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries comprise money lending, cruise ship charter

services, property investment and securities trading.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the

Group's financial position at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 101 to 272.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any

dividends in respect of the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 273
and 274. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share options during

the year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

There were no movements in the Company's share capital

during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2022, the Company's reserves available for
distribution amounted to HK$699,414,000.

Under the laws of Bermuda, the amount standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$354,993,000 as at 31 March 2022 may be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$162,587,000 as at 31 March 2022 is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances as

prescribed by section 54 thereof.
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$46,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate revenue attributable to
the five largest customers accounted for 19% of the Group's
total revenue, which included fair value losses on equity
investments in aggregate of HK$1,671,000 for the year. The
aggregate revenue attributable to the largest customer

accounted for 5% of the Group's total revenue for the year.

No major suppliers were identified.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest

customers mentioned above.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

In accordance with the Company's bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2),
Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan and Ms. Lilian Ng will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received from each of the three current
independent non-executive directors (namely Mr. Cheung
Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming)
an annual confirmation of independence and as at the date of

this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

(a) Executive Directors

CHELEEEEFEBERAA

EEEE

(a)

Mr. Ng Wee Keat Chairman of the Company and the
Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 45. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in January 2003 and was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company in April 2004. Mr. Ng
was re-designated from the chief executive officer to the
chairman of the Company in March 2012. Mr. Ng has
also held directorship in various members of the Group
since January 2003. Mr. Ng graduated from Indiana
University with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics.
Mr. Ng is a director of Huang Worldwide Holding Limited
("HWHL"), the immediate holding company of New
Century Investment Pacific Limited (“NCIPL"), which is
the controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition,
Mr. Ng is a director of NCIPL. Mr. Ng is a younger brother
of Ms. Lilian Ng and an elder brother of Ms. Ng Siew
Lang, Linda. Mr. Ng is also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee.
They are all executive directors of the Company. Mr. Ng
is a son of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng, who is the
settlor and the trustee of a discretionary trust which holds
the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Mr. Ng did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies

in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan Deputy Chairman

Aged 55. Ms. Sio joined the Company as an executive
director in October 2002 and was appointed as the
deputy chairman of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Sio has also held directorship in various members of the
Group since August 2000. Ms. Sio has over 27 years of
extensive management experience in various fields
including retailing, property investment, tourism and
entertainment. Ms. Sio is a director of HWHL, the
immediate holding company of NCIPL, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, Ms.
Sio is a director of NCIPL. Ms. Sio did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda Chief Operating Officer

Aged 44. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in June 2003 and was appointed as the chief
operating officer of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Ng has also held directorship in various members of the
Group since November 2003. Ms. Ng brings to the Group
experience in the fields of real estate management,
human resource management and retail operations. Ms.
Ng graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree majoring in
Telecommunications and a minor in Computer Science
from Indiana University. Ms. Ng is a younger sister of Ms.
Lilian Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat. Ms. Ng is also a cousin
of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They are all executive directors of
the Company. Ms. Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee of a
discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.

Annual Report 2022 F

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

EEHE (&)
(a) BITESE (&)

BEBLtTIEE
555 c BTN =TT =_F+AMARK
AEIHERITES  WR_ZTZWF+
REZERARBZEIERF - MBI LH
“ETEF\ARTAAEEZHEKE
RAIZEFE -BRITETE MER
B RERRESELBETERER
TTHEZEEERRR -BALR
NCIPLz E# R ARIHWHLZ EF - M
NCIPLA ARG 2 R o lLIN - &R
Z+R/NCIPLZEE B TRE=F
WENEM ETARQRETERNES
B -

EFEWML Lt LELH

4455 c B TR ZTE=F X AMNMAR
RAHERITES YR _FTZTWEF+
REZERARBZEERH - BEX L
H_ZZE=F+—ABNTRAEEZH
KERBIZES - BX T RARNEETR
EHEER ANBREERTEZLE
FEZE&ER  &mx+ 2 FERIndiana
UmverSIty FEXZLEM  FEEM
BREBEMMNZ BRI RAEANEX
TREREGEREZRK EXTTHTARK
BBEZLZRK  BREAREKRAZH
TESE -BRTAEVBEEZLR
ERBEER—BAZEGEZETAR
EEA MZEEEEFALRRARK
2% A F]Huang Group (BVI) LimitedZ
2HER BRTBE=ZFWERHAM
EFHABRRREEREMEZESZH -

77



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B EF B ER 2 A
Annual Report 2022 3§

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Aged 48. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2002. Ms. Ng has also held directorship
in various members of the Group since September 2002.
Ms. Ng graduated from San Francisco State University
with a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration. Ms.
Ng has extensive experience in hotel management. Ms.
Ng is a director of NCIPL, which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Ms. Ng is the elder sister of
Mr. Ng Wee Keat and Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda. Ms. Ng is
also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They are all executive
directors of the Company. Ms. Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee
of a discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Aged 57. Ms. Chen joined the Company as an executive
director in May 2000. Ms. Chen has also held
directorship in various members of the Group since
August 2000. Ms. Chen holds a Bachelor of Commerce
degree and is an associate member of the Australian
Society of Certified Practising Accountants. Ms. Chen has
over 34 years of experience in the accounting field,
including 4 years in auditing. Ms. Chen is a cousin of Mr.
Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng.
They are all executive directors of the Company. Ms.
Chen is a niece of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng, who is
the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary trust which
holds the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited,
the ultimate holding company of the Company. Ms. Chen
did not hold any directorship in other listed public

companies in the last three years.
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(a) Executive Directors (continued) (@) BITEE (&)
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Yu Wai Man Member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee

Aged 57. Mr. Yu joined the Company in August 1997
and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in October 2004. Mr. Yu has also held
directorship in various members of the Group since
September 1997. Mr. Yu is a fellow member of both of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and has over 37 years of experience in the accounting
field, including 3 years in external audit and 2 years in
internal audit. Mr. Yu has over 29 years of financial
experience in companies listed in Hong Kong and
London. Mr. Yu did not hold any directorship in other

listed public companies in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and
member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 57. Mr. Cheung joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in June 2012 and
was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee in September 2012.
Mr. Cheung is also the member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Cheung graduated from Edith Cowan
University of Australia and received his postgraduate
diploma of financial management from the University of
London. Since returning to Hong Kong in 1990, he has
been extending international opportunities for Chinese
large state-owned and privately-owned enterprises. Mr.
Cheung is a Practising Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
Certified Practising Accountant of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants and a Certified Tax
Adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr.
Cheung is the director of Global CPA (HK) Limited
(Representative of Integra International) and has
extensive experience in mergers and acquisitions and the
tax aspect. Mr. Cheung oversees the day-to-day running
of the finance function and is directly responsible for
financial reporting, corporate governance, tax and
corporate finance for multi-national companies including
state-owned enterprises and listed enterprises. Mr.
Cheung also has extensive international accounting
experience and has worked in CPA firms in the US and
Australia. Mr. Cheung has served as a member of the
Small and Medium Practitioners Committee, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Professional Service Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council and International
Committee and a Certified Business Intermediary of the
International Business Brokers Association. Currently, Mr.
Cheung is a member of the Small and Medium
Practitioners Committee of CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years and any other positions with the
Company or other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth Member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Aged 75. Mr. Kwan joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in April 2003. Mr.
Kwan is also the member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Applied
Science degree in Civil Engineering and a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree with Honours from the
University of Toronto and the University of Windsor
respectively. Mr. Kwan has 8 years of experience in the
accounting and tax auditing fields together with over 41
years of experience in the real estate business and
business agent. Mr. Kwan did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years and
any other positions with the Company or other members

of the Group.

Mr. Ho Yau Ming Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

Aged 71. Mr. Ho joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in April 2003. Mr. Ho is also the
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Ho holds
a Master degree in Finance from the University of
Leicester in England. Mr. Ho had worked in the banking
industry for over 27 years in official and senior executive
positions including The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited and Dao Heng Bank Limited. Mr. Ho
did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years and any other positions

with the Company or other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, no Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors' fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to Directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Further details can be found in note 8 to the financial

statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
During the year ended 31 March 2022, a permitted indemnity

provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
was in force for indemnity liabilities incurred by the Directors

to a third party.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of the
Company’s holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow

subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares
and underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers,
were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

FHELEEEEETRAA
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EERBETRAERKROREEH
BROREER 2EERAXR

RZBEZZ_F=RA=+—H ' AQAEER
ERITHABRARA RS E MR EE (F
EREFESHFRBAEERMN((FHFRAE KAL)
EXVER) < i REERD R EEZTHES
BEESRAEGAFEISELABBARA
ARFEzELMAZ#ER AR @ SRR
MBITAZESETEFRHINZETRZR
EMBEMNERARIRBEBHRERIAERA
AI([EBBIM) 2 ERRABAT

RARREBIRZHR

Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

BEEERYE - SORESEME

Percentage of
the Company's

Directly Through

beneficially controlled

Directors owned corporation

Bs EREEES EREQTF

Mr. Ng Wee Keat S 220,192,000

HEREE (note 2)

(Pt 5E2)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan 52,000,000 220,192,000

RHEZT (note 2)

(Pt E2)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda - 220,192,000

BEHEMA T (note 2)

(P 7E2)

Ms. Lilian Ng - 220,192,000

EREL T (note 2)

(P 7E2)

Ms. Chen Ka Chee 8,400,000 -
BRIRBL L

Mr. Yu Wai Man 3,360,000 -

REXLE

Beneficiary issued share
of a trust Total capital
EEDRE BT
FREZZHA aF BRAEzE DL
3,556,133,691 3,776,325,691 65.33
(note 3)
(F&E3)
3,556,133,691 3,828,325,691 66.23
(note 3)
(P &E3)
3,556,133,691 3,776,325,691 65.33
(note 3)
(FI5E3)
3,556,133,691  3,776,325,691 65.33
(note 3)
(P &E3)
= 8,400,000 0.15
= 3,360,000 0.06
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company:

Directors

2%

Mr. Ng Wee Keat H=EGREE
Ms. Sio lon Kuan Bz L
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda EHBLT
Ms. Lilian Ng EAEL L
Ms. Chen Ka Chee PRAG Bz =
Mr. Yu Wai Man RENXEE
Notes:

As at 31 March 2022, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 5,780,368,705.

220,192,000 shares were held by New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited, a company limited by guarantee being a
charitable institution of public character of which Mr. Ng Wee
Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian
Ng are members and members of its council of management.

3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited, which is ultimately owned by Huang Group (BVI)
Limited under a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ng Wee Keat,
Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng are
the discretionary beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the

Directors and chief executive of the Company had registered

an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares

or debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations that was required to be recorded, pursuant to

section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers.

FHLEEEEERLA

EERBETRAERKROREH
RO KEER zEERXE (H)

RARARBREZHR

Number of share options
directly beneficially owned

ERESERZBRERE

21,000,000
11,000,000
18,000,000
18,000,000
16,000,000
16,000,000

100,000,000

B &L -

. RZZEZZF=ZA=+—RH ARAIzZE%#
1T 48 80 55,780,368, 7050% °

2. 220,192,000k Bt (FER) ESE
SERAFEE  ZRAAERERERA
A WIEA—RAOHKESWE  ZEGTE -
%‘Fﬁﬁzt . Ef}ﬁﬁﬁi&%;ﬁﬁﬁi%ax
NAlZKEREBEZEEKE -

3. 3,556,133,6910% & 5 ANew Century
Investment Pacific Limited# 7% -+ 3 B3Huang
Group (BVI) Limitedi& 8 & (ErE R HEA ©
ZETRERZ2EZ e ABEFEERLE
BERLZT EFHZTIREFNELZLT -

BREXFBEEEN RZFE=-__F=A
=+—H AXRAEFRHERTHEABHE
AR R sk E I AR B R B 2 AR 10 =k AE B AR

NSEEETHRERBEZSFRBEKRAIE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, the following interests and short

positions of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the

Company were recorded in the register of interests required to

be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Shareholders

S

New Century Investment Pacific Limited

Huang Worldwide Holding Limited

Huang Group (BVI) Limited

Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
ERBEL

Notes:

Notes

B &

1. As at 31 March 2022, the total number of issued shares of the

Company was 5,780,368,705.

2. Huang Group (BVI) Limited is the ultimate holding company of

New Century Investment Pacific Limited. Huang Worldwide

Holding Limited is the immediate holding company of New

Century Investment Pacific Limited. Accordingly, Huang Group
(BVI) Limited and Huang Worldwide Holding Limited were
deemed to be interested in a total of 3,556,133,691 shares.
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FERRERHEMATRRG REHE
Ry zEBRAR

RZTEZZF=A=+—H  GAXRFAEHE
TTIRARB%E A 2 N5 #E a5 MoK B ThiR 1R
BHERBEKGEIZ6EBELALRAA
RIFZ B R

RARFEBRZHFRE :
Number of Percentage of the
ordinary Company's issued
shares held share capital
EERLAE BT
FEEBERHE BREzBDL
3,556,133,691 61.52
3,556,133,691 61.52
3,556,133,691 61.52
4,182,369,691 72.35

1. RZEBEZZF=A=+—H KAFRz%
1TR% 5 48 8155,780,368,705/% °

2. Huang Group (BVI) LimitedZ&New Century
Investment Pacific Limited Z & &R A &) ©
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited &New
Century Investment Pacific Limited” B # {2
i A7 o Bk - Huang Group (BVI) Limited &
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited # 4% 7% &
& #£3,556,133,691 AR5 < # 2 -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

3. Huang Group (BVI) Limited is held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng in his capacity as the settlor and the trustee of a

discretionary trust.

4.  3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited. 220,192,000 shares were held by New Century
(Huang's) Foundation Limited while 406,044,000 shares were
held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng. Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng is one of the members of New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
was deemed to be interested in a total of 4,182,369,691
shares. New Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited is a company
limited by guarantee being a charitable institution of public

character.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, no person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4
September 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the share option scheme of
the Company adopted on 23 September 2002 (the “2002
Share Option Scheme”). Outstanding share options granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme prior to the termination
had expired on 20 January 2021. Further details of the 2012
Share Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Option Scheme

are disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The following table discloses the movements of the
outstanding share options granted under the 2012 Share

Option Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

BRERE
At Lapsed At
Name or category 1 April  during 31 March
of participant 2021  the year 2022
R-2--% RER R-B-ZF
SRELZTER mA-H %% =ZHA=1-H
Directors
Bz
Mr. Ng Wee Keat 21,000,000 - 21,000,000
BEGRE
Ms. Sio lon Kuan 11,000,000 - 11,000,000
RERLL
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 18,000,000 - 18,000,000
BERLL
Ms. Lilian Ng 18,000,000 = 18,000,000
BRELL
Ms. Chen Ka Chee 16,000,000 = 16,000,000
REHLL
Mr. Yu Wai Man 16,000,000 = 16,000,000
REXELE
100,000,000 -~ 100,000,000
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BRESE (&)

TREBERAEE  RE_F

— B

S B I T 04 R AT 0 R AR 2 BB ¢

Date of

grant of
share options
Bk
RHEBH

03-09-2013
—E-=F
A=A

03-09-2013
_ ,=|§. —¢
HH:H

03-09-2013
“T-=F
NAZ=H

03-09-2013
—F-=F%
A=A

03-09-2013
-=%
NAZH

03-09-2013
—T-=F
NAZH

Exercise
period of
share options
BRE
Rid

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-ZFAAZHZE
“E-=FNAZH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
ek e =
—E-=%NAZH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“T-=FNA=ZRE
“TZ=f¥NACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“T-=FAA=HZ
“E-=FNACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“Z-=HNA=HZ
“T-=F#AA-H

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=#NA=HZF
“E-=FNACH

Exercise
price of
share options*
B
@

HK$ per share
gRAET

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Number of share options

BREHR
At Lapsed At

Name or category 1 April  during 31 March
of participant 2021  the year 2022

R-2--% RER RZB-ZF
SREMRHER MA—H %% =ZA=1-8H
Other employees
HitlEE
In aggregate 32,800,000 - 32,800,000
At
[SIVAY
Total 132,800,000 - 132,800,000

=N

w The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in

the Company's share capital.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company had 132,800,000 share
options outstanding under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.
Should they be fully exercised, the Company will receive
additional share capital of HK$332,000 and share premium of
approximately HK$25,875,000 (before issue expenses). The
fair value of these unexercised options measured in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy (note 2.4 to
the financial statements) amounted to approximately
HK$5,862,000 as at the grant date.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no share options had
lapsed or expired. In the prior year, 3,800,000 share options
had lapsed and remaining 248,240,000 share options had
expired on 20 January 2021 under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme. 1,800,000 share options had lapsed under the 2012
Share Option Scheme.

BRESE (&)

Date of Exercise Exercise

grant of period of price of

share options share options  share options*

BRE B E BRE

RHBH T i@

HK$ per share

FRET

03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
2= —T-ZFNAZRE
NAZ=A ZEZ=FNAZH

PR 21T A R BATALR - S
ARFBAZ R BURH T T IABE -

RZBE-_—F=ZA=Z+—H RE=-F—=
FRERELE - A2 FH132,800,00017 f#
ARAE R ARITHE o WERBRBITHEZ S BARE -
AN A g WEREE SR ZR332,0000% 7T & A%
13 3% {8 #925,875,0007%8 7T (K 0 Bk 2 17
X) RELEBH ZERKRITEZBRE
BIEAEE S BR (M BRKRMT2.4) 5
27 AN F{EE45,862,000%8 7T °

BHE_ZT-__F#=A=+—BItFE T&
ERBRERAKER REFE  RIE=
ST _FHEKRESE - 53,800,000 i ik
B AR KR T E £2248,240,00017 f# A% &
AER=ZZE=—F—A=-+HE® RE=
T-_FHEKRESE - 51,800,000 i ik
REEERR -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the

Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the

public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for its reappointment as
auditor will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong
23 June 2022
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Ernst & Young ZXKEETENE AT Tel E%: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place EBHIAE Fax {EH: +852 2868 4432
979 King’'s Road HKEBI79E ey.com
EY Quarry Bay, Hong Kong KGth— o7&
K
To the shareholders of FHHLERETEERAIATARE

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 101 to 272,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FHLEEEEERLA

RRETEHE(H)

Key audit matters

RREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RMNETNMEEFARETEH

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receiva

FE W& R K R B HY R E RS

bles

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s net loan and
interest receivables amounted to approximately
HK$737,298,000, which represented approximately
36% of the total assets. Provision for impairment
losses on loan and interest receivables under the
expected credit losses (“ECLs") model amounted to
approximately HK$1,779,000.
RZEBEZZF=ZA=+—H EBEENEKRER
KA B FERK737,298,000/8 TT © 15 B & E LI36% °
BEAREREX ((RHERBEXDERX  FHE
WE R &S H R E BB REEA1,779,000/8 7T

The measurement of ECLs is inherently subjective and
involves significant management judgements and
assumptions regarding the probability of default, loss
given default, historical delinquency ratio of loan and
interest receivables, collateral values and economic
indicators on forward-looking information.
AEEHRGERABRAE LA TEHN WA KEHE
WEREMEMBAOB X BOBRX FLERX
bl EREEE UREBEBEEOAELRE
BHEXNERE 2 6 R R& -

We obtained an understanding of the Group's policy
on granting loans to its borrowers and the Group's
credit and impairment assessments including the
related credit control and loan monitoring process. We
evaluated the reasonableness of management's loss
allowance estimates on loan and interest receivables
by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current conditions and forward-
looking information and examining the actual losses
recorded during the current financial year and
assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising loss allowances.
We carried out procedures, on a sample basis, on the
settlement made by borrowers during the year and
their subsequent settlement with reference to the
repayment schedule, and tested the existence and
accuracy for the classification of stages of loan and
interest receivables applied in the ECLs model as at
the end of the reporting period. We involved our
internal valuation expert to assist us in reviewing the
valuation methodology and approach adopted by
management in the ECLs model. We also considered
the adequacy of disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FARETEE(E)
Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters
HRETEIR EMHWESOMEEERESSHE

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables (continued)
FE Uk & 3k B R B AR B AT A ()
The accounting policies and disclosures are included | &M%t BEEBAEEBERABRTEZRUE BE5H
in notes 2.4, 3 and 17 to the consolidated financial | & &R EFGEHNHRE (EEEBNEEEHEER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FHLEEEEERLA

RRETEHE(H)

Key audit matters

BREBETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RANETNMEEEARETER

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

REMENDFEEME

As at 31 March 2022, investment properties
measured at fair value amounted to approximately
HK$556,308,000, which represented approximately
27% of the total assets, with the corresponding net
fair value gains recognised in profit or loss of
approximately HK$15,502,000. The Group engaged
external valuers to perform the valuation for the
investment properties. The valuation process was
inherently subjective, and dependent on a number of
significant unobservable inputs, such as the market
price per square foot, market rent per square foot and
capitalisation rate.

RZEZZF=RA=+—H NUAFEEFENK
B Y% #)556,308,000/8 7T - HERBEEL27%
THEEERABRLAFEEREZFED
15,502,000/ 7T - EXEIEAEMEREMEE
TEE -HEARAEFEFHEM TAERFET
BATABRGAE IS FAIRTHER -
FHRRASEERERCEL X -

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EHAETBRRRBERHNGE U BREMT24 -3
K14 -

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation experts engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the
work of the valuation experts. In addition, we
evaluated the appropriateness of the work performed
by the valuation experts. This included assessing the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of the data
used as inputs for the valuation by comparing them
to market data if available, and assessing the
relevance of the major assumptions and
methodologies adopted in the valuation. We also
involved our internal valuation experts to assist us in
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies for
the valuation of the investment properties held by the
Group. We also considered the adequacy of
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
HMEZERE ESEMZENGREERNEN K
REREEML - AL TRBEEZRKNIE 1IN
BAFETHEERMETOHIERSAE -ER
EE B E TS BE (AT BT ) & T L BT A
ERABEBNSRENEENE TEERERE AR
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fFW?: HMATNEEZRK2E - BERMTE
SEFMFAREDENHRERZIBERFT L - &K
TF?TIE%J’EJE}EM‘“#EEEWE’J& EEARH -
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RgETEHE(H)

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

HRETEIR EMHWESOMEEERESSHE
Estimation of fair value of a cruise ship
BN D FEEMST

As at 31 March 2022, a cruise ship measured at fair
value and included in property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately HK$100,620,000 with
the corresponding revaluation deficit of approximately
HK$12,001,000 recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 March 2022. The Group engaged an
external valuer to perform the valuation for the cruise
ship. The valuation process was inherently subjective,
and dependent on a number of estimates, such as
the market price per unit, rate of newness and market
discount rate.

MRZEBEZZF=ZRA=+—HB 8EEWE BEKX
FHEIARXFEEFENER  HE2HELD
100,620,000/ 7T HHERBE-_T_—_F =4
ST - ALEEEERARRBELGEBEMD
12,001,000/ 7T - & & B B NS fih (B 6D 4 B 4
TEE -HEARAE FFEAFEE WEBTE
ThEr - PINEEATIHER - TR RTISITINX -

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.
ERASTBRRERBESN GRS M BRERMT24 -3
K12 o

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation expert engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the work
of the valuation expert. In addition, we evaluated the
appropriateness of the work performed by the
valuation expert. This included assessing the relevance,
completeness and accuracy of the data used as inputs
for the valuation, and assessing the relevance of the
major assumptions and methodologies adopted in the
valuation by making enquiries to the valuation expert.
We also involved our internal valuation experts to assist
us in evaluating the major assumptions and
methodologies of the valuation of the cruise ship held
by the Group, which included performing independent
market research. We also considered the adequacy of
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor's report is Chan Ching Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

23 June 2022
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REVENUE

Cost of services provided

Gross profit

Other income
Administrative and operating expenses
Foreign exchange differences, net
Deficit on revaluation of cruise ships
Gain on disposal of a non-current
asset held for sale
Fair value gains/(losses) on investment
properties, net
Finance costs
Reversal of impairment losses on
loan and interest receivables, net
Reversal of/(provision for) an impairment
loss on a repossessed asset

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

Basic

Diluted

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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Notes

it &

HREEER

Year ended 31 March 2022
BE-_T-_—_#=A=+—HI&FEE

2022 2021
—E-C-F —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
80,741 100,360
(7,780) (15,668)
72,961 84,692
796 4,131
(78,333) (75,793)
(200) 1,269
(12,001) (66,713)
714 -
15,502 (19,486)
8 (10)

498 1,050
11 (300)
(60) (71,160)
(6,775) (8,775)
(6,835) (79,935)
(1,501) (56,712)
(5,334) (23,223)
(6,835) (79,935)

HK(0.03) centsi&l

HK(0.98) centsys L

HK(0.03) cents#&l

HK(0.98) cents/& Ll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEZEWER

Year ended 31 March 2022
BE-_T-_—_F#=-—A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FERT FHET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR rFEEER (6,835) (79,935)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hp 2w~
INCOME/(LOSS) (E#8)
Other comprehensive income VA1E HATE T RE B30
that may be reclassified to DEEEROEM
profit or loss in subsequent periods: FEKEH :
Exchange differences: PE 56 =58 ¢
Exchange differences on translation MERIMESE R
of foreign operations EANERZ5E 114 20,338
Other comprehensive income/(loss) g B TEEHN
that will not be reclassified to DEEEREM
profit or loss in subsequent periods: 2ElE (BE)
Surplus on revaluation of a cruise ship ~ E#s ~ & & 12 — 7,085
Change in fair value of an equity BERERRATFEEA
investment designated at fair value E 2 W as B R
through other comprehensive income &K QA FEEZ (1,417) 1,944
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) LA HAR 1§ T & = #7
that will not be reclassified to SEEERNEMEE
profit or loss in subsequent periods Wa,/ (E18) F8 (1,417) 9,029
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/  AFEHMZEKE
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX  (&#8) - MIBBIXK (1,303) 29,367
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AEEE2E
FOR THE YEAR EBEAE (8,138) (50,568)
Attributable to: AT AT, -
Owners of the Company PINYNETE SN (2,837) (34,686)
Non-controlling interests SRR R (5,301) (15,882)
(8,138) (50,568)




NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Prepayments and other receivables
Loan receivables

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Loan and interest receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Non-current asset held for sale

Repossessed assets

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accruals, other payables and
deposits received

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Due to the intermediate
holding company

Loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary

Total current liabilities

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FRBEE

ME - BEREE
REMF
EEREAFEE

A E AL 2 Y s
MR B

B BRA K EL i 18 kAR R
& W & R

FRBEERE

RBEE
&4 5 BR X

JE W B R B A B
BAZFIE - BER
H A FE YRR
REBENERBEE
BEEE
mRFEERA
BaHRERE
QIR qEE> s
ReEMREEED

B A ERE

nREBAE

FERT IR - EAL A
ERREKIZE
HEAE

FE BB 1R

e R4 AR A2 A

A
AEBENE AR ZIFZER
RRBNZER

mB B E B

Notes

B &E

15
16
17

22
12

30(b)

30(d)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HEMBIRRAER
31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

2022 2021
—=E-= —ET—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FET
225,365 252,290
556,308 540,780
2,040 3,457
556 461
231,469 87,770
1,015,738 884,758
8,842 43,413
505,829 571,490
5,613 5916

- 27,195

53,358 46,517
80,075 96,537
33 159
401,548 454,297
1,055,298 1,245,524
22,068 29,765
134 171

169 876
40,000 40,000
71,823 71,823
134,194 142,635
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FHLEEEEERLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

FEMBRRRAT(E)
31 March 2022
—_E-_—_F#=HA=+—H

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deposits received

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Issued capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Ng Wee Keat

BEH

Chairman

FE

REBEEFE

MEERRE
=Ri 4

FRBEE
EREE
HERE
EENIARIE

FRBEERS
AEFE

i
ADFEE A
B 4t 3
BEITIRA
1
ERY L

DB

Notes

B EE

22
12
23

24
26

2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#B T FET
921,104 1,102,889
1,936,842 1,987,647
1,447 3,094

72 141
17,569 18,520
19,088 21,755
1,917,754 1,965,892
14,451 14,451
1,565,253 1,568,090
1,579,704 1,582,541
338,050 383,351
1,917,754 1,965,892

Sio lon Kuan

Lk

Deputy Chairman

BIE/E



At 1 Apil 2021 H-FZ-£MA-H
Loss for the year FERER
Other comprehensive income/([oss)

RERAKEA
for the year )
Exchange differences on
trenslation of foreign operations
Change in fair value of an equiy
investment designated
atfair velue through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year

Transfer of asset revaluation resenve
upon disposdl of & non-curent Eﬂ%@ﬁ%
asset held for sale (note 13) ﬁf‘ IR

Inteim dividend paid to XARBRETAEE
anon-ontollng shareholderof -~ HEBAEZ
the Group's subsidiary HERERE
At31 March 2022 RZE22F
)

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

Attributable to owners of the Company

FHELEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2022 F

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

LGrEEREEIR
Year ended 31 March 2022
HE-_ZT-_—_F#=A=+—HILEFE

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of *

HK$1,565,253,000 (2021:

consolidated statement of financial position.

RARERARE
Share Share Rsset Exchange Non-
Issed ~ premium option  Contributed ~revaluation  Fairvalue translation Merger  Retained controlling Total
apitdl  accont  resene  supls  reseve  resee  fesewe fesene profits Total  interests equity
BEf Rt BhE RE HEEff QVEE Ex & 8 #ER B
it BER B B4 (1] (1] (1] i & &t B 3
HKS000  HKS000  HKS00D HKS000  HKSO0  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSO000  HKS000
Tin Tén Tén Tén Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tén Tén Tn
14451 354993 5,862 162,587 9,583 2671 (2431)  (77640) 1,112,465 1582541 383,351 1,965,892
= - - - - - - S () (s (53 (68%)
- - - - - - 81 - - 81 3 114
- 8 8 - - 4n) - = - (14m) - (14m)
- = = - - () 8l S sy ) BX) (1%
- - - N %) - - - - - -
- 8 8 - s 5 - = = - (40000)  (40000)
14,451 354,993* 5862 162587 4853 1,260° (2356 (77640)% 1,115694* 1579704 338050 1917754
IERBREENERVERARPNES
HK$1,568,090,000) in the %1 1,565,253,000 L (=& = —F :

1,568,090,000/ 7T) °
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FHLEEEEERLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

SREERSHRR)

Year ended 31 March 2022
BE-_T-_—_F#=-—A=+—HIFE

Attibutable to owners of the Company

FAREEARE
Share Share Hsset Eichange
Issued  premium opfin~ Contrbuted  reveluation  Fairvalue  translaton Merger  Reteined
aptl et wseve  supls e resene resene resene profs Totl
B Rir B B4 EEEf QTEE 3 &b x4
RE EBE i a4 i i i ! & aif
Hk$ 000 Hkg 000 Hkg 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TR TR T Tin TEn Thn Tin Tén TR TR
1 Apil 2020 K-Z-2EmA-B A5 BOSI658T 5% (8268 (TR0) LS04 161720
Loss for the year TERER - - - - - - - - (6N (672
Other comprehensive income RERENRE
for the year: &
Exchange diferences on BERIMERR
tranglation offoregn aperations ELNESZE - - - - - - 15831 - - 15831
Surplus on reveluaton of ¥528f
a cuise ship B - - - - 4251 - - - - 4251
Change infanalue of anequy ~ HEARLTRE
nvestment desigted HARHRENEN
atfair value through other Righas
comprehensive income - - - - - 1944 - - - 1944
Tota comprefensive income/ FERRENE/
(o) for e ear (58 28 - - - - 9 158 - T (46%)
Transfer of share opion resene.~—~ NEREXNAE R
upon the lapse or expiy of ERERERA
share ptions (note 25) (H3k25) - - (113) - - - - - 17,153 -
At 31 March 2021
4451 354993 5860 162587 9583 W QBT (TRN) IS 158234

Non-
controling
inferests
HER
i

HK$ 000
TR

399233
(15203)

4507

2834

Total
equiy
5%

HK$000
T

2016460
(1983)

20338

7085

1,944

(50,568)

1,965,892



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Bank interest income

Dividend income from equity investments

at fair value through profit or loss
Depreciation
Fair value losses/(gains) on equity
investments at fair value through
profit or loss, net
Fair value gains on financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value losses/(gains) on investment
properties, net
Deficit on revaluation of cruise ships
Gain on disposal of a non-current
asset held for sale
Reversal of impairment losses on
loan and interest receivables, net
Provision for/(reversal of) an impairment
loss on a repossessed asset

Decrease/(increase) in loan and
interest receivables
Decrease in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Increase/(decrease) in accruals,
other payables and deposits received
Increase in repossessed assets

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7
Annual Report 2022 F

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HCEBRERER

BE

Notes

o

ReTecHeRE
BREAIEE
BHTFIEEEL 2 HAE:

BE R AR

|ATHEWA

BRTEESABRN

RERE 2 BREBA 5
nE 12
BRTEESABRN

BEREZATFEE

BB/ (W) F58 5
BATEEFABR

SRABZATFEBEKS 5
REWME L ATER

B/ (W)  F58 14
Wiy 2 EHEA 12
HEREFENERD

EEMKRS 13
FEWE R R SR E

BERD - F8 17
REEERE

EiEEE/ (BE) 19

FBUEFRRFEZ

B/ (B )

EWE 28R 2B
BNFE - e REM
USRS/ ()
BRYEEFABREN

BERE ZRD/ (Em)

JERT TR - At AR R

B z#m,/ (i)
BEEEZM 19

—=— —

— =

Year ended 31 March 2022
F=A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHT
(60) (71,160)

8 10

(699) (1,033)
(5,077) (1,319)
15,268 23,048
1,671 (8,079)
— (391)
(15,502) 19,486
12,001 66,713
(714) =
(498) (1,050)
(11) 300
6,387 26,525
(77,540) 28,572
34,571 73,606
208 (299)
14,791 (74,339)
(9,216) 10,718
(30,248) (35,886)
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FHLEEEEERLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

GZEREREFR(E)
Year ended 31 March 2022
BE-_ZT-_—_#F#=-A=+—HLFE

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Net proceeds from sale of
repossessed assets

Interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong tax paid, net

Overseas tax paid

Dividends received from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment
Increase in bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of a
non-current asset held for sale

Net cash flows used in investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal portion of lease payments

Interim dividend paid to a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary

Net cash flows used in financing
activities

mEEBHME,/ (FA)
Ak
HEREBEEEN

P15 501805 %8

REVE RS

=ENELES

ERNEERE  FE
ERENE
BHRBRATFEBTA
BalREREZRE

gEEDME/
ZHEREFE
REZHZHERE
BEME BE
BCRLE
RITRRZIE M
HERBRENERY
BEMMENA

REEHMAZ
BeREFs

METHzHERE

HENRBENREHS

SRAPHRETAEE
B ARz FEERRE

BEEDAAL
REREFR

12, 31(2)

31(b)

2022 2021
—E-CfF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHT
(61,047) 28,897
23,418 3,201
699 1,033
(8) (10)
(8,129) (8,103)
(181) (113)
5,077 1,319
(40,171) 26,224
(296) (12,339)
(31,473) (68,949)
27,909 -
(3,860) (81,288)
(188) (185)
(40,000) =
(40,188) (185)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
GRS RERE)

Year ended 31 March 2022

BE-_T-_—_#=A=+—HI&FEE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt ax TER THT
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERRESENZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS AL FE (84,219) (55,249)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year RENZEE NBEZED 385,348 438,811
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEREE LB (3) 1,786
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REKZBRER
AT END OF YEAR BeZEY 301,126 385,348
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeRRESENZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ‘W
Cash and bank balances B4 RRTE"R 21 264,042 257,305
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity 8 A 5 R 2 f& i 28R 1~
of less than three months when acquired —HAZERRTHER 37,084 128,043
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BARERERAMIILA
consolidated statement of cash flows RehBReSEY 301,126 385,348
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity &8 A K5 R 7€ [ m 2R B B
of more than three months when acquired —HAZEERTEHER 100,422 68,949

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the IR e B IS IORR A BT LAY
consolidated statement of financial position BeRkReEEY 21 401,548 454297
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal activities of the Company comprise
investment holding and securities trading. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries comprise money lending,
cruise ship charter services, property investment and

securities trading.

The Company is a subsidiary of New Century Investment
Pacific Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. New Century Investment Pacific Limited is
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. In the opinion of the directors, Huang
Group (BVI) Limited, which is beneficially and wholly
owned by a discretionary trust, is the ultimate holding

company of the Company.

ARAREEER

St SEEEERAFEEARET
MLz BRAR - RAR ZMHE
iz i ’®Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

ARRAZIEEBREREZERNES
BEE-EMBARARCZIEXEBEREMN
B BHEEERY MERELESFE

==
=

=

A2 A ANew Century Investment Pacific
Limited (R EBRE X EHSTMHRLZ A
al) 2 M B 2AF - New Century
Investment Pacific Limited/5Huang
Group (BVI) Limited (R & B E Z B S ++
MRz zRE) cHEZEMB AR -
EERR A EIEEREaALEE
# A ZHuang Group (BVI) Limited /57

NAZ BRI AT -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Name

&R

ETC Finance Limited
SRZIMBEERAT

Kingston Maritime Limited

Queenston Maritime Limited

Gaintech Investment Limited

MERERRAT

New Century Group HK
Investment Pte. Ltd.

New Century Properties
Investments Limited

LN ERERRAA

Place of
incorporation/
operations
ML
R

Hong Kong
B0

British Virgin Islands
(8w

Hong Kong
RERAES
(EBRx#E])/
5

BVI/

Hong Kong
RERLEE/
B

Hong Kong
B

Singapore

i1

Hong Kong
B

Issued
share capital

ERITRAE

HK$700,000,000
700,000,000/ 7T

US$1
IES#

US$10,000
10,000% 7T

HK$2
BT

S$1
13 7T

HK$2
28T

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

RAREEER (&)

oS A B B E R
ARAREEZMBARZFBTET

Percentage of

equity attributable Principal

to the Group activities
REEEMN

BEZADL TEER

2022 2021
—E-_-fF —ZT-—F

60 60 Money

lending

WM&

60 60 Cruise ship

charter service

BHRHERY

60 60 Dormant

(2021: Cruise ship

charter service)

TES

(22—

HinHER%)

100 100 Property

investment

MERE

100 100 Property

investment

NERE

100 100 Property

investment

MERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. DAREBEER (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MEBATNEE ()
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as AATFEWBATZHEWT : (8)

follows: (continued)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued equity attributable Principal
Name operations share capital to the Group activities
A KEEERL
£ R ERITRAE ERzADL TEXB
2022 2021

—E--F —ZE-—F

Senic Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
BMREBRARA 0 2B investment
MERE
Wise Century Investments Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Property
Limited Bk 1B investment
EMREERARA MERE
Century Rich Investments BVI/ US$1 60 60 Securities
Limited Hong Kong [E trading
By EHFEE
EE

All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held NEFBEEMB AR HARRME

by the Company. A -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company FRANZEAABIMBRRAITNESRAE
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected HASREARFEEEREEALESER
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of EEFEEFERD - FEFRE - M
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other HEMMERR 2FE - BREGANIT

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result Ko

in particulars of excessive length.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for cruise ships,
investment properties, equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss and an equity investment
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Annual Report 2022 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

2.1 iRBLEE

AHMBHRRRIREF LSS ([FH
AEFMAG]) BH2EBHBRS
ZA (BB BBSER] (BEME
BEMBREREA - FAGHEL(F
BEREAND kRE)  BEEERM
ST RARBFE(RBGI) 2 KE
REMBH - KEEHm REVE B
FEEFABZORERERIEE/E
NFEEFARMEEEENRERE
TR R FEEEN AU BRKTIZ
FESLRARENRR - BRIFRINGA A
MBmEABIT (BT IR REE
BEMEREANTIT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 RBLE®E ()

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2022. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability

to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the

date that such control ceases.

REERXE

RAEMBRREEARARENE AR
(BRI AEE)BEE_T__F=
A=t BLFENMBERER -WEA
AEARFERERREZEFNER (2
REBLER) EXASEBESHE
& & 77 6 A8 B S B A HE AT Bl R e &
e FAAERER  WHAERNERY
WRETWEN (BIREAEEBAAE
EENTERRETWHEBASNRRE
M) FEZEFDRE - BESZEH# -

EARNBERXRERALNWERES
REBORRLBOUEN  EFHER
CHABHRRETNENN  ~AEES
ZEMEMEBREMBR - B

(@) EWERETHMZREFHEANS
[l %2 HF

(b) HibERZHEENEN &

(0 ANEBEHRRENBERRE

8 2 B ER AR BN 1 B) 2 B A R B
SHEAR - ERB BN EE BRR
i) o B N B B SE AR B AN 5 B R SR
BzAMERS YHEFAHBAF
HEZRRL -
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as

an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of

the related assets or liabilities.

Annual Report 2022 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—EZ=f=R=+—H

2.1 IRBLE % (F)

REEXE(HE)

BakEME2mREm AR S5

EEAZSE@’ G WS E 28
& BB B e B RS E R AR

o AEEAFZTRAZEARZBEHED

PMEEENRAE #m WA FAXK

RenENGRERER2EUENE -

IEﬁ%EF—IEWyIEH@" ' HIJZISE@@
BEFTEERTNAERRIRET « M
—HNB ARz A EESLREEHM
WG R EERE  BIBEBEZHIE
RIEWRXH °

MRAREEKXET HH B QB E
B BREBRAOMBAREE (B1E
FHE)MEE: ()EMETERESME
ﬁ’f%ﬁ P RGDFFAEZH RFTIREE
P WHEROBEREN A TFEE i)
ETN% JEHRFEE L RGINE
BabPERAELEEZBBRIEAL - A
EEAFERNEMEEREERITS
EEEHERHETABRE  HRB &
M BERMEAEBERLEEHEEA
EXBEMEEER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for

the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Phase 2
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
HKFRS 16 beyond 30 June 2021

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had no

significant financial effect on these financial statements.

22 EREFBERKE

AEBERAFERNTEIRE AN TR
A TEIEETH BB B IREER] -
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Insurance Contracts?

Insurance Contracts®®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 - Comparative
Information®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?*

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabiltties arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a
contract!

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in
October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS
39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

The HKICPA amends HKFRS 17 to permit a classification
overlay for financial assets presented in comparative

periods on initial application of HKFRS 17
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described

below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to
HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3
should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after the date of first application, the Group will not
be affected by these amendments on the date of

transition.

Annual Report 2022 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

23 BMEMKERZERBYR

HEER (&)
8 503 R 70 AN 5 L B 5 5 7 9 o 2
M —HERMT -

BREMBHRELNEIR BT EER
BRI [ A R 21 38 50 75 2R 2 A2 48 )
WEIAERBHRN _T—N\FRNA%D
W[ REHE B EZR SR - T
BENBEER - EFTRABEEVBHR
HEREIRERRAIE N T — A
SMESL  BREREA SIFBISER] RAE
EftEBREEXARE - PIINBERLE
B HRREBREESEREI7H
HELE (AR EREREZES) R
BEQIGEEANBBENXIBRE W
RERBBFREMTIRELEE M A
Ew BREEBVBEHREENFIND
ERENDRZEFT B ERIEITH
ZE7E(BRYBRERERES) R
BEQIR - MAR2EZIHAER] -
o BRIRBRBEETNAERE
HRERNGRME AEEEMKEH_F
T CFMA-BRERERKERERAE
R o BRNERIARREREZERAREER
BRBEREABERZRNERAH &
BER - ERI T EHAKREELARE

o

119



120

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B EF B ER 2 A

Annual Report 2022 3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R R aE

31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address

an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's
interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption

now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations
that are considered a settlement of a liability. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an
entity's financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group's

accounting policy disclosures.
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31 March 2022
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined as
monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's

financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
to transactions related to leases and decommissioning
obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or
other component of equity as appropriate at that date. In
addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning

obligations. Earlier application is permitted.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception
and did not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences for transactions
related to leases. Upon initial application of these
amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax
asset and a deferred tax liability for deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period

presented.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of
those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented in the financial statements in which the entity
first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and
shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has not
yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's

financial statements.

23 BMEMKERZERBYR

HEER (&)

BB EREI7TRZEEEE - A
HEHNMEBSFLEREI7RME =
BEBEEHN BITaANKABERS
MEEEBNKER HENEEREN
AR B IERITZ A A IE 8 AR (f
m-BEESTNME)  beEEET
Za N BEEERE Mt A8 5 ()
W ARBITEANYE  MEKEE
HEMPTEBAURAHNERMEERK
RO n#) - —MRITBEEAERESHT
EEEH TEBESHEAN  BRIESLHH
FERRTE MIAT 40 5 WERFZ K AR » SZAEFT i
AR-ZZE-_—F—- A Az BMABN
FESME WEEANEEBTEHAE
RETNFEREHBNEREITHRR
BEBHEHR - AFTIRAKA - BRI
RETNERNRBEZERERAREER
FERBMBMERNFAR M AE
BRER ZEEBIEFIEHRAEEN
MR REEEMNEALE -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the

Group are as follows:

«  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid
or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other's behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity
first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.

« HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease

incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, cruise
ships and equity investments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market

participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties
and non-current asset held for sale), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the

smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

M the entity and the Group are members of the

Same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of

the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or

fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of

the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of

which it is a part, provides key management

personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non-current asset held for sale”. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its

intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates

them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the values
of property, plant and equipment are dealt with as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained

profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis, with
the exception of motor vehicles which are calculated on
the reducing-balance basis, to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 23 to 44 years
Leasehold improvements 33/, %
Furniture, fixtures and equipment  10% to 15%
Motor vehicles 20%

Cruise ships 6% to 20%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Drydocking costs represent major inspection and overhaul
costs and are included in cruise ships and depreciated to
reflect the consumption of benefits, which are to be
replaced or restored by the subsequent drydocking

generally every two to three years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting

period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the

year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the

year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” for owned property
and/or accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a
right-of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under

"Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Non-current asset held for sale

Non-current asset is classified as held for sale if its
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sales transaction rather than through continuing use. For
this to be the case, the asset must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such

asset and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current asset (other than investment properties and
financial assets) classified as held for sale is measured at
the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. Property, plant and equipment classified as held

for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the

underlying assets.

Annual Report 2022 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

24 TEETBEME (K)

FEGENERDEE
MRFRBDEENRA AT ZEBH
EXFMIRFECALED  BEMD
BREAFE HERBBILT ZREBEE
ERRRELARIHBEE  BFFE
HERFEENERMWBRGR LA
HELEHSAEE -

AEARBHRENERDEE RED
$DeRMAERN BEBEALERNA
TFEERHERAAES OB
E-HBARABENNE BERD
BT SHR AT B S 3 -

HE

ERNRGE  AEEFEANEDR
HEXBEHE - IRENBEE K
By ) P9 492 38 1) 2 S {50 R O 22 1) LA 4R B
RE MEHREExEREHE -

A& B E AN
AEEHMEHERHE —ERANMGE
% R EBEER - REBEERE
HEENFENEERE  URKAKRA
EEFMENEREEE -

135



136

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B EF B ER 2 A

Annual Report 2022 3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R R aE

31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of

the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 23 to 44 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful

life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued) HE (&)
AEFERABANA (&)
(b) HMEEE

24 TEETBEME (K)

Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying

asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued) HE (&)

Group as a lessee (continued) KEEFEZEATANA (F)

(c) Short-term leases (c) WHHEE
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition AEEKEHAHERERAEERR
exemption to its short-term leases of car parking EHBEUERAEREBHEHAE
spaces and office equipment (that is those leases (MEHEHRR®KE HEHRAR
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from TZEARERHAENEE BT
the commencement date and do not contain a BEBEEERE) -

purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised RHEENHEENTEERENRA
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease RRERLIERSER -

term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of

its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as

revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the

lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the

policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective

of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and

measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEREE (8)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified

or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not

subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value

with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be

measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of

the fair value through profit or loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its

entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or

loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the

Group's consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

+  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

« the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has

retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could

be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are

integral to the contractual terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECLs).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the

timing of the default (a lifetime ECLs).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical

and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash

flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial

assets at amortised cost are subject to

impairment under the general approach and they are

classified within the following stages for measurement of

ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 -

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 —

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEREE (8)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in

calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,

as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,

net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
The Group's financial liabilities include other payables
and accruals, deposits received, lease liabilities, an
amount due to the intermediate holding company and a
loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the

Group's subsidiary.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair

value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss does not include any interest charged on

these financial liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS
9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss, except for the gains or losses arising from the
Group’s own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to profit or loss. The net fair value gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any

interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and

borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in the profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value
is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in

fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part

of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted

as to use.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower
of their fair values less costs to sell and the amortised
costs of the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, and the related loans and advances
together with the related impairment allowances are
derecognised from the consolidated statement of
financial position. Subsequently, the repossessed assets

are measured at costs less impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

«  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

« in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at

the end of each reporting period and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred

tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets

are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and

are recognised to the extent that it has become probable

that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or

assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, for which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for

those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the

practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms.

Cruise ship charter service income is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the

benefits provided by the Group.

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading
are recognised on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses are recognised on changes in

fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Dividend income from equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised when the
shareholders' right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and

the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Fair value gains or losses on derivative financial
instruments are recognised on changes in fair value at

the end of the reporting period.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest rate method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using
the binomial model, further details of which are given in

note 25 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense

recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are

satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’'s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting

fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or

loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or

receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of

transactions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Income tax

The Group is engaged in the cruise ship charter service
business and accordingly may be subject to income taxes
in different jurisdictions depending on the routes of the
cruise ships and the operations of the relevant
companies. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes worldwide, if
any. The Group does not recognise any liability for
income tax based on management's judgement that the
Group is not subject to income taxes of any of the
jurisdictions outside Hong Kong based on the existing
routes of the cruise ships and the operations of the
relevant companies. In addition, the Group has obtained
indemnity letters from the charterer to confirm that all
relevant tax exposures of the Group’s cruise ships would

be borne by the charterer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and cruise ships

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar leases and other contracts. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.
In making its judgement, the Group considers fair market
value by reference to independent valuations. This
conclusion is supported by independent professional
appraisers who were engaged by the Group during the
year to perform valuations on the Group's investment
properties and cruise ships. As at 31 March 2022, the
fair values of investment properties and a cruise ship
included in property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately HK$556,308,000 (2021:
HK$540,780,000) and approximately HK$100,620,000
(2021: HK$120,435,000), respectively, which were
arrived at by reference to quoted second-hand market

prices.
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—E-_-_F=A=+—H

EEGE A E R G5 ()

et 2 FABEE
TXHRBEEBEARARZIERRMNES
RGBT HABERENEMERR
R mEAEARRESN TEMBF
EBArAfEeEYEERRBIRES
BIFHERNHE  BREZHEAWT -

REYER Big o N FIEEGE

REBEZEERFAEURE RHA
BHRRERMSFR2HRE - MRZ A H
B AEEeESBEZATFEEME
HEANESE NERHER - A&
Eg2BBIMELEATME L
HEGAEENAFEZBURAEE
ZEREMERBWETHECE LR
HEMYFE RZT-_—_F=A=+—
H REVEURBEEDE BE X
HENBHBAFEAEAS ND
556,308,000 T (=& = — & :
540,780,000/ 7T) & £9100,620,0007&
L (=& = — 4 : 120,435,000 JT) °
HEN2Z_FmisRESFSLL -
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31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. TEETHE R (&)
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) Rt 2 THEEE (&)
Deferred tax assets BEALHIRE E

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The gross deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2022 was
HK$8,124,000 (2021: HK$8,105,000). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2022 was
HK$244,104,000 (2021: HK$231,224,000). Further
details are contained in note 23 to the financial

statements.

Provision for impairment losses on loan and
interest receivables

The Group uses judgement in making assumptions and
selecting the inputs to its ECLs calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting

period.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customers’ actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
loan and interest receivables is disclosed in note 17 to

the financial statements.

HRMAE RS ARIEEREmERNRELT
HMIBAE - KRN A AL S A FERBUE T
ARERETHBA &S EEEA
BRZELEHRELEESHEK TEEA
AR 4% 7T B 3R R SR PE AR B0 B 2 B R
IR LA R R IR B 75 3R B SR M /E B R T o
RZE-_—_F=A=+—H F RO
RBEBEB2ELCHBEEERER
8,124,000/ 7T (=Z = — 4 : 8,105,000
BE) WNZEBE-_—_F#=A=+—0"

RIERBIBEIE 2 £ 5 /244,104,000
BIL(ZZ=—4:231,224,000/7C) °
ERAE—PH BNV ERERME23 -

JEW B XK T8 A 60 18 B 7R 7 1

AEERBEANEEREESE - RAEMS
AR IA B 7 %% 3R 5 AR 9 A RE 1 5T
EEEBRRIAMEERRERBERGE
B B A (BB A& A I

HBELEBERENR  QERRERRTE
HERBRZENAREFGEBERR
Ao BHMERBANSEIRRRE L
REBRABANEE - REBOE L
15 PR SR 48 B I 39 48O A O O FRUBI 7R R
PRERREFHNERZNBR - AR
AEERKEREMNENEREREX
MEREN B RRMEI7TABE -
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31 March 2022
—EZ=f=R=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REDWER

For management purposes, the Group is organised into EREERZ  AEBREEEBKLR

business units based on their businesses and services TSR TS B AL - B (R ] 5 R4

and has four reportable operating segments as follows: EoEmT

(@) the money lending segment engages in the provision (@) MEDBRENEHIZIBER
of mortgage loans and unsecured personal loans; HIRAAERK

(b) the cruise ship charter services segment engages in (b) HHEERBH HBUHBENIEHE R
the provision of chartering services of cruise ships; HE R :

(c) the property investment segment invests in prime () MEREDHRENBENTHRKME
office space and commercial shops for their rental SWAZBERAEEMREER
income potential; and fir s &

(d) the securities trading segment engages in the trading d) BHREBENHUEREEFEEF
of marketable securities for short-term investment EBIERBRERS -

purposes.
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31 March 2022
—EZf=R=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group's
profit/loss before tax except that interest income,
dividend income from an equity investment designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
corporate income as well as corporate expenses are

excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, tax
recoverable and other unallocated corporate assets as

these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude a loan advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, an
amount due to the intermediate holding company, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a

group basis.

Intersegment sales are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.

KEDHER (&)

EREIRERIEEREDEHNE
B ERIEERKMERE ZRER
ZooMEREARSEN D B &
BB DIREAERB AR
Fl/ BEOGE - EHBERBAR
M/ BEOFEF A EREEBREAS
M,/ BEEE - BZELTEE
MBEWA - EERRATFEBENAHAM
PEHKEHRERE 2REWA -
WA ARBERE -

DHMEETRERE IR S
Wl IE - LA KR H AR E
ARZEEE N REEE

$4w
He
it

i
mR
e

DEBETEERNEEWE QR 2 IEE
x%%iHZEm JE A R R AR A A
CEANIE CRTEHEAER UK
SECEEE BRZFAEED

/Hﬁﬁﬂi
BEEERE o

S

SERRIA B E - BN E =) S TR
A REE BRI TISERE
SETE
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. & S5 ZE R ()

Money Cruise ship Property Securities
lending charter services investment trading Total
& BRERRE UESE 2588 &
202 2021 2022 2021 202 2021 2022 2021 202 201

“E-CFE -F--F CB-CE -F--F CBoCE -5--f CZBoCE -E--F CZBICE O -E--E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Tin TEn Tn ThnL Tin Tin T Thn TEn

Segment revenue: ~ 2HHA
Revenue from extemal  SEXF 2

customers WA 61,060 74303 - - 16,275 16,268 3,406 9,789 80,741 100,360
Iersegmentseles — SHEHHE - - - - 3,071 3071 = - 3,071 3071
Other income EfHA 13 1078 - - 76 875 - | 89 1954

61,073 75,381 - - 19422 20,214 3,406 9790 83,901 105,385
Recondllation:
Elimination of
intersegment sales (307) (307)

Total revenveand  WARAK

other income PN 80830 102314
Segmentresults  AHEE 9005 61801 (6449 (11235 18284 (58%) 3365 976 W5 (4664)
Reconcliation; I
Bank nterestincome IS A 699 1033

Ganondisposdl of s~ HIERHRE
non-current asset B

held for sele i T4 -
Copoateand oher £ ERE

unalocated income~~ RAEMA 8 1,144
Coporteand other R A

walocated expenses  FAEHER (25706)  (26693)

Logs before tar hHuER (60)  (71,160)
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31 March 2022
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4,

Segment assets ELL

Reconciltion: 5
Eiminaton of DRl
intersegment receiables BN FA

Coporteand other PRk
wndlocaed assets  RAEEE

Total assefs AEgE

Segment liabiliies A8

Reconcilation: HE
Eiminafion of s HEN
inersegment peyables  Ef A
Coporte and other ~—~ ERER
wndlocated iabilties ~ APEEE
Total liabltes qE8E
Other segment EA
information: g4
Deprecition fi&
Fair value losses/(ains) #&41%7
on investment NFEEEE/
propertes, et (&) ¥8
Defiit on revaluation ~ B% 2 &1
of cuiseships,net B4 B8

Fairvalue losses/(gans) RATERFTARE

on equity investments  E9RERE 2
atfineetough  AFEEEE/
poftorloss,net (&) 58
Farvleganson — BATERFAER
financil lablltes ~ M12BEKL
at fair vlie togh ~ AFEE
fit or loss b
Reve sa\o mpaiment  EHEHR
lossesonloanand ~~ FISHHE
merest ecehiables  BEAE
Provision for/(feversal of) £ EEEH
animpaiment osson~ FESE
arepossessed asset A /(B D)
Ceptel ependiure® B ¥

KEDHER (&)

Money Cruise ship Property Securities
lending charter senvices investment trading Total
it BRERRE UES 258 ait

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2020 2022 2000
“E-CE -EF--F CECCE O -F--F CBCCE -EF--F CBoCE -E--f CBICE CEC-f
HK$'000 H000 — HKS000 HK§000  HKS000 H§000  HKS000 HK$000  HKS000 HK§ 000
ThR TEL Thrn TRL ThL TEL Thrn TAL ThT TEL
194172 109274 100,620 147630 558,072 546,588 88,251 136365 1541715 1539857
. (180)

529321 590,605

207103 2,130,282

1,705 8717 15329 17513 4993 5292 - - 2007 31522

- (180)

131,255 133,048

153,282 164,390

287 14 1,780 15,668 = - = = 8,067 15810

- i - - (15500 19486 - - (15500 19486

= = 12,001 59,628 = = = = 12,001 59,628

- - - - - - 1671 (68079 1471 (8079)

- - - - - - - (391) - (391)
(498)  (1050) - - - - - - (498)  (1,050)
(1) 30 - s - - - - (1) 30
134 567 = 11,770 = = = = 134 12337

o BAXHBEYE  BERREBORE -

*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

and equipment.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4,

Geographical information

(a)

(b)

Revenue from external customers and other
income
Hong Kong e

REE: (TEEER)

Southeast Asia except Hong Kong

The revenue information above is based on the

locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

BB
REE: (TEEEE)

Hong Kong

Southeast Asia except Hong Kong

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes an equity
investment designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—EZ=f=R=+—H

KreEIER (F)
ih & & R
(a) SNREFZ WA REMMA

2022 2021
—E-= — B4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
78,972 100,280
1,858 2,034
80,830 102,314

bt A E R AR PR B [ 38 A A

B o

(b) FEBEE

2022 2021
—E=-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
747,770 610,586
265,928 270,715
1,013,698 881,301

LR BEEERAEEFEE

HAER WIAE

REERBRAF

EBEFAEMEZEKDEORERE -
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31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents interest income from mortgage loans
and unsecured personal loans, gross rental income from
investment properties, fair value gains/losses on equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, net, fair
value gains/losses on financial assets/liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and dividend income from

equity investments at fair value through profit or loss

during the year.

An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows:

Revenue

Interest income from mortgage loans
and unsecured personal loans

Gross rental income from
investment properties

Fair value gains/(losses) on equity
investments at fair value through
profit or loss, net

Fair value gains on financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Dividend income from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Other income

Bank interest income
Government subsidies (Note)
Others

5. WAREMYA

A

WIS E R M EEIRALA
B B WA

REMEZH T
WA#BER

BAFEEFARERN
iR E 2 N FEE
Wz (E51R) - 58

BAFEEGABTN
EMABZAFEENRSE

BAFEESFABGN
AR E Z BB M A

HA A
RITH B WA
B 8 B (P 5E)
H it

WARAFERBERMEERLAE
HEOFBWA - REMEZHEBAL
B RAFEEAABENOREREZ
RTEEKEEE -
Bt NERHNERMEE BBEZATE
Bz B

FE - BRATE

ARIRAFEER AR

SO RBIRE ZRBHA -

WAREMBAZaHnT

2022 2021
—TEC-CfF T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
61,060 74,303
16,275 16,268
(1,671) 8,079
- 391

5,077 1,319
80,741 100,360
699 1,033

- 2,191

97 907

796 4,131
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

Note:

In the prior year, the government subsidies were wage subsidies
provided by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region under the Employment Support Scheme.
Subsidies from the government were recognised at their fair
value where there was a reasonable assurance that the subsidies
would be received and the Group would comply with all
attached conditions. Government subsidies relating to costs were
deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs for which they were

intended to compensate.

Annual Report 2022 F
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5.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

WAREMmBA (&)
B &E -

REFE BB AEERETHRERA
RIFMRMEIGTEIRHNH T EMA - BUTH
Bh X BE & TR HEE AT M X B AN SR S S TR U
BB IMZ GHRIZERAFEET AR
R ERARENBTMBELELKR iR
S ENBARTET IR 2 AR AER
m AP RER
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31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of services provided*

Depreciation*

Auditor's remuneration

Employee benefit expense
(including directors’
remuneration in note 8):
Salaries and allowances
Pension scheme contributions*

Total staff costs

Lease payments not included
in the measurement of
lease liabilities

Foreign exchange differences, net

Direct operating expenses
(including repairs and
maintenance) arising from
rental-earning investment
properties

Fair value losses/(gains) on
investment properties, net

Reversal of impairment losses on
loan and interest receivables, net

P 12 14 AR 75 X AR+
e
% B B 2
BERAMHAX
(BFEMEsZ
=Mz
e MOERE
RKEE SR

B TR AR 4%

TEREEHE
BEEN
MENHE

PE R Z% 8

MEEEMEZ
HeEmEER
HERKERY
(BiEMHE
MRE)

BEMEZ AFEE
B (k) - R

FE U E SR R ) B

BEEBERE - F5E

Provision for/(reversal of) an KEEEMN
impairment loss on a VEREY R ]
repossessed asset Bk (BE)

Special subsidies to the charterer ~ EERF A A 2
of cruise ships 5 71l #8 B

& Included in depreciation above were amounts for

depreciation of cruise ships of HK$7,780,000 (2021:
HK$15,668,000) charged to cost of services provided.

*  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by

the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of

contributions.

6. BREATER
AEEMBRBAEEEMNG, GEA)

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
=2 FET FET
7,780 15,668

12 15,268 23,048
1,680 1,620

18,574 20,112

882 956

19,456 21,068

12(c) 295 275
200 (1,269)

3,049 2,758

14 (15,502) 19,486
17 (498) (1,050)
19 an 300
36,426 31,153

o P ERENETIRERSK AN
T 4T & & %87,780,0008 ¢ (= F
——4% : 15,668,000/ 7T) °

Y EAKEEREEIAAHANE R
RUEI R - OREIR B B HEROKF -
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31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. EEEREK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMERARDHIT
2022 2021
—_E_— —EF - —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENHNE 8 10
8. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EERTNBSFHFEEMS
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ remuneration a) EEM2
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed BEEEHAEXHMERRAF([H
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of B EFLEMBA( LT
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock WAL - BB(RAGH) F
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong 383(1)(a) * (b) ~ () EME &
Stock Exchange”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (RRI(BEEEFM=ER) HOD
(f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part FE2HBMENAFEEEMEOT ¢
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Fees e 414 414
Other emoluments: Hi -
Salaries and allowances e KOEBRL 7,138 8,116
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 804 789
Pension scheme contributions RIK e &gt 397 447
8,339 9,352

8,753 9,766
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8. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(i) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok o $EL B 5 A4
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth A R i ot
Mr. Ho Yau Ming fa] R B 55 &

There were no other emoluments payable to
the independent non-executive directors during
the year (2021: Nil).

8. EERANBSHEEMNS (H)

() EEM= (&)

() BUIFHTEF

RAFEXNFTBIFEAT

BE2Be0T
2022 2021
—=E-= —EZ—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T FAT
138 138
138 138
138 138
414 414

RAFE  WEENIBIIFHR
TEFEZHMBHE (ZF=—

FE|E) o



8.

(i) Executive directors

2022

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

2021

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

—E-CF

HTES
EEfLE
mEt L
st
ENELT
RSt
L

i
i

iy
B

piils

Bt

i

Annual Report 2022 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

8. EERAUBSHEEM (HA)

() E=M = ()
() BITEFE

Pension
Salaries and Discretionary scheme Total
allowances bonuses contributions remuneration
BEihe

FeREM  WERLA SEfR We4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRET TAT TRT THT

1,488 151 82 1,721
1,536 162 85 1,783
934 103 52 1,089
822 77 45 944
698 80 39 817
1,660 231 94 1,985
7,138 804 397 8,339
1,711 142 93 1,946
1,758 155 96 2,009
1,063 100 59 1,222
952 70 51 1,073
797 80 44 921
1,835 242 104 2,181

8,116 789 447 9,352
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(i) Executive directors (continued)
As the Group was affected by outbreak of
COVID-19, all executive directors of the Group
voluntarily agreed to waive their basic monthly
salaries by 25% temporarily with effect from 1
November 2020 until further notice. Save as
disclosed above, there was no arrangement
under which any director waived or agreed to

waive any remuneration during the year.

(b) Five highest paid employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid employees during the year
included five (2021: five) executive directors, details
of whose remuneration are disclosed in note 8(a)

above.

8. EERANBSHEEMNS (H)

() EEM= (&)
(i) BiTEFE (&)

MR AL EZF20198 ik &
SRETNTE Bt &%
BERTEEHERRAREY
R H AR AH#K)25% @ &
—E_THE+-F-HEAE
MEEZEBTEM B X
BEEIN  RAFE  WEFE
MERELREXRERE
Ea & 2 ZHE -

b) ERBSHFESHS
REFE  ERSEHESSER
R(-F-—F BR)HRGTES
HB$ 2 #1EE R L XM i8R
W -
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INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for
one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2021:
8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at
16.5% (2021: 16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

operates.

Current — Hong Kong BVE— &%

Charge for the year rEEEM
Underprovision/(overprovision) BAFEBRETR
in prior years (HBFERE)
Current — Elsewhere BVER — H fth b [=
Charge for the year REEER
Underprovision in prior years BAEFEREBETR
Deferred (note 23) EIERIE (M 5E23)
Total tax charge for the year REEMRBERERE

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

Frig8 %

RAFE BEENSHIREEEESL
2 b ET R T % A1 16.5% (ZF = —
F:16.5%) 2 BHEBE  EREANF
BRES  AEB-—FRWERRREE
1% & 88 - % M B & 7] 52,000,000 JT
— % = — 4 : 2,000,000/ 7T) B &R
BiH A 1%28.250 (— T~ —4 : 8.250%)
BB R A ERE R B R B Bl IR
16.5% (ZZF = —4F : 16.5%) By E &1
Bt o HAthith 2 2 & BR TR M A 1R Ty AR 1B
REBEBAMEEEER 2BRITHE

R

2022 2021
—=E-= —ET-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
7,722 9,636
(164) 46

168 130

- 1
(951) (1,038)
6,775 8,775
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31 March 2022
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9. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/

(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions

in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries

are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates,

and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the

statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as

follows:

2022
—EC-CE

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate
Lower tax rates enacted
by local authority

Adjustments in respect of

current tax of previous periods

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses not recognised
Others

Tax charge at the Group's

effective rate

BB ATERN/ (B8R)

BEEREF R HE
A BTV
RERE
HEESR Y

D LEE:S
BRRB L BN
PN ZAX
AEARBER

B

BASEERHE
AEZHERR

FHLEEEEERLA

9. BB (&)
REAXRRAB RERIDH B R R E:
ZRVEEBER ZEEMEFNE 2B A
HWA (BB ERZHRERY BIRE
BRRERFECRMEBERAT 2HER  UWRE
FAREBIETHR) BERME 28
R
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
BB Hit B B3t
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THx TAR TR
(16,451) 16,391 (60)

114) 165 2,787 17.0 73 (1217)
(165) 1.0 (101) (0.6) (266) 4433
(164) 1.0 - - (164) 2733

(1,267) 77 (2550  (156)  (3817) 63617

9,536 (58.0) 2 = 9,538 (15,896.6)

2,122 (12.9) - - 2122 (3,536.7)
(741) 45 30 02 (T11)  1,185.0

6,607 (40.2) 168 1.0 6775 (11291.7)
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

INCOME TAX (continued)

2021

—F — ¢
=
=

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate
Lower tax rates enacted
by local authority
Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous periods
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax losses utilised
Tax losses not recognised
Others

Tax charge at the Group's

effective rate

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

BHAET, (B8

BEEREEZHE
A3 BART AL A9
RIEH =X
BT R B
RBENAE
BARB WA
TR Z A X
EBRHBER
AERHBER

At

RAEEERHE
HEHEEM

FHELEEEEETRAA
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

9. FiiE® ()

Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
B Hit it 2 &t
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
TET TET TET
10,803 (81,963) (71,160)
1,782 165 (13,934) 170 (12,152) 17.1
(165) (1.5) (99) 0.1 (264) 0.4
46 0.4 1 - 47 0.1)
(3051)  (282) (580 0.7 (3631) 5.1
10,324 955 14,792 (18.1) 25116  (35.3)
(686) (6.4) - - (686) 1.0
1,291 12.0 = = 1,291 (1.8)
(897) (8.3) (49) 0.1 (946) 1.3
8,644 80.0 131 (02) 8775  (12.3)
10. R 2

EETEEREBEE_ZT-__F=A
T+t BLEERMGEIAMEE (=ZF
——F | o
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

11. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 11

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is

based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary

equity holders of the Company, and the number of
ordinary shares of 5,780,368,705 (2021: 5,780,368,705)

in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per

share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March

2022 and 2021 in respect of a dilution as the impact of

the share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect

on the basic loss per share amounts presented.

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on:

Loss
Loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, used in

the basic loss per share calculation

Shares
Number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, used in

the basic loss per share calculation

BB

AHEESRENERE
e P NI
R B ARHEEER

1% 4

RAFEAEER
EAXRBEBREERZ
E#TEBREA

ARRAREBRRERA ARG

BREE
BREAEBESBENIRBAAGEHER
BRIERAEABORFEEBRANEE
B 31T ¢ @A EE 5,780,368,705% (=
T —1 :5,780,368,705/%) 5t & ©

E_EBE__FRZIZFZ-—F=AR
T—BHIEFEE  WEREEHE RN
BREAEBESHELAR  REA/H
RITHRZ BRES I HHTREREE
SEEST REERE -

[ B

)

BRENEEIRATSEF;E

2022 2021
—E-—F T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
(1,501) (56,712)
2022 2021
—E-—F T —%F

5,780,368,705 5,780,368,705
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 1.YM%E BERREUREEESE
LIABILITIES

Right-ofuse assets Owned assets
EREEE FrtEE
Furnture,
Leasefold Leasehold fixtures and Motor Cruise
[and Buildings Total Buidings  improvements  equipment vehicles ship Total Total
BENE  BAZE

BR1% g it 5 4 Rif i L] &it ch
BRSO HKSOO  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSOD  HKSOOO  HKSOOO
ThR TER TE7 TER TR TE7 &7 TER TR TE7

31 March 2022 - Sukud 3

ZR=1-8
A3 March2021and  R-E--%=R
1 Apil 2001 =t-8k
Costor valuation LE] 138,343 465 138,808 10875 5443 4202 215 120435 143,080 261,888
Accumulted depreciton (19,088) (15)  (19244) (2647) (3571) (3,040) (1140) - (10354 (295%)
Net carying amount AT 119,255 309 119,564 8228 1916 1,162 985 120,435 132,126 252290
A1 Aprl 2021, netof  HZE--ERA-H-
acumulted depreciation  MREEAEZFE 11925 309 119,564 8228 1916 1,162 95 120435 132726 252,290
Addtons HE - 8 8 - - 29 - - 296 378
Defict on reveluation ~~~ B4 - - - - - - - (12001) (12001) (12001)
Depreceton provided ~~ HEERZ
duing the year TERR (46%) (189) (4833) (335) (1,687) (#36) (197) (1780) (10435) (15,269)
Behange redigment B ER - - - = ® ° = (39 (39 ()
A3 March 2022, netof  RZE-ZE=F
acoumulated depreciion  =1-F B2

fEL 58 114610 203 114813 7893 9 1022 788 100620 110,552 25,365
At 31 March 2022: HN-F--%=f

E
Costor valuation BASEE 138,343 547 138,890 10875 5443 4,498 215 100620 123,561 262,451
Accumulted depreciaion 27897 (23733) (Ga)  (407) (298) (5.214) (3476) (1331) - (13009) (37,086

Net carying amount FEFE 114610 203 114813 1893 9 1,022 188 100,620 110552 225,365
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2022
—EZf=R=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

12. 9% BERRBURBERE

LIABILITIES (continued) (#&)
Right-of-use assets Ouned assets
fRELE FEmAE
Fumiture,
Leasefold Leasehold ~ fitures and Motor (rise
lend Buildings Total Buldngs  improvements  equipment vehicles ships Total Total
BENE  GH-RE
i) BT aif g7 £ Rikfe E L] R aif
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$1000 HK$ 000 HK 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
ThR Thn T Tin Thn Thn Tk Tin ThT T
31 March 2021 B -
ZR=t+-A
At 1 Apil 2020: R-F-REMA-A:
Cost or valuation BAgEE 138,343 58 138,671 10875 6,557 3633 2125 199,680 0810 361,541
Aecumuleted depreciaion - 247 % (14483) (108 (1455) (2312 (2950) (2760) (8%4) - 620 (347)
Net carying amount FEE8 123,900 20 124120 8,563 3603 873 1231 199,680 213950 338,070
AT Apil 2020, netof  HZZZTEMA-R
accumulated depreciaton 1 BEEfELEE 123,900 20 124120 8,563 3603 873 1231 199,680 213950 338,070
Additions RE - 276 276 - - 569 - 11,770 12,339 12615
Deficton revaluation ~~ Bff &5k - - - - - - - (59628) (59628) (59,628)
Deprecieton provided ~~ HAFEZ
duing the year &EE (4645) (187) (483 (339) (1667) (280) o) (5668 (829 (3049)
Tensfertoa noncurent EAGEREY
asset held for sale FRBEE - - - - - - - (27,19) (27,195) (2719)
Exchange realigment B HE e - - - - - - 11476 11476 11476
At 31 March 2021, netof  RZE--%£=R
acoumulated deprecition  =1-H - 2R
bt 119255 309 119564 8228 1916 1,162 95 120435 132726 25,9
At31 March 2021: H=3=-%=4
Zt-8:
Cost or valuaton BAskE 138343 465 138,808 10875 5443 40 215 120435 143,080 281,888
Accumulated depreciation ~ 27897& (19,088) (156) (19244) (2647) (352]) (3040) (1,140) - (10354) (2959)
Net carying amount E05E 119255 309 119,564 8228 1916 1,162 985 120435 132,726 25229
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

(i) The Group's right of use of leasehold land represents
prepaid lease payments. The leasehold land, together with
the owned buildings, is held for own use. The leasehold
land is held on medium-term leases expiring between May
2037 and December 2055.

(i) The Group leases properties used in its operations. Leases
for these assets are negotiated for terms ranging from two
to three years with no extension or termination options and
all the lease payments are fixed.

At 31 March 2022, the land and buildings in Hong Kong
with a net carrying value of HK$118,075,000 (2021:
HK$122,773,000) were pledged to secure a banking
facility granted to the Group (note 28).

In March 2021, one of the cruise ships with a carrying
amount of HK$27,195,000 was reclassified as a non-
current asset held for sale in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Further details are included in note
13 to the financial statements.

The Group's cruise ship included in property, plant and
equipment was revalued on 31 March 2022 by HG
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer, on an open market basis.
A revaluation deficit of HK$12,001,000 resulting from the
above valuation, has been charged to profit or loss.

In the prior year, the Group's two cruise ships included in
a non-current asset held for sale and property, plant and
equipment were revalued on 31 March 2021 by Avista
Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer, on an open market basis. An aggregate
revaluation deficit of HK$59,628,000 resulted from the
above valuations, of which deficit of HK$66,713,000 had
been charged to profit or loss and surplus of
HK$7,085,000 had been credited to other
comprehensive income.

Annual Report 2022 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—EZ=f=R=+—H

12. % -BERREBUREERRE

(#&)
GEE

() AEERHEIHNERARAENEE
NRBE HELHEREBENEFTAR
BEAR  HETMIRTPPHEERSS
ER-_FT=ZtFRAZ-_ZTRHHF
+ZAZEER -

(i) AEEHERAMEEHLLERER &%
FEERUERENHEERAME=F "
WEARSKIEEZE FEREN
REHBEE °

R-E-_—_F=ZA=+—H EEFE
#118,075,0008 T (Z & = —F -
122,773,000 70) 2 &F Lt R EF
BRI URGBAEEER ZRTH
& (MIsE28) o

RZEZ—F=f EF—HEASHE
£27,195,0007% 7T ) B 85 7E 47 & 81 75 51K
MERNEFDEABEFENERDE
E-BR#E - THBHNMEHREWE
13 °

AEBBIEEYME  BERXEHEH
RZE_—_F=A=+—HEHHhBEIEZE
BEREEMGETHRBERBRAA
REARMEETEMG  LlHEEE
Z EEEALA12,001,0008 TE N EE
2o

REFE AEEREEREHFENIE
MENVEENARYE - BE RZEHMNE
BN —_ T —F=A=+—HAHBL
BELSERMGEMIEBTHZAER
REIBBEAFAMEETEMR - Lill{EE
EEZEMBEAS £ /59,628,000%8
JC - H AR E5 466,713,000 0 E 1 B 1B
7 LA R EH A A ££7,085,0007% T B B
AR M2 E LS o
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s cruise ships:

Recurring fair value

measurement for:

2022
Cruise ship

2021
Cruise ship included in
property, plant and

equipment

FEMRTF
BEFE:

—EB_-_F
iy

—E-—F
BREENE -
N
ok

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=ZB=+-BAFEBEHERH

12. 9% BERRBURBERE

(&)

AFEEERX
TRETAEEBHN A FEEFERE

.
IN -

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B BART BARHA
miEHE BEBAE BRBAE
(B-EBX) (B=EX) (B=EN) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET
= = 100,620 100,620
= = 120,435 120,435
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's cruise ships: (continued)

Non-recurring fair value

measurement for:

2021
Cruise ship included in a
non-current asset

held for sale

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

12. % -BERREBUREERRE
(%)

NP EEEBX (A
TRERASERBN A FEETER
R ()

Fair value measurement using

ATEEASRA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R EvNC| BRAH
5 HR(E ERBAE BEHAE
(E—ER) (FZER) == CEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET FET
FREMERT
BlEHE -
—E- %
BREREREN
ERBEE
B & - - 27,195 27,195

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil).

WAEE  BRES-BARE-ER
Z MR RIS E = ERBASEY
AFEEHE(CF=—F @) -

189



190

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B EF B ER 2 A

Annual Report 2022 3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at beginning of year R FE ¥ IRE © &
Addition nNE
Depreciation provided during the year ~ R AR E 2 #r & & 4E
Deficit on revaluation BEEAL
Transfer to a non-current asset EARBEHEN

held for sale FERBDEE
Exchange realignment PE 58 58 B

Carrying amount as at 31 March R=A=+—HHK

12. 9% BERRBURBERE

(&)
DR EERERX (K

DERATFEBERRIRAE=ZE RO

BEFENEE
Cruise ships
E)
2022 2021
—E_— —EF - —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FETT
120,435 199,680
= 11,770
(7,780) (15,668)
(12,001) (59,628)
= (27,195)
(34) 11,476
[ETis 100,620 120,435
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 12.

LIABILITIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques

used and the key inputs to the valuation of cruise ships:

Valuation Significant

techniques unobservable inputs

fEE R EXTUERERAE
Cruise ships Market data or comparative Market price per unit
Bin sales approach BEMTAER

GiRE ¢ L d N

HEE
Cost approach Remaining useful life
A% Ferte BEH

The market data or comparative sales approach considers
prices recently paid for similar assets, with adjustments
made to the indicated market prices to reflect the
condition and utility of the appraised assets relative to
the market comparative. Assets for which there is an
established second-hand market comparable are best

appraised by this approach.

The key input was the market price per unit, where a
significant increase/decrease in the market price would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value

of the cruise ship.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

NE- -BERZFEUREEAR
(#&)

NP EEREX ()

BATTS 78 3 58 4 1 {1 T 5 PR 1 1 1 e
TEHAENHE

Range

#E
2022 2021
—E-C-F —E-—%F

US$12,888,000 to  US$17,310,000 to
US$14,736,000 US$21,730,000
12,888,000 TZE 17,310,000 L%
14,736,000 7%  21,730,000% T

15 years 4 to 15 years
THE mE+RF

NSRS A LB ELZE ERONE
DEEMXNHER - LHIEENT IS
BRELAR  ARMRBHAT LR 2T
SHAEEENRRALAR BEEY
AL — FHIGHEEZ T ARG

REE-

TERAERBEMLTISER -MHE
BAREN L EEHBH A FEE
RGN, o
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31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 12.V% BEERREBEURBEESRS

LIABILITIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The cost approach considers the cost to reproduce or
replace in new condition the assets appraised in
accordance with current market prices for similar assets,
with allowance for accrued depreciation arising from
condition, utility, age, wear and tear, or obsolescence
present, taking into consideration past and present

maintenance policy and rebuilding history.

The key inputs were the rate of newness and the market
discount rate, which a significant increase/decrease in the
rate of newness in isolation would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the cruise ship and
a significant increase/decrease in the market discount
rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease/

increase in the fair value of the cruise ship.

Had the cruise ship been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, its
carrying amount would have been approximately
HK$100,620,000 (202 1: HK$137,891,000).

(&)

NP EEEBX(E)
RAEDRBEUEENRTNISE
% HBREGOR - Bg - RH - FERE
TFHERBE M RARFTINE - WEE
BBENMAENREBERRBERRE -
AEEEEENEHMANBELEEN
XA

EE A B AR ERTHI0E 5
HEEBAREN WD RERBHA
FEEAEHD, R - HBFNEE
WA, 8 BB R AT
KERD,/ 0

W2 S BRI £ AR RIEITE MR
EBEYIR - BIEBRM£EE%100,620,000
BT (ZZ = —4% : 137,891,000/ 7C) °
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land
and buildings used in its operations. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leasehold land with
lease periods of 23 to 44 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land

leases.

Leases of properties generally have lease terms between
two and three years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside

the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use

assets and the movements during the year are as

follows:

As at 1 April 2020 RZE_ZTFMA—A

Addition 0

Depreciation charge HEEH

As at 31 March 2021 RZ-ZT=—F=F=+—H
and 1 April 2021 E_ZE_—FMH—H

Addition N

Depreciation charge HEEH

As at 31 March 2022 R="FE=-=—f=H=+-—H

12.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

ME- BEERRBURBERE
(%)

AEBEREBEA
AEELSEEEDERANTR LI RE
FHERI THEAN - RRBHEEL
o AEEEXN—BEFR FHE
ERR-_tT=20+0F REZFLT
HWHEERRR - BERENR -

MENHER -—RAPME=F - — K
mE - AKREERAEELINSEM D
HHEEEETEERES -

(@) EHEEE
RAFE  NEEEREEENK
HEeBELEBEESHMT

Leasehold
land Buildings Total
HELH By CEil
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET
123,900 220 124,120
= 276 276
(4,645) (187) (4,832)
119,255 309 119,564
= 82 82
(4,645) (188) (4,833)
114,610 203 114,813
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31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

S

AND LEASE

The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the

movements during the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at
beginning of year

New lease

Accretion of interest recognised
during the year

Payments

Carrying amount at 31 March

Analysed into:
Current portion

Non-current portion

FHLEEEEERLA

12. 9% BERRBURBERE

(&)

AEBEREBEA ()

(b) HEERE

RAFE HEABNERESER

REAZBHMT

Lease liabilities

HEAE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
R EHH]

REeRE 312 221
EE 82 276
RAFE R

MBI AN 8 10
TR (196) (195)
R=ZA=+—HBKNERE£E 206 312
DR

mENE D 134 171

EME I 5 72 141

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed

in note 35 to the financial statements.

HEREMNIHBE M ER B @K

Mt SE35 A B EE o
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in
relation to leases are as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities HERBNHNE

Depreciation charge of EREEERN
right-of-use assets TEER

Expense relating to short-term HEHRHEHERRA
leases (included in BHEZ (BEE
administrative and operating TR R & &
expenses) X M)

Total amount recognised in EEmAERE

profit or loss kL

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

12. % -BERREBUREERRE
(%)

AEBEREEA (B)
(c) BHEEEzZ NEZRL L BB
7\— ;
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
8 10
4,833 4,832
295 275
5,136 5117
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BA RS R R aE

31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14)
consisting of five commercial properties in Hong Kong
and one commercial property in Singapore under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$16,275,000 (2021: HK$16,268,000), details of
which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

The Group also leases its cruise ships under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases require the
charterer to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions. No charter service income was recognised by
the Group during the year (2021: Nil).

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
and a charterer are as follows:

Within one year —F R
After one year but within two years
After two years but within three years

—FREMER
MEFRE=FA

N.Y¥ BERZBEUAREESE
(&)
AEBEEREBA
AEBBEBEECEHELHBEEREME
(fF314) (BELRB BN AIBEED
ELURMAFTMEH —BHEWE) B
H-HEGRRXR " RERKBPIMNRE
& WHRTEARBERNBITMERR
THHAEEE RAFE  AEEER
MHES WA AB16,2750008 L (==
—— % 116,268,000 ) - BB
BB SRR M FESA -

AEETRELEHELHSERR L
HoHEGRREBRKERAINRES -
I AR TE AR IR B e BT S O E B
HEEE NAFE  AEELERER
FAHERBURA(ZE-_—F: &) -

RZBZZFRZIF_—F=H="1—
B AEBREBEEEBELKBARAAGITL
B 1 AT 8 8 45 4 R B R o B HA R e Uk A
RITHBENHBOT

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
12,310 14,978
5,188 5,284

693 180

18,191 20,442
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14.

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE
As at 31 March 2021, one of the cruise ships under the

cruise ship charter services operating segment was
classified as a non-current asset held for sale in the
consolidated statement of financial position. On 22 April
2021, the Group, through an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary, entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of the cruise ship for
a cash consideration of approximately US$3,592,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,909,000). The
transaction was completed on 25 May 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, a gain on
disposal of a non-current asset held for sale of
HK$714,000 has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the Group's share of the
relevant aggregate revaluation surplus realised of
HK$4,730,000 included in the asset revaluation reserve
was transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31 March 2022, the Group's investment properties
consist of five (2021: five) commercial properties in
Hong Kong and one (2021: one) commercial property in
Singapore. The Group's investment properties were
revalued on 31 March 2022 based on valuation
performed by Knight Frank Petty Limited and PREMAS
Valuers & Property Consultants Pte. Ltd., independent
professionally qualified valuers, at an aggregate balance
of HK$556,308,000 (2021: HK$540,780,000). Each
year, the Group's executive directors decide to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group's executive directors have discussions with the
valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed for

interim and annual financial reporting respectively.

FHELEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2022 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.

14.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

BFEGENERBEE

R-E-_—F=A=+—H HHRHEES
RS E D HOER — BRI LRS I
BRARANDERAFAERENERDE
E-RZTEZ—FWA=-+=H £X&
EEBMEIEE2ENBAREBYE =
FEIN ek BEBnHE EHER
£ KRB 43,592,000 T (BERH
27,909,000/ 7T) - EHRXHERZE
——ERA-t+RBRERK-

REBE_ZT-__F=A=+—HILF
B HEREHENIERDEENRZE
7140008 TEERE B KR NER -
MEeETtEEERFENAEERNN
BB I E A EEE4,730,0008
TEEARBEBHEBARE S -

REWE

R-ZZTE-_—_FZA=+—H KEHEAH
REYMERERAB(ZEZ—F : A1F)
URBAZEENER—B(ZE=—
F:—H)NRTMBEIEEDE N
T ZF=A=+—H AEEHK
BEMEDBEHRBLEES AR GERD
5& 57 38 ERMTTA R A 8] PREMAS Valuers
& Property Consultants Pte. Ltd. 17 E{h
B & A # {8556,308,0008 70 (=&
— — 4 : 540,780,000/ 7T) - B F © &
EERTEFTACLZER —RIEFBE
MEBEREEYENINDIGE - ERE
BeiEmsiad B8 BUMERES
WIFFEKE - AEBHITESHHE
MRt R B R 2 F B RE T FHEST
HERTREEBRIRGEESE R
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

14. REY = (&)

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further details of which are

included in note 12 to the financial statements.

Certain of the Group's investment properties located in
Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$183,000,000 (2021: HK$183,000,000) at 31 March
2022 have been pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group as further detailed in note 28 to
the financial statements. Further details of the Group's
investment properties are included on pages 275 and
276.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

RELEHE REVEDHVETE=
7 BRE - THEBEN MR T
12

N-_E-_—_F=ZA=+—H AEBE
E #2{E 183,000,000/ 7T (Z T = — 4 -
183,000,000 7T) 2 i R EHE K & T
BEWECDERT  URESAEEER
ZRITRE - E— DB R mKM
28 AREREMEZ E—FFHIEH
2752768 °

AFEEERX
TRERAEEREMEO A FEER

B

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

REA=+-AATEEHERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TE B AT Ep |
T HE BHEBAE BZBAE
(B—ER) (B=BR) (B=ER) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TAET FET FHET
Recurring fair value SEMDT
measurement for: BEE
2022 —E-_F
Commercial properties BEME - - 556,308 556,308
2021 T —F
Commercial properties [HESES - = 540,780 540,780
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—E-_-_F=A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) ANFEEEEX(E)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RAFE HEEF-BRME_EBR
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no ZEEBESREEE=E A8 A E T
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). AFEEAE(ZE_—F: &) -
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised PERAFEEBANE=ZERNAF
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: BEFTENYEER

Commercial properties

2022 2021
—E_-— —EF - —

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT THET

Carrying amount at beginning of year REYIHNEE S5 540,780 551,576
Gains/(losses) from fair value NFEBEFEZ

adjustments, net W (Bi8) - 38 15,502 (19,486)

Exchange realignment HE 3, 38 B 26 8,690

Carrying amount at 31 March R=ZA=+—"HHNEES% 556,308 540,780
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

FHLEEEEERLA

14. REY = (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEEREKX(E)
Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques AT RREMRHEMRANGER
used and the key inputs to the valuation of investment MEREEWAEBEBNEE :
properties:
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range
fRER M BERFUEHERAR gE
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
Commercial Direct comparison Market price per square foot HK$15,720 to HK$15,000 to
properties approach method BYFRTHES HK$35,000 HK$36,000
[GESVES BERLBE 15,7208 T 2 15,000/ L&
35,0007 7T 36,000/ 7T
Income capitalisation Market rent per square foot HK$270 to HK$360  HK$210 to HK$320
approach method BYFRTHES 270 TE360E T 2108 E3208 T
WAB K% Capitalisation rate 2.75% to 3.00% 2.75% to 3.00%
B X 2.75%%3.00% 2.75%%3.00%

The direct comparison approach method provides the
market value of an expropriated property by comparing it
to values obtained in the open market of similar
properties. It follows three basic steps in arriving at the
value of the properties, including identifying the highest
and best use of the property; identifying similar
properties that have been previously sold (the
“comparable sales”); and adjusting the value of the

comparable sales.

The key input was the market price per square foot,
where a significant increase/decrease in the market price
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair

value of the investment properties.

EERBOABBLREAHMSIREE
P ENBEMERRKRMENTIHE
B HEBEWEEERKE=ZAZEX
T BRERVENZARRKERS
REAMEHENBEUYME (ALK
HED  REAHLEHENEEELH
o

TEHAEBRBFIRMGER -MH
ERAREN R EEBRENEDR
FEEKXEEM HD -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

15.

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value determined by the income capitalisation
approach method is the sum of the term value and the
reversionary value by discounting the contracted annual
rent at the capitalisation rate over the existing lease
period; and the sum of the average unit market rent at

the capitalisation rate after the existing lease period.

The key inputs were the market rent per square foot and
the capitalisation rate, where a significant increase/
decrease in the market rent in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties and a significant increase/decrease
in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the

investment properties.

EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
KRERE

BATFEED

comprehensive income
Unlisted equity investment,

at fair value

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the

Group considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group did
not receive any dividend (2021: Nil) from its unlisted

equity investment.
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EERRATVEERA
Hip 2 H W= B

FELEmEERE

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

BEM= (H)

ATEERER (F)
APABRMCEEEOD TP EERNE
Mt R A HFALBBRAEESY
FROBMEEREFEENAN &
RARERENTHENTBASEE
ALt EH B M -

TEHAERBFITRMSHAERER
b - TS BB AR M, H D
SEFREMELTEBEAEE MR
Do ARE A R B F AR 0, R
LEBBREMERAFEERNBRLD

%10 -

-
=

EEREAFEESAHME

HRBREHRERE
2022 2021
—=E=-= T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET FET
2,040 3,457

AR ED NAMELEE /A
FEEFAEMCEZERS  REALE
ERSABRENEE BRI -

HE-_Z-__F=A=+—RHLLFE -
R B A HIE T AR R A WO (E
RS (ZF_—F: &) -
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16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Prepayments a1~ FRIE

Deposits and other receivables

B IERE A

Less: Non-current portion

Current portion e A

ok

Deposits and other receivables mainly represented rental
deposits, building management fee deposits and
professional fees paid on behalf of borrowers. Where
applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The
loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default and past due amounts. As at 31 March 2022 and

2021, the loss allowances were assessed to be minimal.

FHLEEEEERLA

W N H Al MR

16. ANRIE - RERHEMWERER

2022 2021
—E2- —ET-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
1,963 1,578
4,206 4,799
6,169 6,377
(556) (461)
5,613 5916

ReRkEMRERUERTZRESEZS
REEEBEREUARRERAZINNE
XEM - -ER  ARERSTREEH
SEAGENELBRCEEABLRE
EETREIN - BREEFELAR
VA F B & BT AR 0 Ko AR SR A A A FEORI (4

BE) °

LHERANTBEENEREENBERAT
3 HA S 4 4 /R 5K IR N 8 B SR TE A0 SR ) FE
WEBER RBE__FR_FT_—F=
A=+—H EBEEBRBEHIERTK -
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17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

Loan and interest receivables EREREFE
Less: Provision for impairment

losses on loan and interest

receivables BB
Loan and interest receivables, EEZREF S
net of provision SR

o IR E R

Less: Non-current portion

ok

Current portion ENE

The Group's loan and interest receivables, which arose
from the money lending business of providing mortgage
loans and unsecured personal loans in Hong Kong, are

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Except for loan and interest receivables of
HK$13,990,000 (2021: HK$21,869,000) as at 31 March
2022, which are unsecured, bear interest and are
repayable with fixed terms agreed with customers, all
loan and interest receivables are secured by collateral
provided by customers, bear interest and are repayable
with fixed terms agreed with the customers. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the reporting
dates is the carrying value of the loan and interest

receivables mentioned above.

o BB E R R
B R RE

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

17. BRERK R B

2022 2021
—=E-= == —l=3
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
739,077 661,861
(1,779) (2,601)
737,298 659,260
(231,469) (87,770)
505,829 571,490

AEBHNEURERENMETTEERBL
EHERS (RERBERLEEML
ANEF)MEL  WABTREFESN -

WR—_ZET-_—_F=ZA=+—H" K
13,990,000 Tt (=ZFT = — & :
21,869,000/ 7T) H) FE W & X & F 2 TY
AR - 5B RIREE P % E /15 E 5
BAEERIN FTERKER KT S H
EFPRHMERMIEER s ERIRHE
EEFHMEMNETHBNER B8RS
HEMEERRESRRA LR ERE
HEFEHREE -
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17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 17.

The movements in the provision for impairment losses

on loan and interest receivables are as follows:

ERERRRE (&)
EREREMNERREEEREZ S
T

2022 2021
—E-F —EFE -

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

At beginning of year REFH) 2,601 3,651

Reversal of impairment losses on loan FEREF RFERRE

and interest receivables, net (note 6) EriE R - FEE (M3E6) (498) (1,050)
Amount written off as uncollectible AU o) M # H ) & 58 (324) -
At the end of year RERK 1,779 2,601

As at 31 March 2022, loan and interest receivables of
HK$2,607,000 (2021: HK$6,360,000) were past due.
Except for overdue personal loan and interest receivables
of HK$289,000 (2021: HK$1,105,000) with no
collateral, the overdue balances of HK$2,318,000 (2021:
HK$5,255,000) were mortgage loans and were related to
a number of third-party customers. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that these overdue mortgage
loans were fully secured by the collateral, and
accordingly, these balances are still considered to be fully

recoverable and not impaired.

R-E-_-_F=ZA=+—H 2@Hz
JEUWE R & A B A2,607,0008 7T (ZF
Z——% :6,360,000% 7T) ° BriE HI & A
A an B FE IFL A B 3 B 8.289,000
BIL(ZZT=—4 1,105,000/ 70) 5 -
B HA AL #72,318,000 L (Z T = — 4
5,255,000/ 7T) R\ E R R I T H %
BE=ZFRPEB ARTREEFRAUL
EnRBERCHETRREEER
REA L - b F &R AR ER] 2 8k E
R A SR o
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17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. EWEFZEFE (&)
Movements on the Group's provision for impairment AEERREREF B REEEREG
losses on loan and interest receivables are as follows: gEha T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-KER E-RE = &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FHET TET
As at 1 April 2020 RZZ-TFNHA—H 1,656 885 1,110 3,651
Loan recovered or repaid during the year FRE R EHEEENER (880) (492) (438) (1,810)
Transfer to 12-month expected credit BEET-_EAEHRERREX
losses not credit-impaired (Stage1) CRERRE) (F-EKR) 249 (249) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected credit BRZEEAFTERES éJﬂTE
losses not credit-impaired (Stage 2) K(KRERRE) (EZB&) (1) 111 - -
Transfer to lifetime expected credit BRSEEGFE Eﬁﬁﬁﬁfz}iﬁ?@
losses credit-impaired (Stage 3) X (BERRE) (F=ER) Q) - / -
Total transferred between stages Pz HEREE 131 (138) 7 -
Impact on year ended expected FRER M OMRERZ FE
credit loss of exposures transferred ERHFREHER
between stages during the year BANYE (187) 87 147 47
Movements due to changes in credit risk {2 & &5 B 2 i 18 B i) &2 Q) (34) 47 12
New loan originated REFER 324 377 - 701
As at 31 March 2021 R_E-—-F=A=+—H
and 1 April 2021 kZFZ—%MA—H 1,043 685 873 2,601
Loan recovered or repaid during the year FREWEHEEENER (356) (377) (605) (1,338)
Amount written off as uncollectible REEBE MM e = = (324) (324)
Transfer to 12-month expected credit BWEZT_@AREHEABEX
losses not credit-impaired (Stage 1) (REERRE) (B—RER) 198 (198) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected credit %Tﬁ?”flfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁé
losses not credit-impaired (Stage 2) K (RERRE) (EZER) (202) 202 - -
Transfer to lifetime expected credit BEZE IT? Hﬁfﬁﬁﬁ R#E
losses credit-impaired (Stage 3) L (BEARE) (BZEE) (41) (110) 151 =
Total transferred between stages f& B% ZFaﬁL}?@%@%E (45) (106) 151 =
Impact on year ended expected FRARR M OMERZ @
credit loss of exposures transferred EREHEEBHER
between stages during the year BANTE (119) 446 166 493
Movements due to changes in credit risk  E{EEE RS ME RN E &) 101 - 55 156
New loan originated REFMER 191 - - 191
As at 31 March 2022 R-ZB-ZF=ZA=+—-H 815 648 316 1,779
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17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. EWE R RS (&)

For loan and interest receivables that are not credit-
impaired and without a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition (“Stage 1"), ECLs are measured at
an amount equal to the portion of the lifetime ECLs that
results from default events possible within the next 12
months. If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not yet deemed
to be credit-impaired, the ECLs are measured based on
lifetime ECLs. In general, when loan receivables or their
related instalments are overdue by 30 days, there is a
significant increase in credit risk. As at 31 March 2022, a
total provision of HK$1,463,000 (2021: HK$1,728,000)
was made under Stage 1 and Stage 2 based on

assessment from the ECLs model.

In general, loan and interest receivables are considered in
default when the loan and interest receivables or its
related instalments are overdue by 90 days. As at 31
March 2022, loan and interest receivables with an
aggregate amount of HK$26,402,000 (2021:
HK$54,381,000) were in default under Stage 3 lifetime
ECLs and a provision of HK$316,000 (2021:
HK$873,000) was made.

P EER B VIR ERERBEEIL MK
WARERAREOEREREFE ([5F
—BERmE  BEEREXTEAS
REEGFERBREABRPEBTE
RAR+ZEARNEROELDEHHOI
DH eI E - WEBANIEERR S
iR EC BB M ((E MR -
BEREEECERRE  BEHRERE
KRB EFEREHERABRE -
—RmE ERKERIEFENSH
NR@EH=1+0 " RlEERREEEHY
m R-—_ZT-_—F=ZA=+—8  RE
TBEERBREXGE  EE—BRE
ERERIFELEHS £1,463,000% 7T
—EF - —4% 1,728,000 7T) °

—MmE BRERRFESEAEED
SDEHEFEHRNATA  BREZREFE
Qg RIEREH R_TE=_=_F=A
=+ —H #%%/26402,000/8 7T
—ZT = —1% :54,381,000870) ZEHK
ERRFECEBANMBAZ =RRER
FEBREREREBEL  WIEDEE
316,000 70 (= Z — —4F : 873,000/

JT) °
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17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. EREREFE (E)

A maturity profile of the loan and interest receivables as P& RS BR B IS B R B B AR 12 B A
at the end of each reporting period, based on the B (EMBRE®B) 2 2 HH[HOT

maturity date, net of provision, is as follows:

2022 2021
—=E-= oA TS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current B HA 505,829 571,490
Over 1 year and within 5 years —FUAERAFZA 185,149 44,507
Over 5 years AFE 46,320 43,263
737,298 659,260

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. ERE S RA
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T T

Trade receivables EWE 5 R 8,842 43,413
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18

. EWE 5 R (&)

$’§léﬁi¥)5fﬂz BRIEFRTIENEE

The Group's billing terms with customers are mainly on
credit. Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of
issuance. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management. The main type of collateral held by
the Group as security is deposits received from tenants
and a charterer with an aggregate value of
HK$11,546,000 (2021: HK$14,436,000). Trade
receivables of HK$8,176,000 (2021: HK$39,828,000)
due from security dealers bear interest at floating rates
and trade receivables of HK$666,000 (2021:
HK$3,585,000) due from tenants bear interest at fixed

rates on the overdue amount.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end

EAET - ZRBEEANBELHE=TH
m,%ziﬁ CB-EFZAFEELR - AKH
TFEAREREE 2 BRI AR 2 1%
fl-2REBAEGEHES AN
BH-AEEREERERZERARTE
BERAMBEPRERAAKNREBRSH
11,546,000/8 7T (ZF = —%F : 14,436,000
HBIT) 2 & © 8,176,000 7T (=T = —
%+ 39,828,000/ 7T) B FEULEE 55 2 5 7
B HE PRI ERG B RER

HEE 56660008 L (Z T - —F ¢
3,585,000/ JT) A6 HA & B8 3% & 7F FI K51
B o

REZZAH NEEHREBRKRES

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

FRBGETTHRRE DT T ¢

2022 2021

—E-— —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Within 1 month —fEAR 8,706 40,242
1 to 2 months —ZMEHA 136 349
2 to 3 months W ZE = & A - 349
Over 3 months =EANE - 2,473

8,842 43,413
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not

subject to enforcement activity.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9 which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for
all trade receivables. The expected credit loss rate for the
Group's trade receivables is minimal for all the above

bands of trade receivables.

As at 31 March 2022, certain subsidiaries have pledged
trade receivables with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$121,000 (2021: HK$3,462,000) to secure banking
facilities granted (note 28).
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18. ERE SR (&)

REREAH  NEBERBBEEMEG
EBRMERER  RETRESN - 1B
RWEREUNTRAEFP DB EETD

Ao BEXASENE BB ER-
B ERRE R MEERIANNRE
RHMAISEBEEN B RK
REERNFANESEBBERENG
Beo—mME  BEEZRFMALE
B FRUEETEMRFRITES
B M o

AEBEABAVEREENFIRD
%kﬁﬁﬁhﬁ%ﬁ%%%%ﬁ Hn
TR EWE REEFERD
%Eﬁﬂ?aﬁ’%%é%oﬁdtiu AR EYE
SHEFRME ARBEREKE ZERRNTE
HERBAETS -

RZEBEZZF=—A=+—RH BTHE
NAIEKEREEBES£/121,0008 7T (=
——% 13,462,000 L) K EWE 5
RRIERERRITRENER (M=
28) °
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19. REPOSSESSED ASSETS 19

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security for mortgage loan and interest
receivables. The nature and carrying value of these assets

held as at 31 March are summarised as follows:

Repossessed properties KEEE
— commercial property i E 3 7/ES
— residential properties —EEME

They are properties in respect of which the Group has
acquired access or control through court proceedings for
release in full or in part of the obligation of borrowers of
mortgage loans. The estimated market value of the
repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31 March
2022 was HK$62,820,000 (2021: HK$50,820,000)
based on valuation carried out by Knight Frank Petty
Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer,
using the market comparable approach that reflects
recent transaction prices for similar properties, adjusted
for differences in the nature, location and condition of
the properties under review. Each year, the Group's
executive directors decide to appoint which external
valuer to be responsible for the external valuation of the
Group's repossessed assets. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group's executive directors have discussions with the
valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed for

interim and annual financial reporting respectively.

EEEE

A& E L R IZIBE R R H B EUSHE
ERmMEBEE -RFR=ZA=1T—
BRFEMEENEE MEREERADT

2022 2021

—E2- —E-—%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHE T FH&T

14,132 14,132

39,226 32,385

53,358 46,517
HEAAREEHBREEEFISERSIIZE
FIERNYE  ERBRIZBETERA
MeEHaHrET R-TE-_—_F=A8

=T—H REHBUEXAERMGEE
2R ST R EERTT AR R BIHA MG LR
A(RBRBUMERMNRZER I
REBYENNEE UERKRINER

ERAR)EITHHE  AEEMFS
MEBEBEENGT MEEEABS
62,820,000 L (=& = — F :

50,820,000 7T) - B & - AEBEH T
EEREZEM—KINEFEHEER
SEEGEEEMNIIME - BHELAB

EmnHNE B2 BUMKESHR
HEKE - AEERTESTHEBMS
RIF R FMBRESFEITMHE
R mEEREREELERML -
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19. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued) 19. IKBEE (F)

The carrying amounts of the Group's repossessed assets

and the movements during the year are as follows:

At 1 April 2020 R-_ZE_ZTFMA—H
Possession of properties MIGHMEER®E
Sale of a repossessed asset HEHREBEEE
Provision for an impairment REEERMRERBE
loss on a repossessed asset BE
At 31 March 2021 R-E_—F=A=+—H
and 1 April 2021 ;T _—FmMH—H
Possession of properties BSMEERRE
Sale of repossessed assets HERGBEEE
Reversal of an impairment REEENRERSSR
loss on a repossessed asset &M@
At 31 March 2022 R-B--_f=A=+-—H

During the year ended 31 March 2022, a reversal of an
impairment loss of HK$11,000 (2021: Provision for an
impairment loss: HK$300,000) was made for one of the
residential properties with an actual selling price higher
than its carrying amount (2021: the amortised cost of the
related outstanding loan and interest exceeded the

market value) of the property.

RAER AEEEEEENEESE
REBMT :

Commercial Residential

property  properties Total
[GEZZES EEWHE a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
14,132 = 14,132

S 35,886 35,886

- (3,201) (3,201)

- (300) (300)

14,132 32,385 46,517

= 30,248 30,248

= (23,418) (23,418)

= 11 11

14,132 39,226 53,358

HE-_T_—_F=A=+—HILFE -
HP —BHAEMENEREESNER
HeB (ZZ—Z—F: FlAHNKREEE
RS — TH Y 3 B K AN BB R X
MENTIZEE)  AEEERLEEH
B R (BB 18 11,0008 (ZE = —4F ¢

1 R 1B B3 48 8 5300,0008 7T ) °
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19. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment losses

on a repossessed asset are as follows:

At beginning of year

Provision for/(reversal of) an impairment
loss on a repossessed asset (note 6)

Write off

At the end of year

19. RREEE (&)

NG
BEEEMRERRE
B (BE) (FiiEe)

REK

HEEENREERREEHNT

2022 2021
—E-—F T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
300 =

(11) 300

(289) -

- 300
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19. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued) 19. IEEEE (&)
Details of the Group's repossessed properties and RZBE-_—FEN T -_—F=A=+—
information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March H fHEAEEEEEENFABEARA
2022 and 2021 are as follows: FTEEEAEHET :

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

W=A=+-AAFEEHERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B EXT BRAT
TiEHE HERAE BEu\E
(5-BR) (BZBR) (B=BR) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TERT FET FET
Recurring fair value SEMRT
measurement for: BEE
2022 —E-__&
Commercial property EENE - - 15,700 15,700
Residential properties EEWME - - 47,120 47,120
= = 62,820 62,820
2021 —E-—F
Commercial property EEYE - - 15,700 15,700
Residential properties FEME - - 35,120 35,120
- - 50,820 50,820
During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value RAFEE HMEEE—BARE_EKX
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no ZHEER B EES = 88 A s

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). AREEBEFE(ZTEZ—F  £) -
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19.

20.

REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique
used and the key input to the valuation of repossessed

assets:

Valuation technique

i (B B i
Commercial and Direct comparison

approach method

BEERLECR

residential properties

BEREEWE

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed equity investments, BRAFEEDY
at fair value FHRERE

The above equity investments were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were

held for trading.

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s equity investments
amounting to HK$80,075,000 (2021: HK$96,537,000)
were pledged to secure banking facilities and securities

margin account facilities granted to the Group (note 28).

Assuming that the portfolio of the Group's equity
investments remained unchanged, the market value of
the Group's equity investments at the date of approval of
these financial statements was approximately
HK$75,339,000.

FHLEEEEERLA

19. RREEE (&)

BT 28 B0 418 2 1 0 R R A f G
HREZHABBHME

Significant unobservable input

EXTUBEBAE

Market price per square foot

FF 5 RTBEE

20 BAVEEFABRZENRERE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
80,075 96,537

MR EAREREDREES  Bits
BREAFEEFABENEREE -

R-E-_—_F=A=1+—H £A&EBA
280,075,000 c (Z&F = — F :
96,537,000 ) 2 IR #EKR & 2 1K
B UBRBRTAEEZRITHERE
SREFSHKRLEME (MH5E28) ©

BERAEBHOREREHSHERTTE
RABHRERIEZ B  AEBHRK
B B4 575,339,000/ 7T °
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2. RERBEEEY

2022 2021
—E-C—F T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Cash and bank balances B MIRITETF 264,042 257,305
Time deposits EHIFR 137,506 196,992
401,548 454,297
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on IRITERDREE B IRITFERNERF
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are BHERGE - BEEBE R FHREE
made for varying periods of between one day and twelve NF—AET_FEATE  BIEXEE
months depending on the immediate cash requirements ZERBEFEME  WEEE T
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short- FRAEGT R - RITEFRERERT
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time FPME B R 9 B 830 i RRIE 42
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no Bk 2 RIT ©
recent history of default.
22. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS 20, FEEZRIE « H A ERE DK
RECEIVED e
2022 2021
—sE-—F T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Accruals &St IR 1,917 1,933
Other payables and deposits received EmEAEREE WIES 21,598 30,926
23,515 32,859
Portion classified as DER/ERD
non-current liabilities BENHD (1,447) (3,094)
Current portion mENE 22,068 29,765
The other payables are non-interest-bearing and are HMENERB I ER—RERNT

normally settled on 90-day terms.

BR&H -

215



216

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B EF B ER 2 A
Annual Report 2022 3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R R ML

31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 23.

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows:

EERBEEE &6
BERIBEEREERAFE 2EZH
T

Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIERE
2022
—E=-=
Accelerated tax
depreciation on
property, plant
and equipment
ME - BERRE
Y N B A T B
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2021 MRZZEZ—FMHA—H 26,911
Deferred tax credited to profit or RAFEEBRAGTA
loss during the year (note 9) ZRERIE (5E9) (977)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZEZ_F=A=+—H
at 31 March 2022 IR IR B EEE 25,934
Deferred tax assets EERIEESE
2022
—E=-=
Provision for Losses
impairment available
losses on loan for offsetting
and interest  against future
receivables  taxable profits Total
EWERKR LIRS
A E R E N B R B
BIERE A 2 R Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THERT
At 1 April 2021 R-ZB-——FmMA—H (286) (8,105) (8,391)
Deferred tax charged/ RARFEEEEZA
(credited) to profit or loss 1B/ (3t A) 2
during the year (note 9) EEBA (M EE9) 45 (19) 26

Gross deferred tax assets RS = —
at 31 March 2022 =A=+—H”
ZIBRERIBEERTE

(241) (8,124) (8,365)
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The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows: (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

23 BEBIEEE AE (HF)
EEBERERAERSFEZ 2]
()

EERBRE

2021

—E -
Accelerated tax
depreciation on
property, plant
and equipment

ME - BENREE

IR ST E
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2020 R-ZZE_TFWA—H 28,392
Deferred tax credited to profit or RARFEREEBZEANETA
loss during the year (note 9) ZRERIE (H5E9) (1,481)
Gross deferred tax liabilities WRZZE-_—F=A=+—8H
at 31 March 2021 BT IA B E R 26,911
Deferred tax assets BEEMEBSE
2021
—E--F
Provision for  Decelerated tax Losses
impairment depreciation available
losses on loan on property, for offsetting
and interest plant and against future
receivables equipment  taxable profits Total
RUESR 9% BER Qk3ix
MEBRE REBAOFE ARERH
BiEER RBHE wHZER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAL TR THER THBT
At 1 April 2020 RZZ_ZTFMA-H (419) (41 (8,374) (8,834)
Deferred tax charged to RAEEERER
profit or loss during sz BIEHIE
the year (note 9) (H39) 133 41 269 443
Gross deferred tax assets RZBZ-4=A=1-H
at 31 March 2021 LERREEELE (286) - (8,105) (8391)
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23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 23.

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE MR &
in the consolidated statement of R 2 EEF IR
financial position BEFHE

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$293,343,000 (2021: HK$280,347,000). The tax
losses in Hong Kong are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets of
HK$40,277,000 (2021: HK$38,152,000) have not been
recognised in respect of tax losses because these tax
losses have arisen in companies that have been loss-
making for some time and it is uncertain that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can

be utilised.

At 31 March 2022, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2021: Nil) for tax that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's
subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax

should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

ELERBEE &E(F)
IR E - MBI RAE TELEH
HEENABE TEE - LU THIMER
BHRERERZARBRERRLER 2D
i

2022 2021
—E2- —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FH&T
17,569 18,520

AREBRABBAEEBEBEE B
293,343,000 L (Z & = — F -
280,347,000 L) - REBEABEE 2B
BEEBEAERAREREESERZQ
B2 RRERT @ A o A% B I RFEZ
EREBEEBRRECHEEE
40,277,000 T (=ZF = — & :
38,152,000/ 7T) - A EMIEE BT
REEEBR—BEEZAR MATS
ERGHEEBRT G FIAKIEZED
IHEB1E -

R-ZT-—F=ZA=+—H A&EHZ
MEBARYEEARELBRNMAZMN 2
MEBHREMEAREREEHBEA R
—ERE—FE) AWMZEREE
B REBEWEFBEIHIBEEE -

AR B [ EL e BRI AN S 3 4 4 BR AT ]
FIEHER -
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24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, RA
Shares Iz 4
2022 2021
ZBCCF —TZ—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Authorised: ERE
40,000,000,000 ordinary shares of ~ 40,000,000,0008% & i% F &
HK$0.0025 each 0.0025% L2 L@ 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRERE :
5,780,368,705 ordinary shares of 5,780,368,705/ & X H &
HK$0.0025 each 0.0025#8 7T 2 & @K 14,451 14,451
Share options BB
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the RN A EERRE T B A MR IR Z F 5t 8l %

share options granted under the schemes are included in

note 25 to the financial statements.

A BB R 2 FF BN S R
25
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 25. B IR AT B
—:inﬂmaﬁ”zmﬂﬂ%
REFAg L THRAZRRDBBAIUER

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4 n=

September 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for

the adoption of a share option scheme (the "2012 Share
Option Scheme”) and the termination of the share option
scheme of the Company adopted on 23 September
2002 (the "2002 Share Option Scheme”). Outstanding
share options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme prior to the termination had expired on 20

January 2021.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme and the 2002 Share
Option Scheme (collectively referred to as the
“Schemes”) are operated by the Company for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s

operations.

Details of the Schemes are as follows:

(a) Participants
Participants are any directors (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) of the Company and
employees of the Group and any advisors
(professional or otherwise), consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters,
service providers of any member of the Group who
the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or

will contribute to the Group.

m—%%%%ﬁ%@:%—:iﬁ%
RETEl]) WRIEADNRR =TT =F
NAZ+=BHRMZEREE (=
ST _FHERESE) o R IERTRE
—ET _FERE AR ARITE
ZEREER-_ZE-_—F—A=+8E
e

RABRBE-_E——FERESER
%ﬁiiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ(ﬁﬂﬂ%%‘
) ZEFECZENDMAREEE
BRINEL BRI A ERBEEL TR
JBh K B 4

)

nm
-+

}

ZEREIZHBT

(a) 88EE
LEERARRNFAMNES (BEH
TEER - FRTESRBIIERIT
ER)RAEEZEERARAE
Z([EFQ)REARYBBER
ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁz
EHEEFEJ(EmE:'ii}ﬁ) o

DR AEE - HEE R
BA BP EBBH 62%EH
B BRARSNEBEMKER
Al RISHIER -
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows: (continued)

(b) Subscription price

©

The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion but in any event

shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of HK$0.0025
each of the Company (the “Shares”) as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of grant
of an option (the "Date of Grant”) which must

be a business day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the Date

of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Maximum number of the Shares

The maximum number of the Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Schemes and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence
of shareholders’ approval, in aggregate exceed 10%
in nominal amount of the aggregate of the Shares in
issue on the adoption date of the Schemes (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit"). Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Schemes and (as
the case may be) such other share option schemes
of the Company will not be counted for the purpose

of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

FHELEEEEETRAA
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25. B TR (E)

ZEFEZFHBOT - (B)

(b) REBEE
AEESHESSRERHBGEE
E o EEROAAABER TIIER
FHRSE

() ARAERKEEOO0025% T
Z B ([R5 ]) 15 i iR 7 &%
HEMB(EEBEH) (KER
EEH)NWTE (LEBH
RETBMEMEERE)

(i) B ERZRRH AR A E
EEANFHRTE (LAEE
BRXPTAWMKRAMERE)
54

(i) P mEE -

(c) B LR

REERRALERT - ATRFTB R IBZ
LE B R AR Q AR B A B AR A A
SRR T LT R BT Y
R LR - BT EBARZES
ERMBHEBRITHNRD EEALS
10% ([t B R ERTE]) - B FE &
SRR - RIBZEAEIR (R
BA1ERTE) AR A A /MR
IR T B M RN E R B AR T
FEE -
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows: (continued)

(d)

(e)

®

Maximum number of options granted to
each participant

The maximum number of the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each grantee under the Schemes (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any Shares
subject to options granted during such period under
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
other than those options granted pursuant to specific
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting)
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for the time being
(the “Individual Limit").

Period of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in a period notified by
the Board to each grantee at the time of making an
offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years from

the Date of Grant.

Remaining life of the Schemes
The 2002 Share Option Scheme terminated on 4
September 2012. No further options shall thereafter
be offered under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
but the options which had been granted during its
life had expired on 20 January 2021.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on its
adoption date, unless otherwise cancelled or

amended.

FHLEEEEERLA

25.

BRESE (&)

ZEREZHBOT

(d)

(e

®

(&)

E2RERBBEREZLR

BEABRANEEA+ B AREZ

FHEERNBRE (BRETRE
&ﬂiﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬂx%) T LATT B B P
BITRBETORM LR - A5 (&
KB RBMEARREANRAEAEM
BRI NEREA BT
M A TEERRBERRER
RRE LRHHEMKEENZEE
) BEERDSETROMI%
(TMEAFRZE] -

IR 21T
BREATNEEHRBRERES
SHEEEARAZHEAITE - 1

AREHEHES T FARRER -

ZEH B Z H R A W

—ET _FREREGEER-Z
——FNAAMBKIE - HiENEH
BE-_ZT _FEREFEERR
b E b B AR - B G EIE A
BREZBEBREENR_Z=—F—A

—+tHE®-

—E - FERER ISR ERE
HIRGFF T FARABR - BRAITEHRK
RIEFTRI 5= E Bl iw
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows: (continued)

(8) Acceptance of options

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 and 30 days for the 2012 Share
Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Option
Scheme, respectively, from the Date of Grant, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the Grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no share options
had lapsed or expired. In the prior year, 3,800,000 share
options had lapsed and remaining 248,240,000 share
options had expired on 20 January 2021 under the 2002
Share Option Scheme. 1,800,000 share options had
lapsed under the 2012 Share Option Scheme. An
aggregate amount of HK$17,153,000 was transferred
from the share option reserve to retained profits upon
lapse or expiry of the share options.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Schemes during the year:

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

25. B TR (E)

ZEFBZHBOT - (B)

(g EZBERE
mEHBHSRESF AR (=
T-_FRREFE) R=1TRH (=
T _FEERETE A ARA
BBXNEHXIBTZRBARE
BRI AESETREEEZED -

EBRRAGHREZER -

Bz - —F=A=+—BHItFE "
WA ERE LB Em e REF
B -RBRE_ZST_FEBRESE B
3,800,00017) B A B 48 R % - i E #8
248,240,000 FEREAE R =T = —
F—AZ+BHEm BE_ZT——_F§E
% #E 5T 2] - F51,800,0001) B A 7 B 45
K o HEE FB17,153,00008 7T B2 A BRI
RS ERFAEREFREEARSE
i Fl e

RAFEE  REBEZFFE MR RITEZ
BRESBOT

2022 2021
—E=-= —E—F

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price  share options  exercise price  share options

I3 g
THE BRERE 1EE BRERA
HK$ per share ‘000  HK$ per share '000
BRET T "B T S
At beginning of year REA 0.1532 132,800 0.1902 386,640
Lapsed during the year ~ RAARFE KK = - 0.1917 (5,600)
Expired during the year ~ RAAFE [Em - - 0.2100 (248,240)

At 31 March R=RA=+—H 0.1532 0.1532

132,800

132,800
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 25.
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

2022
—ECHF
Number of share options Exercise price*
BREHAR TREE*
‘000 HK$ per share
+ BRET
132,800 0.1532
2021
—E-—%F
Number of share options Exercise price*
BES A 1T (E*
‘000 HK$ per share
+ BRET
132,800 0.1532

There is no vesting period for the outstanding share

options granted to employees and directors.

< The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

BRESE (&)
RBERR - WARITEZBREZITE
EBRITERET

Exercise period

1T E 5

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—E-=%hA=HZ
—E-=FhA=H

Exercise period

171858

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—FT-=FfNhA=HZE
—ZE-_=%NAZH

BETREREZEMHEARITEZBREL
ERBY-

MR AHKREAKRET  HEARRQA
BAZEEHMBURES  BRENT
EEFRETAE -



25.

26.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
132,800,000 share options outstanding under the 2012
Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
132,800,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$332,000 and share
premium of approximately HK$25,875,000 (before issue

expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 132,800,000 share options outstanding
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 2.3% of the Company’s

shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’'s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 105 and 106 of the financial

statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose from:

(i) the Group's reorganisation on 13 June 1990,
representing the excess of the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued under the Group's
reorganisation, and the nominal value of the shares
and share premium of the former holding company

acquired by the Group; and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account pursuant

to the capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.
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26.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

B R AESTE ()

MNBER BRI - — —FEBRET
2| - A7) E132,800,00017 B B% # &
RITE - ERARARERAREET - &
AT M RITER 2 BREGEBREITH
HNZR X F)132,800,0000% & 38 B% - A &
28 M IR 2332,0007% JT & % 10 3% & 4
25,875,000/ 7T (RINBREITRZ) o

REERB®RE 2B BRIE-T—=
FRERERE - A2 [ HF132,800,000
MIBRE R ARITER  IEARBERE
BT #92.3% ©

#E

REEZ FREBERERRAFE LBEF
B2 HBEESRIMBREKEI05X106
BEGEEEREHRED -

AEBEZEHBBRKE :

() AEER-ANZEFAAT=HE
T2EH  RARABRBEAEEE
AP I TT D) EE R B AR B AT
B 2 AR R IR EE R AR E
BREMZELD + &

(i) RE-NAANFRA-BETZR
AEEAMBERMEBERPREL -
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26. RESERVES (continued) 26. f#E (&)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Group is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances

prescribed by section 54 thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options

lapse or expire or be forfeited.

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the

financial statements of foreign operations.

The merger reserve represents the difference between (i)
the amounts at which the assets and liabilities are
recorded under a business combination under common
control in prior years, net of any reserves of the acquired
entities, and (ii) the fair value of consideration paid for

the business combination.

The asset revaluation reserve represents cumulative gains
and losses arising on property revaluation as a result of
the change in use from owner-occupied properties to
investment properties and revaluation of cruise ships.
Such items will not be reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods.

BIEAZEECIISIFERRENEIELT)
TR ES4GEFTz EFIBRT » &K
EECZEHEBUDIRTRE -

BEREFRBEACREYLEFTREZE
Bz R FEE FBERYBRERME
24D B EBRA MR Z @5 R
— e EARBRIERITRE 8
eSS eERERMEER kWA
78 s P A R S Bk fE T IOR MR - RIA R
CHEBEREREBEN -

[E R R R R ERIMNEE RS
WRTELNABAEBELZ5 -

& OFHRE R AR AR F 1T KR 2 5

%/\fﬁﬁnaﬁﬂ’léﬁ)}%fﬁi%ﬁ@ﬂ
BrRATU B E R ME) BN E %
EHINORENQTFEEME ZEH
Z8-

BESRHESANAEHERANEE
HREEMEMETYEE AR E R
EfMEENRBERELEE - ZFH
BREESREBB T eEH o HERR -



26.

27.

28.

29.

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

RESERVES (continued)

The fair value reserve represents the subsequent changes
in fair value of the equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income since its
initial measurement. With the exception of dividends
received, the associated gains and losses are recognised
in the fair value reserve. Amounts represented in the fair
value reserve are transferred to retained profits upon

derecognition of the financial assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding guarantees of HK$130,000,000 (2021:
HK$190,000,000) given to banks to secure general credit

facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the assets pledged to secure Group's banking
facilities and securities margin account facilities, are included

in notes 12, 14, 18 and 20 to the financial statements.

COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not

have any significant commitments.
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27.

28.

29.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

fit fe ()
RNFEERESEE/EAFEEFTA
Hp = EKRSEBREREBEGBE
AR EERFEEZD - AT
B S50 - HHBE M W K B IEE R FEE
ERAER NS REER R -
RAFEEREANSREEERE G
) o

RAREE

RBEMR ARAGE TRITZKRER
YE{REE5130,000,000/8 0 (ZE=—F -
190,000,000/ 7T) - fE /A K B & T
BRABIMER —REEREZEM -

EEEA
ERARBSASEEETREREFRE
eHRPREMERA EENF BN
BHRERMFEI2 14 18Kk20 -

A
RIEHR - AEE L EATEAAG
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial

statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Related party transactions in connection with the

Group's operations:

Management fee paid to X ATRAEE R R Z
a related company BB

Salary paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) S HNEMBEiLEZ
Cheow Leng e

Salary paid to Mr. Wilson Ng

Notes:

)

(i)

(iii)

The management fee was charged based on an
agreement entered into between the Group and a
related company, Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
("Huang & Co"), for administrative services provided
at a monthly rate of approximately HK$8,655 (2021:
HK$8,535).

The salary was paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng,
who is the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary
trust which holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the
Company.

The salary was paid to Mr. Wilson Ng, who is one of
the discretionary beneficiaries of a discretionary trust
which holds the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI)
Limited, the ultimate holding company of the

Company.

FHLEEEEERLA

30. BEE SRS

B 7 B 755 e 2% EL i 28

DRBWEIN R

ARER  NEBRBBI ZEXRX S

T

(a)

Notes

B EE

0]

(i)

SHNEREREEZHES (i)

HEASEHEEER BB IS

2022 2021
—=E-= —T—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FET
104 102

133 128

907 970

B &E -

)

(i

(iii)

ERBRAEER-—HEB AR
Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
(THuang & Col) Bt PTiR R T E AR
BRI hE  WEAEEE
#)8,655B T (ZE = —4 : 8,535
BT e

e XN TERBELE HR
—(AEEEFTZR T ARETEA

MZERERTAEARARRE
fi% 2 &]Huang Group (BVI) Limited
Z R EbER

e XN TEEREE  HER
—Ax®EE ZEEF'*LL%FEE
mA MZEEEEFAELAR

4 $2 A "lHuang Group (BVI)
Limitedz 2 & #E 5 o
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial

statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties during the year:

(continued)

(b) Due to the intermediate holding company

©

The Group had an outstanding balance due to the
intermediate holding company of HK$40,000,000
(2021: HK$40,000,000) as at the end of the
reporting period. This balance is unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

Commitments with related parties

On 1 April 2013, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into a service agreement with three-month
termination notice with Huang & Co, a related
company of the Group for the provision of
administrative services to the Group. The
management fee paid to Huang & Co for the year is
disclosed in note 30(a)(i) to the financial
statements. As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a
total future minimum management fee payable to
Huang & Co amounting to approximately HK$26,000
(2021: HK$26,000).
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30. AL X5 (&)
BRAMBHERREMEOSBAREIN B
REFE  NEBERBBI ZEXX S

B

(&)

(b) REfAREERR A BFKIA

©

REE IR - AEBEEN R EER
RAIFBZAERNE® AR
40,000,000 T (=T = — % :
40,000,000/ 7T) ° B B & & Th &
R 2o RBEERERESR-

B 8 Bt 5 B A
RZTE—=FWA—B A&E—
1 Bt /B8 1 A B AR SR B — R A B 1 A
Huang & Cor] IR 1% - WA H
BARNEBIRMITHARY - BRLK
IERAMEA=MEA - RAFELZM
FHuang & CoM E IR B LM Mk
i sE30() (DN ETE - -R=_T ==
F=ZA=Z+—8B XA&EEEM
Huang & CoM R R XK E IR & B
426,000 T (ZF = — F :
26,000 7T) °
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial

statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties during the year:

(continued)

(d)

O)

Loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder

of the Group's subsidiary:

Loan advanced from a non-controlling

shareholder of the Group's subsidiary

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement entered into
between the Group and New Century Cruise Line
International Limited (“New Century Cruise Line"), a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, the
shareholder shall not demand repayment of this
loan unless a resolution in writing signed by all
shareholders of the subsidiary for the demand of
repayment has been duly passed at a general
meeting. The loan is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. New Century Cruise Line is a

fellow subsidiary of the Company.

The compensation of key management personnel of
the Group has been disclosed in note 8(a) to the

financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a) to

(d) above also constitute connected transactions or

continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter

14A of the Listing Rules.

FHLEEEEERLA

30. AR5 (&)
BARBREL DS BEREN R
AER AEEREHTZEAZ SN
T ()

(d)

O)

RE BB QR Z IFERBRR BN

ZER:

AEEHBAT 20K
EEENES E

2022 2021
—E2-= —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
71,823 71,823

RIE AN B B — R I B & 5l 2 FF 4%
f% J% BENew Century Cruise Line
International Limited ([ New Century
Cruise Linel) 7] 2 IR R 1% -
FZMBARNEBRREEZTEXK
BRCEERABZRERRERE L
FREB FARRTIEEREE
ZEER ZERR/EER 28
MEE EK{EE - New Century
Cruise LineBARARZRRKEA
= «

AEETEEEABZHFMERY
BRI E8(a) K FE -

bPi@ZEMBE2BE TR 5 TEK L
MARAFTOAZRMREZBER S K
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CASH FLOWS

()

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

Annual Report 2022 F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

()

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions

to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$82,000 (2021: HK$276,000) and HK$82,000
(2021: HK$276,000), respectively, in respect of a

lease arrangement for a property.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b)

activities

2022

—g=-=

At 1 April 2021

Changes from financing cash flows
New lease

Interest expense

Interest paid classified as

operating cash flows

At 31 March 2022

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

3. FERERERHE

FEHFRERS

RAEE  NEEF-—BYENE
ERMEEREEEREESR
&5 Bl A FEIR & & 82,000/ T
—T = —4%F:276,0008 L) &
82,0008 T (=T = —F :
276,000 7T) °

ARETHELENEEEH

Lease liabilities

HEAE

HK$'000

FERT

RZTEZ—FHH—H 312

MERERNEEENE (188)

Mg 82

MERX 8
XAME(DER

KEBRERE) (8)

RZE-_—_F=ZRA=+—H 206
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF . EERERERMTE ()
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) EREEZBHELENAESS
activities (continued) (%)
2021
—E-—%F

Lease liabilities

HEAE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2020 RZZB-_ZFWA—H 221
Changes from financing cash flows MEREGREELNED (185)
New lease MEE 276
Interest expense FERXE 10
Interest paid classified as XNFE(DER
operating cash flows RERSRE) (10)

At 31 March 2021 R-_E-—F=ZHA=+—H 312
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32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests are set out below:

FHELEEEEETRAA
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32 AREAFEREENHNDE
BB LA
BEAFERERNAEEIER RN
BT

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
Percentage of equity interest held by FERERFEN
non-controlling interests: RAEEZA DL :
ETC Finance Limited SRRV BER QA 40 40
Queenston Maritime Limited 40 40
Kingston Maritime Limited 40 40
New Century Maritime Limited 40 40
Century Rich Investments Limited 40 40
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to PEFHFERERD
non-controlling interests: REERA(BFR)
ETC Finance Limited HIERF B AR R E 16,426 19,697
Queenston Maritime Limited (374) (8,038)
Kingston Maritime Limited (21,854) (37,396)
New Century Maritime Limited (64) 531
Century Rich Investments Limited 532 1,983
Accumulated balances of non-controlling R4 B HFEER
interests at the reporting date: EENRTERR
ETC Finance Limited SRR HEHERA A 337,070 360,644
Queenston Maritime Limited 38 11,764
Kingston Maritime Limited (31,442) (9,550)
New Century Maritime Limited 16,044 4,685
Century Rich Investments Limited 16,340 15,808
Dividend paid to non-controlling XN FHRERER
interest: HRE :
ETC Finance Limited SRR BEER A A 40,000 -
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32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts are

disclosed before any inter-company eliminations:

2022
—E-_F

Revenue and other income

Total expenses
Profit/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/

(loss) for the year

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Net cash flows from/(used in)

operating activities
Net cash flows from

investing activities
Net cash flows used in

financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in

cash and cash

equivalents

BAREHEA
gL
AEERH/ (B]R)
AEERENE/
(B 8%

RYEE
FRBAE
RBAE

BEEDMG/ (R)
LREREFE
RERDHE
LATREFE
BERDMA
LAERERE

ReREESEN
ZEm/ ()
#R

FHLEEEEERLA

32. ARERFERERNIRD
BH B QR (&)
TRERLEMBRAANSAEHEER
B TREE & AR @D RAREHA

ME R
ETC  Queenston Kingston ~ New Century ~ Century Rich
Finance Maritime Maritime Maritime  Investments
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited
SRARAE
BRAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T T TAR
62,398 713 - 28,412 1,351
(22,459) (1,647) (54,636) (13) @1)
39,939 (934) (54,636) 28,399 1,330
39,939 (1,181) (54,731) 28,399 1,330
689,325 98 11 219,674 88,659
251,676 - 100,620 78 -
(102,802) - (179237)  (179,564) (47,807)
(51,401) 523 @) 8,171) 20,038
49,866 27,861 - - -
(100,695) (28,331) - - -
(102,230) 53 0) 8,171) 20,038
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32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts are

disclosed before any inter-company eliminations:

(continued)

2021
—E %

Revenue and other income

Total expenses

Profit/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liability

Net cash flows from/(used in)
operating activities

Net cash flows used in
investing activities

Net cash flows used in
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash
equivalents

WARERA
EEE L
AEREN/ (B8R)
AEE2ENE/
(BR) &%

RYEE
FRDEE
RBAR
FRBERE

BEEBHRE/ (A
LEEREFE
RERDMA
LBEREFE
BEARDMA
LAEREFE

ReRAESEN
28/ (5)
AR

BA F5 3R R P EE
31 March 2022

—E-_-_F=A=+—H

32. ARERFERERNIN D HE
BHE AR (&)
TRERLEMBRANAEHEER
B FTREE & AR @D RARE A

e (8)

ETC  Queenston Kingston ~ New Century  Century Rich
Finance Maritime Maritime Maritime ~ Investments
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited

SRAHH
BRAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR TEL FET FET
71,574 - - 7,600 4971
(26732) (20,094) (93,490) an (14)
50,842 (20,094) (93,490) 7,589 4957
50,842 (10,708) (90,787) 7,589 4,957
899,593 34,786 13 198,821 90,029
108,416 - 120,435 78 -
(109,613) (G375 (144323)  (187,111) (50,507)
(136) - - - -
57,225 5 11777 (25,050) (4,176)
(50,567) - (11,770) - 4
(705) = = = =
5,953 5 7 (25,050) (4,176)
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

2022
===
Financial assets

THEE

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Loan and interest receivables

Trade receivables

Deposits and other receivables
(note 16)

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

BERBRRTEETA

A2 ER A
BiERE
ERERRHE
W E 5N

e R A EYER

(HzE16)
BRATEEA

BRNRERE
RBeRALEEN

FHLEEEEERLA

3. REBAE T 2 EMT
RBEHR SReRmIAZEESHE
mr

Financial asset
Financial Financial at fair value
assets at fair assetsat  through other
value through amortised  comprehensive
profit or loss cost income Total
RATVEE DE#ERA BAVEEA
stAREMN RN Hit2E K
tRHEE etREE WeEMEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TART TERT
= = 2,040 2,040
= 737,298 = 737,298
= 8,842 = 8,842
= 4,206 = 4,206
80,075 = = 80,075
= 401,548 = 401,548
80,075 1,151,894 2,040 1,234,009
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. REME S 2RI A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHR SEERIAZERESHE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period W (8)

are as follows: (continued)

2022
B F
Financial liabilities
cHAs
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
LU 8% B A
STEM
cRAE
HK$'000
FERT
Accruals FE &t FRIE 1,836
Other payables and deposits received (note 22)  H R RN B WL S (M5E22) 21,598
Amount due to the intermediate JE 1~ R R 4% AR
holding company NGIE/SE] 40,000
Loan advanced from a non-controlling REBKE AR ZIEERRR
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary B2 B 71,823
Lease liabilities HEAE 206

135,463
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

FHLEEEEERLA

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2021
—E-—F
Financial assets

TREE

Equity investment designated ~ $8E ARLAFEE A

at fair value through other A2 EKED
comprehensive income RERE

Loan and interest receivables ~ EUEZ L7 &

W E 5K

Trade receivables

Deposits and other receivables &% & £ {th fE B 3

(note 16) (Ftzx16)

Equity investments at fair value &2 FE{ET A

through profit or loss RENRERE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY

Financial
assets at fair
value through

profit or loss

3. R EHE sz I A (E)

RBERR SEEeMIAZKEESHE
mr (&)

Financial asset

Financial at fair value
assets at through other
amortised ~ comprehensive

cost income Total

BLFEE ABERA  BRATEERA
FABRA ATER Hip2ENE
SREE SREE MeEmEE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRL FEL TET
= = 3,457 3,457
- 659,260 - 659,260
- 43,413 - 43,413
- 4,799 | 4,799
96,537 - - 96,537
- 454,297 = 454,297
96,537 1,161,769 3,457 1,261,763
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(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
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3. R EHE o2 I A (E)

RBEHMR SEEMIAZEKEESHE

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period mT ()
are as follows: (continued)
2021
—E-—F
Financial liabilities
cRBE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
LA B8 85 BX A<
EA—1:0)
TRIBE
HK$'000
FTHET
Accruals FEET B 1,831
Other payables and deposits received (note 22)  E i BR X & B Wik & (M sE22) 30,926
Amount due to the intermediate & {<F Hp P 22 AR
holding company NGIE/SE 40,000
Loan advanced from a non-controlling REBME QT 2 IEERBRR
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary B2 B 71,823
Lease liabilities HEAE 312

144,892
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's
financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are

FHLEEEEERLA

MM EMIANAFEERATE
BEER
BREASEAATEEABERES -
AEMSBMIANEEISELATER
mT

as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
REEH NREE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E_C —E-—5 ZE8-C —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT TET FET
Financial assets CREE
Equity investments at fair value &2 2 FEE A
through profit or loss BaRfRERE 80,075 96,537 80,075 96,537
Equity investment designated 38 AIZAFEE A
at fair value through other Hofth 2 [ W o 1)
comprehensive income WREIE 2,040 3,457 2,040 3,457
Loan and interest receivables  FEWE LTI 5 737,298 659,260 736,435 659,501
819,413 759,254 818,550 759,495

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, an amount due to the intermediate holding
company, a loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, lease liabilities and
the non-current deposits received approximate to their
carrying amounts and accordingly no disclosure of the fair

values of these items is presented.

EEEDENE RERBAEFED
EWE SRR  BREBRNKE EE
REMERERNEREE BREH
AR AR BT RN SR EE &
B ERARRIE  AEEKHER R
ZIERBRRBN2ENR HEREN
RIERBE RSN A FEEAR LA
HEmSBEAE B &Rz FR
B R FEERE -
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's management is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the Group’s management analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. Independent
professional valuers are engaged for the valuation as
appropriate. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
the Group's management. The valuation process and
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a

year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

The fair value of the loan and interest receivables are
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for loans with similar terms,

credit risk and remaining maturities.
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EHERX (&)

AEEEEEREETSRTARFE
EECHRERERF RERSAH
AEBEEEEEO e TABECZE
HUBTEEMBZEZHAE - BL
EXHEMTEEEER2EGEE - f
ERAKEEEEEMRILE - HESB
BEEREBFMARTHRFENE

BERREZZB SR -

EMEELRBENATEERRESR
RPFTZENEMXZHPRBTANE
B AEREFIBFREE - THTTER
BRIIBAGERAFER:

P Ly B R L8 A B BHR A B AT
AR - S ERR RS TEHE
BB BRI R S TRER R S R B IR
Tl st o
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 34 R ITENLATEEBERAEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on

quoted market prices.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there has been a
change in the valuation technique for the valuation of the
equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income. In respect of the unlisted equity
investment, the valuation technique was changed from
market-based approach to the income capitalisation
method. In the opinion of directors of the Company, the
change resulted in a favorable measurement that is more

representative of fair value.

As at 31 March 2022, the fair value of the unlisted equity
investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income has been estimated using a
discounted cash flow (“DCF") model. The valuation
requires management to make certain assumptions about
the model inputs, including forecast cash flows, the
discount rate, credit rate and volatility. The probabilities
of the various estimates within the range can be
reasonably assessed and are used in management's

estimates of the fair value.

EER (&)
ETRIERE A FEEATSRES
B -

RBE_ZE__F=A=+—BIF
B RETREATEEFAEMEE
WHNREREETHENGERTE
Fch % - BRI EARERE - (AER
MEHAT S /ERN T ERRBAER
B35 - RRREERR - BEAEERX
EEMGE AERREXATER -

WR-_ZE-_—F=ZA=+—H EFTAK
ANEEAEFAHMEERZEAIE LR
REENATFTEEELERFTRRER
E((FRAeRE]) REEF - HEE
SRERERER @ ABEDETRE
BEBARSREE WHEEX FEXK
BB o TEEE R E TR & E AR A
AEBTH  YAREBEEHATEE
B fEEt -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7

34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the fair value of the unlisted equity
investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, had been estimated using a
market-based valuation technique based on assumptions
that were not supported by observable market prices or
rates. The valuation required the directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry,
size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an
appropriate price multiple, such as enterprise value to
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") multiple, for each
comparable company identified. The multiple was
calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the
comparable company by an earnings measure. The
trading multiple was then discounted for considerations
such as liquidity and size differences between the
comparable companies based on company-specific facts
and circumstances. The discounted multiple was applied
to the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted

equity investment to measure the fair value.

The directors believed that the estimated fair values
resulting from the valuation technique, which were
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which
were recorded in other comprehensive income, were
reasonable. For the fair value of the unlisted equity
investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, management has estimated the
potential effect of using reasonably possible alternatives

as inputs to the valuation model.
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RERNGHEEXMMGE - HEEXES
RIBTE  RE ERERBREALL
BARAE (REE) W5 EFT#E5
WAL B ARG EA BN EREE f
WMEEEEHERANE  HIE - TELE
HATAMN ((EREEHENE - HRE -
FEREHEMAN]) BE - ZEBIRA
s A e I B AR A — (B & 7 K5
B -RRBREBELATDAEBNETERBR -
EZEALBRARZERBARRBED
EREFNRYXZEBUEHLITE - 38
BHREEANIELMEBRENHERR
MU ERFEE-

EEZME HERNELNAETAFE
BEHRECHEREEMHRAERA) &
HEAAFEEZS (HexEnNEns
HREAN)BEE - AREE/RAYF
BET AREMEE W a6 IF £ H R
BHATEER BERESKMAFUNEE
AREEMBERERREREEANG AR
MEBETE -
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4 c@MTENAFEERAFE

Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable

inputs to the valuation of financial instruments together

with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March

2022:
Valuation Significant
technique  unobservable input

HERK  EXTIBEBAE

Unlisted equity DCF method Long term growth rate

investment TRREE for cash flows for
FEETRERE REE subsequent years
BEFENRBLS

REERE

Weighted average cost
of capital ("“WACC")

MEFHERRK
(TEFIEERRE])

Discount for lack of
marketability
HEmERBETH

Discount for lack of
control

L Sl

Range

gE

2022: 3%

—E-CF:
3%

2022: 15%

—E-_F:
15%

2022: 15.8%
—E-C"F:
15.8%

2022: 17.3%
—E-C"F:
17.3%

BEERX (&)
LWTHIWA-_ZE-_—F=A=+—H05&
HemITAEGENERTAIERE AR
BMEURTEEGXEDN :

Sensitivity of fair value to the input
AVEEHBAENHBE

5% increase/decrease in growth rate
would result in an increase/decrease
in fair value by HK$611,000/

HK$252,000
BEEREN/BISNEERAT

EE#M611,000% T,/

H£252,000%

5% increase/decrease in WACC would
result in a decrease/increase in fair
value by HK$383,000/HK$951,000

MEFIERE AL, B LD5%
SEHATEER 38300087,/
#1951,000% T

An increase/decrease in discount would
result in a decrease/increase in fair
value

wHEm/ ROEERATLEE
D/ B

An increase/decrease in discount would
result in a decrease/increase in fair
value

wHEm/ ROeERATLEE
D/ B
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Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable
inputs to the valuation of financial instruments together

with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March

FHELEEEEETRAA
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M c@MITENAFEERAFEE
BEE X (&)

2021:
Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Range
hERM BEANABZEAAE #E
Unlisted equity Valuation Median of EV/EBITDA 2021:
investment multiples multiple of peers 19110 16.86
FImRERE HERBH AEECEEEHRNE . Z—ZT-—%:
B EREHEA 191£16.86
gl okl 24
Discount for lack of 2021: 30%
marketability —ECoF
Rz mEREET 30%

UTE#HIWR =T =—F=A=+—HF
HEMTIABRENEATAIBEEAER
BMEANEEHREDN

Sensitivity of fair value to the input
RYEEHBAENGRE

5% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in an increase/decrease in fair
value by HK$163,000

BEEM,/ RSN G ERATLEE
i,/ 54 163,000 T

5% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in a decrease/increase in fair
value by HK$248,000

g/ mosne ERAFEE
A/ 101248,0007% 7T

The discount for lack of marketability represents the
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the
Group that market participants would take into account

when pricing the investments.

RS T35 M AT B AN o T R T
i;@ﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁi%ﬁ%@%%%iﬁ%
RITESE -
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 34 R ITENLATEEBERAEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) EER (&)
Fair value hierarchy AFEEERX
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRERAEECRITIANRAFEER
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: ==/
Assets measured at fair value: B FIEETENEE -

Fair value measurement using
APEETERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R EXRA EXARH
THEEE BEBAE BRBAE
(B-BR) (B=BR) (BZENR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET
As at 31 March 2022 R-Z2--f=A=1+-H
Equity investments at fair value R AFEETA
through profit or loss BRnRERE 80,075 - - 80,075
Equity investment designated at 38§ AR A FEEA
fair value through other Ht2EK =
comprehensive income KR E = = 2,040 2,040
80,075 - 2,040 82,115
As at 31 March 2021 R-B-—%=A=t—H
Equity investments at fair value & A FEEA
through profit or loss BRORERE 96,537 - - 96,537
Equity investment designated at 8 TE AE A FEETA
fair value through other Hit 2 EWRaEE
comprehensive income % & - - 3,457 3,457

96,537 = 3,457 99,994
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M c@MITENAFEERAFEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) EER (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEERBX (&)
The movements in fair value measurement within Level 3 RAFE  BEZBRXAAFEEFED
during the year are as follows: SEmT
2022 2021
—sE-—F T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Equity investment at fair value through &2 FEE A
other comprehensive income: Hih 2 HK S RERE
At 1 April REA—H 3,457 1,513
Total fair value gain/(loss) recognised T2 H Ath 2 E U5 A i 3R
in other comprehensive income WRFEBERE
(B18)BHE (1,417) 1,944
At 31 March KR=RA=+—8H 2,040 3,457
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured
at fair value as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2021:
Nil).

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

34,

SRIANAFEERAFEE
BEER (&)

AFEEEX(E)
RZBEZZFRZTF—F=A=+—
B AEETETMAIZAFEBESED

THERE-

WAEE  ¢RAERBES —ERR
£ =R R RIS = R
NS AT EEE(CF
") -

BEATEENEE

Fair value measurement using

NV EETERA

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R EAT EXFH
TEHRE EZBAER B DN
(5—-ER) (B=ER) (B=ERX) CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FHT THT TET
As at 31 March 2022 R-B--f#=A=t-H
Loan and interest receivables EWEZ R HE - - 736,435 736,435
As at 31 March 2021 WZB--F=A=+—-8
Loan and interest receivables FEUR E K I F & - = 659,501 659,501
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash
and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables, loan and interest
receivables and other payables, which arise directly from

its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Most of the Group's revenue and costs were
denominated in Singapore dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Singapore dollar exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss after tax
and retained profits (due to changes in the fair value of

monetary assets and liabilities).
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WHEEPESL -
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Rk - EERR  RBE SRR &EE
EBREAR EF2EHNAHEEELS
[\ 2 BB BB R e

S [ B

AEEHRHEIZFEERR - ZERRT)
ARREEMABRNRERAINZE
WETEEMEL - AEBZKREHW
ABRKARTIAF IR TR BT RERE
7 o NEE B AT EIME S PBEK - A
m-EEEETYERINERR - I #
REFZERZFELHRERIMNERKR

TERERNBERARELMERFRIT T
B MIHMBETERATEHRAGERS
ZIERT  AEERBEERRFRE R
MNEAEEEERBEATFEELRE
B HRBHERE
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

2022

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens
against the Singapore dollar
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens

against the Singapore dollar

2021

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens
against the Singapore dollar
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens

against the Singapore dollar

—=E-—

fis 78 7T 5
T TR (A

fisl 78 7T 5,
273 T A

—E-—%F
i BT H
N TRz B
i BT H
g T A E

SMEE LB (4R

Increase/
(decrease)
in foreign

currency rate

SIS EE
#m ()

%

10

(10)

(10)

35. B EREERHERBE(E)

Decrease/
(increase) in
loss after

tax and
increase/
(decrease) in
retained profits
MEERER
HWA (48 )
KRB ER
2, O 2)
HK$'000
FET

ey

289

(289)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk
As at 31 March 2022, the credit risk of the Group was

primarily attributable to trade receivables, loan and
interest receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group provides services only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is

not significant.

One of the Group's main income generating activities is
lending money to customers, and therefore, credit risk is
a principal risk. It is the Group's policy that all new loans
are subject to stringent credit check procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for each
of its customers before the loan applications are accepted
or rejected. If there is no independent rating, risk control
assesses the credit quality of the customer by taking into
account the financial position, past experience and other
factors of the customer. The Group holds collateral
against certain loan and interest receivables in the form
of first legal mortgages over individual properties located
in Hong Kong which mainly comprise residential,
commercial, industrial properties and car parking spaces.
The Group approves and grants loans to its customers
pursuant to its pre-approved credit policy with tightened
management measures whenever an adverse condition
in the property market occurs. The Group has loan
committees of different levels comprising directors and
senior management to approve and grant different loan
products with various loan-to-value ratios and loan

amount requirements.
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@ o fin 5 I EETTE LA AR AIRIRR
REEREF @ZREFPOMBMAR
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MEMmEEEERm AR EE R @R
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HEERRIERREEDE BEY
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35 i BEREEEERKZE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The directors and senior management consider that the
credit risk arising from the loan and interest receivables is
significantly mitigated by the properties held as collateral,
with reference to the market values of the properties
which are valued by independent third party valuers as at

the end of each reporting period.

/mpa/rment assessment
ECLs measurement

The Group measures loss allowance under HKFRS 9 ECLs
model. The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and the exposure at default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECLs reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of

default occurring as the weights.

ECLs are based on the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.

The Group calculates ECLs based on a three probability-
weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the effective
interest rate. A cash shortfall is the difference between
the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the entity

expects to receive.

EE R (&)
EELRREEERS REBYF=
HIEEMREREHREEODET
B BUEEFEMNEEENEERRE
RUAAKEFRFEAE FRERR) OY
ESIIPAN =] 2 AN

AL
AR HERXTE
AEERBERAVHRELRLIRM
FHERBAREERAEE - BH
ERABANFERRBEOREX - ED
BREX (MBEXEZRLEEOENHAN)
REHRBRMOGE - BOMERRED
R O e RS AL BUR AR - I
LATIEMEE S E L RE - MHERBEX
MR RIR T EREHERMESE - HIA
BREBAONSEHERRASEERT

BHRERBAEERNRES QBN ARE
BHAEANREREERAEEBHK
MRS REME ZHHE5E - HAY)
RERREENERNEFEA -

AEEREBE=EHENENBTRITER
HEMRBEXL UFtERPBESER I
REMERMEFR - REBRBIRIE
BHEXNTERBMNRERERERR
HEINBREREMEZENESR -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
ECLs measurement (continued)

The mechanics of the ECLs calculations are outlined

below and the key elements are, as follows:

The probability of default (“PD") is an estimate of the

likelihood of default over a given time horizon.

The exposure at default (“EAD") is an estimate of
exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting
date, including repayments of principal and interest, and

accrued interest from missed payments.

The loss given default ("LGD") is an estimate of the loss
arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time.
It is based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to
receive, including from the realisation of any collateral or
credit enhancements that are integral to the loan and not

required to be recognised separately.

When estimating the ECLs, the Group considers three
scenarios (a base case, a bull case and a bear case).
Each of these is associated with different PDs, EADs and
LGDs. When relevant, the assessment of multiple
scenarios also incorporates how defaulted loans are
expected to be recovered, including the probability that
the loans will cure and the value of collateral or the

amount that might be received for selling the asset.

Elements of the ECLs models that are considered

accounting judgements and estimates include:
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B 1E FF 1 (AF)

BRI FRK B (F)

T AR AR R MRt B - H
EBTLEMT :

BB (TEOBX]) RERERE
£ E E B A BEE A (A ET

EXRREO(TEORRKO] 2
RIGED BB E R ANGET - 25
ZEENBESAHRRARKONERE
£ BRERAZEMENER UERE
IR REHHE -

BENBRARX ([BOBRKRE]) RERE
REETENONER T AEBIRRMNMA
it EERIMHNENRSRERER
AEHERINASRECLHNER
B ¥R B 3R AR A 8 B KT A Sk R Y 1K 3
HiEMEE M HREFER -

ERFRMERERR  AREZE=
BRERELRBRL FHBERLEME
R BRERBEAGEINFANENB R
BRI O RZIBRRIAN - £18
B HERIBFRNFEITES AR
i EZ O ER - BREWEEROHE
URERENEERLEEREERN
W EHE -

WE RS HE REFTNEREREBX
BENTERERE :
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Impairment assessment (continued)

ECLs measurement (continued)

0]

(i)

(iii)

(V)

)

The Group's estimation of probabilities of default to

individual group;

The Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and so allowances
for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime

ECLs basis and the qualitative assessment;

Development of ECLs models, including the various
formulas and the choice of inputs over
determination of the period over which the entity is
exposed to credit risk based on the behavioural life
of the credit exposure, loss given default and

collateral recovery of the credit exposures;

Determination of associations between
macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs,
such as delinquency ratios and collateral values, and
the effect on probabilities of default, exposures at

default and losses given default; and

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive

the economic inputs into the ECLs models.

It has been the Group's policy to regularly review its

models in the context of actual loss experience and

adjust when necessary.

The Group categories the credit quality of its loan and

interest receivables according to 3 different stages under
the ECLs model:

FHLEEEEERLA

35. B EREERHERBE(E)

FERR (&)
R E G (&)
BHEHEKHE (B

0]

(i)

(iii)

(V)

)

SR BRI BIE OB R A fh 5T
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Impairment assessment (continued)

ECLs measurement (continued)

Financial assets are classified as Stage 1 if:

(i)

(iii)

(V)

)

Repayment on schedule;

Overdue within normal credit term (within 30 days)
with supportable evidence for repayment (e.g.
communication records, draft/signed documents),

subject to individual analysis;

No change in debtor's credit rating (market or

internal);

There is not a shortfall in collateral value, subject to

individual analysis; and

Significant credit risks and events (both economic
and industry) related to the debtor are not

observable or expected in the market.

Financial assets are classified as Stage 2 if:

(i)

(iii)

Delayed repayment;

Overdue over 30 days but within 90 days, with
supportable evidence for repayment (e.g.
communication records, draft/signed documents),

subject to individual analysis;

There is a change in debtor's credit rating (market or

internal);
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35.
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)

ECLs measurement (continued)

(iv) There is a shortfall in collateral value, subject to
individual analysis; and

(v) Some credit risks and events (both economic and
industry) related to the debtor are observable or

expected in the market.

Financial assets are classified as Stage 3 if:

(i) Delayed repayment;

(i) Overdue over 90 days, without supportable evidence
for repayment, subject to individual analysis;

(iiiy There is a significant change in debtor’s credit rating

(market or internal);

(iv) There is a shortfall in collateral value, subject to
individual analysis; and

(v) Significant credit risks and events (both economic
and industry) related to the debtor are observable or
expected in the market.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

The Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group monitors all financial assets that are subject to
impairment requirements to assess whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If there has been a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group will measure the loss allowance

based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECLs.

The Group collects performance and default information
about its credit risk exposures and analyses all data
collected using statistical model and estimates the
remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are
expected to change over time. The factors taken into
account in this process include macro-economic data
such as delinquency rate on residential mortgage and
residential property price index. The Group generates a
base case scenario of the future direction of relevant
economic variables as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios. The Group then uses
these forecasts, which are probability-weighted, to adjust

its estimates of PDs.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35 i EKREEEER KE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group has monitoring procedures in place to make
sure that the criteria used to identify significant increases
in credit risk are effective, meaning that significant
increase in credit risk is identified before the exposure is

defaulted or when the asset becomes 30 days past due.

The Group has controls and procedures in place to
identify when the credit risk of an asset improves and the
definition of significant increase in credit risk is no longer
met. When this is the case the asset may move back to
stage 1 from stage 2, subject to payments being up to
date and the ability of the borrower to make future

payments on time.

Default and credit-impaired

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group).

EERE (&)

1= B/m e & 18 0 (&)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Detault and credit-impaired (continued)

In respective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate. In particular,
the following qualitative indicators are taken into account

in determining the risk of default occurring:
(i) Probable bankruptcy entered by the borrowers; and
(i) Death of the debtor.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group uses forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort in its assessment
of significant increase of credit risk as well as in its
measurement of ECLs. The Group uses internal and
external information to generate a base case scenario of
future forecast of relevant economic variables along with
a representative range of other possible forecast
scenarios. The external information used includes
economic data and forecasts published by governmental

bodies and monetary authorities.

The Group uses multiple scenarios to model the
nonlinear impact of assumptions about macroeconomic
factors on ECLs. The Group applies probabilities to the

forecast scenarios identified.

In applying the forward-looking information and
probabilities to the forecast scenario identified for
assessing the expected credit losses as at 31 March
2022, the Group has taken into account the possible
impacts associated with the pandemic and the overall

change in economic environment.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35,

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's

credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without

undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 March.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.

As at 31 March 2022
R-ZE-_-_HF=H=+—H

BBREREEBRRRBER (&)

EERE (&)
REEBRARRFEBER D
TRETR=ZA=+T—HREXAEEDN
FEBRREENEEERAESEER
R0 HEXEZLABMERSER (B
FEHMEREANE T BEORANKE
NE AT - RERIER) - AR F L&
HIPE B0 48

AN ERATHEENREAR -

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
TZEAEH
ERBL EEGENABERAX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
E-BR ZE-EKR FZER @StrE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
Trade receivables U E 5 BRK = = = 8,842 8,842
Loan and interest receivables ~ EWE R F 8 684,516 28,159 26,402 - 739,077
Financial assets included in BEEENNE  Ze
prepayments, deposits and R e Y BR 3
other receivables NEREE
- Normal* —E®* 4,206 - - - 4,206
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED
~ Not yet past due — KB H 401,548 - - - 401,548
1,090,270 28,159 26,402 8,842 1,153,673
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

As at 31 March 2021
RZE-—F=ZA=+—H

Trade receivables FEWE SR
Loan and interest receivables FEWEFRFE
Financial assets included in BETENTE ke
prepayments, deposits and R E e M BR 3
other receivables MeREE
— Normal* —F&*
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEN
~ Not yet past due — KB H

FHELEEEEETRAA
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FERR (&)

35. B EREERHERBEE (&)

REEBRUARRFEBERTE

(%)

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
T_EAEH
EREX ERFEHRRBEREX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-BR SRR F=ZER fBlrE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR THT
- - - 43,413 43,413
579,087 28,393 54,381 S 661,861
4,799 = = = 4,799
454,297 = = = 454,297
1,038,183 28,393 54,381 43413 1,164,370

*  The credit quality of the financial assets included in

prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered

to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no

information indicating that the financial assets had a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.

O BRERMNFOR B K HE MR RK
s RMEEERNABHELEER
XPSREENEERR B THKER
BREKBEL EEEEZERE
RIEF] B eRMEENEES

ZeRBRAFER] -
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31 March 2022
—EZf=R=+—H

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35 i EKREEEER KE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERR (&)

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/ EEEREBINIBREE/RS5HA K

counterparty, by geographical region and by industry
sector. There is no significant credit risk as the tenants
and charterer have paid security deposits as collateral to
the Group for the leases of investment properties and
cruise ships, respectively. Also, the Group's loan and

interest receivables are widely dispersed.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from other receivables, loan
and interest receivables and trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 16, 17 and 18 to the financial

statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows

from operations.

EHERITTERAETER -BREP

EBHEMADNECHEERENER
BmmAEEXNRESERERSR -
WAEEY BEREERR LI &
SENEKREREMNETIEBZETE
BBA e
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Liquidity risk (continued)

FHELKEEEFTEERQA
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as

at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2022
—E-=

Amount due to the intermediate
holding company

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder
of the Group's subsidiary

Accruals

Other payables and
deposits received

Lease liabilities

JEf R B R 2 A
HA

AEEMBRRZ
FFERBRR
BRI ZEH

JEETFUR

B i AR
Elhze

HEAR

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

35. B EREERHERBEE (&)

REBE S @K (&)

RIBETHRFTRER

AT HE I A%

ERmEHRzERAEIHA

3to
On Less than less than 1to5
demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=R
®E =f8R TZf8A —Z1fF CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THERT THR THEL TEL
40,000 = = = 40,000
71,823 = = = 71,823
= 1,836 = = 1,836
22 18,618 1,511 1,447 21,598
= 34 104 73 211
111,845 20,488 1,615 1,520 135,468
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

(continued)

2021

T

35. B EREERHERBE(E)

REBE @R (&)

RIBFSATHRFTRER

AT #E A%

BREEHRceMABEIHA - (B

3to
On Less than less than 1t05
demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=R
EEX 22 EOR
g =@ A +=1A —E0% ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FET FET
Amount due to the intermediate R AR R A )
holding company WE 40,000 - - - 40,000
Loan advanced from a FEERBEARZ
non-controlling shareholder FERBE
of the Group's subsidiary BIZER 71,823 - - - 71,823
Accruals st A - 1,831 = = 1,831
Other payables and Hit R R
deposits received Blie 323 26,470 1,039 3,094 30,926
Lease liabilities HEAfR - 49 130 144 323
112,146 28,350 1,169 3,238 144,903
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 20)
as at 31 March 2022. The Group's equity investments
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and are
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the

reporting period.

The market equity index for the following stock exchange,
at the close of business of the nearest trading day in the
year to the end of the reporting period, and its respective

highest and lowest points during the year were as

FHELEEEEETRAA
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5. B EREREBERBER (&)

Bi% A B 4% B B

PR (B 15 [ B 2 5 AR 48 BUK 7 2 M A
FLABEEEMENNEEIZ SN TE
BETHEHERR R_ZT=Z_F=A
=t+—H AEEFMEHHREERE
BRESEARATEBET ABEAR
R EMERIRERE (M5F20) - R"&E
EHRERENRBEBRZM LT - TR
HRERRETISAMERTE -

RBERRNBEAR B EERBER
B TIBARGAOMISREEE
UERAFEEEN RS KRN
T

follows:
31 March
2022
—E_Cf
=ZA=t+-H
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index &8 — B4 15# 21,997

High/low 31 March High/low
2022 2021 2021
B/ -—T-—% &/ &

“B--f ZA=+t-B —B--#%

29,491/ 28,378 31,183/
18,235 22,520
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
10% change in the fair values of the equity investments
of the Group, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax, based on their carrying

amounts at the end of the reporting period.

2022 —R-F
Equity investments listed REE LTH
in Hong Kong IRER &

2021 —F-—%
Equity investments listed REE ETHHY
in Hong Kong R &

35. B EREERHERBE(E)

B R B A% R B (4B
TRERTNEMBEMBEHRRTTE TN
RARGRHARBNERAZER  RIEKR
BEENREMNRIEHSE  BAK
BRERE 2 N FEESHER10%E
ZHREE o

Decrease/

(increase) in

loss after

Carrying tax and
amount Increase/ increase/

of equity (decrease)  (decrease) in
investments in fair value retained profits
w4/ ()

RERE NFEE RRE A
MERESHE #m,/ OR) #im,/ (R)
HK$'000 % HK$'000
TET TET
80,075 10 6,686
(10 (6,686)

96,537 10 8,061

(10) (8,061)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

FHLEEEEERLA

POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total indebtedness divided by equity attributable to
owners of the Company. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio below 50%. Total

indebtedness represents a loan advanced from a non-

35. B EREERHERBE(E)

EXEE (&)

AEBENBERNEABLE RREEE
K- BERNERELERBBREBBRALR
ABEAANEEER AEEZBER/E
BAEE E L RERER50% - BEH
BEASENBARZ FEBRERBNZ

controlling shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, an ER-EBNREERARZEBEULEE
amount due to the intermediate holding company and aE -RZZE-__F=A :—I-—EI&:
lease liabilities. The gearing ratios as at 31 March 2022 T F=-HA=1+—HZEXRHEAEL
and 31 March 2021 were as follows: RO
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Loan advanced from a REBHRBARZ
non-controlling shareholder FEFEAAR R
of the Group's subsidiary BN EN 71,823 71,823
Amount due to the intermediate JE A AR R 4% AR
holding company NG| 40,000 40,000
Lease liabilities HEBE 206 312
112,029 112,135
Equity attributable to owners of VN/NGIEZ 2SN X
the Company W= 1,579,704 1,582,541
Gearing ratio BREGELE 7% 7%
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Information about the statement of financial position of

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Equity investment designated
at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities
Other payables and accruals

Due to subsidiaries

Total current liabilities

FRBEE
ME - BERRE
RIE LR ZRE

BERBAFEETA

H b 2 [ W ek 1Y
g E

FEMEE EARRE

RBEE
FEWE 5 B X
BNRE - RER
H A F& U AR R
WA FEERA
Bam R RERE
RelBReEEY

REBAE
HERE

Ho Al A RR K e B 5t SRR

JE A Bl /B8 2 B R IA

ERSRE

BA F5 3R R P EE
31 March 2022

—E-_-_F=A=+—H

36. A1 A Y B H AR R &R

BRAARARH®EHROT BRI KE

2022 2021
—_ZFgq-= —_EF - —
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FET
2,634 349
1,030,502 1,099,751
2,040 3,457
1,035,176 1,103,557
4,545 24,505
1,154 1,065
41,672 48,417
210,120 124,310
257,491 198,297
2,321 81
1,694 1,748
574,787 574,600
578,802 576,429
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows: (continued)

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEETFHE
Net assets BEFE
EQUITY R

Issued capital BEBEITIRA
Reserves (Note) (M)

Total equity ot

36. AR A M HAMRR KR (&)

BRAARARHERROTHARRKED

BEAT : (88)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T FHET
(321,311) (378,132)
713,865 725,425
14,451 14,451
699,414 710,974
713,865 725,425
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31 March 2022
—E-_-_F=A=+—H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. XA T EBI AR AR ()
COMPANY (continued)
Note: Mzt -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: KABEBEBRENT ¢
Share Share
premium option  Contributed Fair value Retained
account reserve surplus reserve profits Total
37} BRE X AVER RE
HER wE B8 wtE bl Gl

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TET TET TET

At 1 April 2020 RZZE-TFMA—A 354,993 23,015 162,587 733 167,779 709,107
Total comprehensive income/  AEE2E N,/
(loss) for the year (BB g8 - - - 1,944 77 1,867

Transfer of share option reserve 7 B i 12 5 2 5§ f& 7 5
upon the lapse or expiry of BB REHE

share options (note 25) (Fi#E25) - (17,153) - - 17,153 -
At 31 March 2021 and RZZEZ-F=]
at 1 April 2021 =T-BRR
—Z-—-FWA—H 354,993 5,862 162,587 2,677 184,855 710,974
Total comprehensive AEEEE
loss for the year BREE - - - (1,417) (10,143) (11,560)
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZ%Z=A4

Sr=l 354,993 5,862 162,587 1,260 174,712 699,414
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31 March 2022
—E--_F=A=+—H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

37.

COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)
The contributed surplus of the Company arose from:

(i) the reorganisation mentioned in note 26(i), representing
the excess of the nominal value of the Company's shares
issued under the Group's reorganisation and the then
consolidated net assets value of the acquired subsidiaries;

and

(i)  a transfer from the share premium account pursuant to the

capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances prescribed by section 54

thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should

the related options expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 23 June 2022.

FHLEEEEERLA

36.

37.

AT BAARR R (B)

fsE - ()
RRBZEHBHKE

() M6tz ER/RBARAREAN
SESAMBETRMIEEBRBRKSE
MBARERZGAEEFEIHD
K

(i) BEBE-NAANFRA-ZRETZRA
BT ARDEERPEL -

RIEARECBIFREE) (KER) &
ZOEDIESMEFTMZ BETFTBRT  AARZ
BHEGA DK TRE -

BREREREERDL BFTEZBRE
ZRFEE FIBENY B ERRME24U K
MARERNNRZ G RRE—FTHEE-Z
BERBERERTEN EHEKEBES
B tn i (B iR - Sk fin A R 1 B A i i s 108 MR
B RAIEHSEBEEEREEN -

BTk 2ME
P HREER-_E-_—FE~A=-+=AH
EEEofERRERE-
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A FURBHME

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- ANEBBERBEGKBEESEAD F ALK
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial BZUMBEHRRMNLEEESE = BEME
years, as extracted from the published audited financial TIRERNBELT o

statements, is set out below.
RESULTS ¥i&E

Year ended 31 March
BE-A=T-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“¥--f —FT--f —ZT-% —ENF ZB-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET FHT TAT TET
(Restated)
(E351)
(Note)
(F5E)

REVENUE KA 80,741 100,360 145,364 173,006 202,055

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR  AEE &R/ (F8) (6,835) (79,935) 48,635 88,583 196,512

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR XA THEA A
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS EEAEE
OF THE COMPANY wA/ (BE) (1,501) (56,712) 15,461 47,492 148,611
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFURBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- NEBEBERBEBKREEESEAE FREK
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial BEZMBEHRRMNLEEEE = BEMIE
years, as extracted from the published audited financial TRERNBENT - (&)

statements, is set out below. (continued)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE BERIERER
INTERESTS
At 31 March
R=ZB=+-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—B-zf _T_— —Z-TF ZZ-hnE ZE-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TEL TER TET

(Restated)

(L E3)

(Note)

(FE)
TOTAL ASSETS EEAR 2,071,036 2130282 2,168,656 2,880,876 1,935,125
TOTAL LIABILITIES REAE (153,282)  (164,390)  (152,196)  (376,759)  (230,556)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 3 iZHR (338,050)  (383,351)  (399,233)  (370,930) (67,899)
1,579,704 1582541 1617227 2,133,187 1,636,670

Note: B 5E -

The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2019 has been HE_T - NWF=ZA=+—"HILFENHBKEHR
restated to reflect the effect of adoption of merger accounting for BB URBREBEE-_ZT_FTF=A=1+—
common control acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2020. AIEFERERZEFIWERAEHIGIENTE -
The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2018 has not HZE-—Z—N\F=A=1+—BI-EENHKER
been adjusted. I A R AE R o



INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Description

R

Shop No. 23A,

Ground Floor (Level 2),
Kwai Chung Plaza,

7-11 Kwai Foo Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong
EREMREBEERT- 115

EORESHT (B ZE) 23A5% &

Ground Floor including its cockloft,

Chi Fu Building,

No. 301 Portland Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

BRI BEEAKRBA3015%
EEBHT (BEEEE)

Shop 5, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
EENEE BT LEHAZHRE
BT £ B % T 55 &

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7
Annual Report 2022 F

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
MEFIS

31 March 2022

—E__F=A=+—H

REWE

Percentage

Use Nature of interest

Jz2R= F =K EZEI T

Commercial Medium-term 100
EES leasehold
FREIFE

Commercial Medium-term 100
[EES leasehold
FRHEIEE

Commercial Medium-term 100
[HES leasehold
FREIFE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
MEFIS

31 March 2022

—_E-__F#=/A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Description

B

Shop 3, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BENEE AT T H43H%
BT TESGH T35

762/764/766/768

North Bridge Road,
Singapore 198730/198732/
198734/198736

15th Floor, Katherine House,

Nos. 53-55 Chatham Road South,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BEENERDERMBRASIESSH
FRPOI5E

REWE(E)

Use Nature

k=3 =K
Commercial Medium-term
[EE3 leasehold
FREIEE

Commercial Freehold
EBE3 KA ERE
Commercial Medium-term
(EES leasehold
FREIE

Percentage

of interest

EZBo

100

100

60
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